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SELECT COMMITTEE appointed on the 26th day of Septeinber, 1899, to 
consider and report upon "The Great Western Railway and Electric O,re­
Reduction Company Bill, No. 3." ( Private). 

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE. 
MR. BRADLEY. 
MR. FOWLER. 
MR. HALL. 
:MR. MURRAY. 

MR. BIRD, 
succeeded by 

MR. PAGE. 
MR. PROPSTING. (J.liover.) 

MR. MINISTER OF LANDS AND WORKS, 
succeeded by 

MR. W OOLLNOl:-GH. 

DAYS OF MEETING. 
Monday, October 16; Tuesday, October 17; Friday, October 20; Tuesday, October 2!; Thursday, November 2; 

.Friday, November 3; Monday, November 6; Wednesday, November 8; Wednesday, November 15 i 
Tuesday, November 21; Wednesday, November'22. 

WITNESSES EXAMINED. 
Mr. Hugh MacDonald Chrisp, Surveyor-in-Chief to the Great Western Railway Company; Mr. ·walter Harcourt 

Palmer; Mr. ,valter Ormsby Wise, Secretary to the Law Department; The Honourable Edward Mulcahy, 
Minister of Lands and Works ; Mr. E. A. Counsel, Surv~yor-General; Mr. John Macneill M'Cormick, 
Engineer of Existing Lines, Tasmanin,n Government Railways; Mr. F. Back, General Manager, Tasmanian 
Government Railways; Mr. V\r. J. Mc Williams, M.H.A.; Mr. Stephen Terry; Mr. Jame5 Harrison, Inspector 
of Mines for the Mining District ; Mr. R. Trivess Moore, of Melbourne. 

REPORT. 
YouR Committee, having taken evidence in support of tfie allegations contained in the Preamble of 
the Bill, have the honour to.report that the said Preamble has been proved to their satisfaction, 
subject to certain Amendments which the Committee recommend. 

Your Committee having agreed that the Preamble, as amended, should stand part of the Bill, 
then entered into consideration of the several Clauses, and have the honour to recommend certain 
further Amendments and additions. 

Evidence and Correspondence having been submitted to· your Committee, suggesting that 
financial aid be g·iven by the Government to the P1·omoters, your Committee deem it proper to draw 
attention to.thi,; suggestion, but make no recommendation in respect of it. 

Your Committee have now the honour of submitting the Bill, with the Amendments and 
additions, to the favourable consideration of your Honourabl~ House. 

W. B. PROPSTING, Chairman. 

Committee Room, Hous_e of Assembly, 22nd November, ] 899. 
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M T·N UTE S OF PROCEEDINGS. 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 16, 1,899. 
The Committee met at 3 o'clock. 
Members present.-Mr. Propsting, Mr. Woollnough, and Mr .. Page. 
The Clerk read the Ordm; of the House appointing the Committee. 
Mr. Propsting was appointed Chairman ... 
The Committee deliberated. 
The Chairman laid upon the Table the Petition praying for leave to b1-ing in the Bill. 
Mr. Vivia~ Butler appea.red as Counsel for the Petitioners. · 
Mr. Butler addressed the Committee in support of the Bill. 
Mr. Hugh MacDonald Chrisp, Surveyor-in-Chief to the Great Western Railway Company, was called in, made 

the deel~rati.on prescribed in 35 Viet. No. H, and was exammed before the Committee. 
· Mr. Cl1risp withdrew. 

At 4·40 the Committee adjourned till 2·30 to-morrow. 

TUESDAY, OCTOEER 17, 1899. 
The Committee met at haJf~past 2. 
/Jfembers present.- Mr. Propsting (Chairman), '"i\ir. Bradley, and Mr. Page. 
Mr. Walter Harcourt Palmer, C.E., was callf'd in, made the dechtrution prescribed, and was examined before 

the Committee. 
Mr. Palmer withdreiv. 
Mr. Vivian Butler submitted to the Committee the following documents, which were ordered to be printed:-

1. The Prospectus of the Great Northern Railway of Tasmania. 
2. The Opinion of the Solicitor-General on Sections 17 and 83 of" The 1.:i-reat vVestern Railway Act, 

1896." 
3. Letter dated 23rd March, 1899, from Ellis & Co. to W. H. Palmer. 
4. Letter dated 27th May, 1899, from Messrs. Jackson & Prince to W. H. Palmer. 
5. Letter dated 5th June, 1899, from John Norton to J. w·. Bakewell. 
6. Letter dated 7th June, 1899, from H. E. Wamer & Co. to W. G. Bakewell. 
7. Letter dated 8th June, 1899, from John Ilrunlees to W. H. Palmei·. 
8. Letter dated 9th June, 1899, from Edwin Sloper to W, H. Palmer. 
9. Letter doted 16th June, 1899, from Walford Bros. & Co. to W. J. Bakewell. 

10. Letter dated 19th June, 1899, from J. W. Stubbins to J. W. Bakewell. 
ll. Extract from a letter dated 22nd June, 1899, from H. Tennant to W. H. Palmer. 
12. Letter dated 8th August, 1899, from W. E. Dalton to W. H. Palmer. 
13. Copies of the Correspondence between the Bight Honourable the Premiei· and the Agent-General 

(Sir Philip Fysh). . 
Mr. Butler also submitted to the Committee a pamphlet entitled "Some facts connected with the project known 

as 'The Great Western Railway and Electric Power Company Limited,' formed under the A.et of the Parliament of 
Tasmania, 60 Victoria." · 

A.t 4·20 the Committee adjourn~d till halt~past 2 on Friday next . 

. FRIDAY, OCTOBER 20, 1899. 

The Committee met at half'..past 2 o'clock. 
JYlembers pre~ent.-Mr. Propsting (Chairman), Mr: Bradley, and Mr. Page. 
At 3·45 the Committee adjourned till half-past 2 on Tuesday n·ext. 

'l'UESDAY, OC'fOBER 24, 1899. 
The Committee met at half'..past 2 o'clock. 
lliembers pre5-ent . .:_Mr. Propsting (Chail'man), Mr. Page, and Mr. vVoollnough. 
:Mr. Walter Harcourt Palmer, C.E., was recalled and further examined. · 
Mr. Palmer withd1:ew. 
Mr. Butler submitted to the Committee :-

(1.) Opinions on, and suggested alterations to, Sections of the Great ;Western Railway Act, 1896, 
(Private.) 

(2.) Letter dated22nd Jnue, 1899, from i\fr. H. Tennant, to l\Ir. vY. H. Palmer. 
, I 

At 4·15 the Committee adjourned sine die. · . 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 1899. 
The Committee met at 11 o'clock. 
llfembers p1·esent. -Mr. Propsting (Chairman),· Mr. Fowler, Mr. Page, Mr. Bradley, aud Mr. Murray. 
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The Committee deliberated. 
The Minutes of the last M·eeting were read and confirmed. 
Mr. Woollnough took his seat. 
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Ordered, That Mr. Back, General Manager of Railways, Mr. Minister of Lands and Works, Mr. J. M._ 
M'Cormick, Engineer of Existing Lines, Tasmanian Government Railways, and Mr. E. A. Counsel, Surveyor­
General, be summoned to give evidence, the three last for 11 o'clock to-morrow. ( Mr. Bmdley.) 

Mr. Walter Ormsby Wise, Secretary to the Law Department, was called in a.nd made the declaration prescribed 
and was examined before the Committee. 

Mr. Wise submitted to the Committee copies of opinions ·of the Solicitor-General on Section 15 of the Great. 
Westem Railway Act, 1896, (Private), dated 22nd April, and 3rd July, 1899, respectively. 

Mr. Wise withdrew. 
At 12 o'clonk the CommittPe adjourned till half~past 10 to-morrow. 

I 

FRID~Y, NOVEMBER 3, 18119. 

The Committee met at half-past 10 o'clock. 
:Member.~ present-Mr. Propsting (Chairman), Mr. Page, Mr. Bradley, Mr. Hall, Mr. Woollnopgh, Mr._ 

Murray, and Mr. Fowler. 
The Minutes of the last Meeting were read and confirmed. 
Mr. Butler explained that he had ascertained that the appendix marked E., which had been put in as being the 

opinion_ofthe Solicitor-General, was, in fact, a memorandum of the ex-Preri1ier. He wished at the earliest oppor­
tunity to correct this error. The advisers of the Company and Mr. Palmer were under the impression th~t the 
document was genuine, and it had been handed to them as a copy of the Solicitor-General's opinion, this being the 
first time he had had an opportunity of seeing the original documents. He very much regretted that the mi,take • 
had been made, and could assure the Committee that it was purely unintentional on the part of the Comp:i,ny's 
representatives. . 

He also wi~hed to inform the Committee that advices had recently been received intimating the fact tha~ Mr. 
Austin, who was a member of the Board of Directors of the London Company, had withdrawn from that positi-Jn. 

The Honourable Edward Mulcahy, Minister of Lands and "\'Vorks, was called in, made the declaration pre-
scribed, and was examined before t!ile Committee. 

Mr. Muleahy withdrew. 
Mr. vYalter Ormsby "\Vise was recalled a.nrl further examined, 
Mr. Wise produced a copy ofa memorandum from Sir Edward Braddon to the Solicitor-General on the si;.bject 

of Section 15 of the Great Westem Railway Act, 1896 (Private). , 
Mr. Wise brought with him for inspection, but did not hand in, the original of the memorandum attached to a 

number of other documents. 
Mr. Butler requested the Committee to call for the documents brought by Mr. Wise. 
Mr. E. A. Counsel, Surveyor-General, was called in, made the declaration prescribed, and was examined before• 

the Committee. 
- Mr. Counsel withdrew. 

Mr. John Macneill M'Cormick, Engineer of Existing Lines, Tasmanian Government Railw~ys, was calJed in, .. 
made the declaration prescribed, and was examined before the Committee. 

Mr. M'Cormick withdrew. 
Mr. vValter Harcourt Palmer was recalled and further examined. 
Mr. Palmer withdrew. 
The application of Mr. Butler for permission to inspect papm·s was considered by the Committee. 
Resolved, That Mr. Butler Le informed that the Committee coul,d not accede to the req u0st that the papers, 

brought down by Mr. vYise should be called for, or that he should be grantetl permission to have acc;ess to them; 
but, that if Mr. Butler should apply specifically to have any docmment called for, his request would be com;idered 
by·the Committee. (Mr. Page.) ' 

Ordered, That a letter 1.J.e sent to the-Honomable the Chief Secretary, with a copy of the papers ordered to be 
printed by the Committee, requesting him to have those appendices, mEtrkecl in red pencil, compared with the 
original papers in the Premfor's Office, and certified as true copies. . 

O1·dered, That Mr. Bac_k be summoned to give evidenoe for 10 o'clock on il'Ionday rn~xt. 
The •Committee adjourned till 10 o'clock on Monday next. 

The Committee ·met at 4 o'clock. 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 1899. 

1vlembers p1'esent-Mr. Propsting (Chairman), Mr. Page, and Mr. Woollnough. 
Mr. Frederick Back, General Manager of Tasmanian Gover~ment .Railways, ,,-as called in, made the statutory· 

declaration prescribed, and was examined before the Committee. 
Mr. Back produced to the Committee the following documents:-

1. An extract from a letter, dated 5th N o_vember, 1896, from Mr. W. Harcourt Palmer to himself. 
2. A telegram, dated 7th November, 1896, from Sir Edward Braddon to himself. 
3. A copy of a telegram, dated 7th November, 1891'!; from -himself and C. l\f. Officer, jun., to the Premie!H'. 
4. A copy of the "Specification of w· orks in connection with the Construction of' the Great Western, 

Railway." 
Mr. Back withdrew. 
The Committee adjourned till 10 o'clock on Wednesday next. 
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WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8,' 1899. 

"THR Committee met at 10 o'clock. 
1rlm11be1·s present.-Mr. Propsting (Chairman), Mr. Hall, Mr. Murray, and Mr. Woollnough. 
Mr. B11ck was recalled and further examined. 
Mr. Butler produced to the Committee the Memorandum and Artic1es of Association of th~ Great Western 

Railway Company, and the Contract of Works with Pauling and Co., Limited. 
Mr. Back produced to the Committee a "Comparative Table of Rates for 38 mile3-Distance, Hobart to 

··Glenora." 

Mr. Back 1vithdrew. 
Mr. ,villiam James Mc vVilliams, M. H .A., was called in, made the declaration prescribed, and was examined 

before the Committee. 

Mr. Mc Williams produced to the Committee a letter dated 1lth August, 1899, from the Agent-General (Sir 
Philip Fysh) to himself. 

l\fr. Palmer was recalled and further examined. 
~fr. Palmer withdrew. 
The Committee deliberated. 
The pommitt.ee adjourned sine die. 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 1899. 
The Committee met at 10 o'clock. 
1lfemberspre.,ent-Mr. Hall, Mr. Woollnough, and Mr. Page. 
In the absence of the Chairman (Mr. Propsting), Mr. Page took the Chair. 
Mr. Stephen Terry, Prospector, was called in, made the declaration prescribed, and was examined before the 

•-Committee. 
Mr. 'l'erry withdrew. 
Mr. James Harrison, Inspector of Mines for the Western District, was called in, macle the declarati011 prescribed, 

, and was examined before the Committee. 
Mr. Harrison withdrew. 
Mr. R. Trivess Moore, of Melbourne, was called in, made the declaration prescribed, and was examined before 

the Committee. • . 
Mr. Butler pro<luced to the Committee :-

(1.) An extract relating to curves and gradients from the correspondence relating to the Main Line 
Railway, (Paper No. 29, 1871, page 21.) 

(2.J A copy of a letter from the Agent-Gener11,l (Sir Philip Fysh) to Mr. W. Harcourt Palmer, dated 
13th April, 1899. . 

Mr. Moore withdrew. 
"The Committee adjourned sine die. 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 21, 1899. 
~rhe Committee met at half-past 10 o'clock. 
1viembers present-Mr. Propsting (Chairman), Mr. Bradley, Mr. Pa:ge, and Mr. Woollnough. 
'The ~Iinutes of the last four meetings were read and confirmed. 
The Committee deliberated. 
The Committee entered upon consideration of the Preamble. 
Amendment made (Mr. Woollnough), page 1, line 4, after "·whereas," by inserting "portions of the." 

· Amendment-made (Mr. Page), page 1, line 12, after "manner," by striking out "and have continued such 
•construction to the satisfaction of the Governor in Council." 

Amendment propoKeu (l\ir. 'N oollnough), page 1, "line 14, by striking out "as· provided in Section Five, 
Sub-section v., Clau~e ( B) ; " 

Question -'rhat the words proposed to be struck out remain part of the ClausP -put, and agreed to. 
Preamble, as amended, agreed to. 
The Committee then entered into consideration of the several Clauses. 

Clause 3. 
Amendments made (Mr. Page):-
Page 2, line 18, after "substituted," by striking out "aud the whole of." 
Page 2, line 19, before •' Clause," by inserting· "Section 5, Sub-section v., the whole ot:" 
Page 2, line 23, after "substituted," by striking out "Section 15-After t;he words 'Three feet Six inches,' in 

.the fourth line the words 'and in the discretion of the Promoters'· are hereby inserted." 
Clause postponed. 
At 12·10 the Committee adjourned till half-past 10 to-morrow. 
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WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 1899. 
The Committee met at halt~past 10 o'clock. 
Members p1·esent.-Mi·. Propsting (Chairmn.n), Mr. Bradley, Mr. Fowler, Mr. Murray, Mr. Page, and Mr .. 

W oollnough. 
The Minutes of the last Meeting were read a_nd confirmed. 
The Committee further coHsidered the Bill. · 
Cl~use 3 further considered .. 
Amendments_ made (Mr. Woollnough) :-

. Page 2, line 35, after" inserted," by striking out "and the whole of the last Clause, beginning with the words­
, Provided that,' and ending with the words' the said Ra_ilway,' are hereby expunged." . 

Page 2, line 41, after "substituted," by adding "and after the word 'west' in the fourteenth line of the said 
Section the words : and the boundaries of such blocks shall be marked along the railway line by the ereetion of ,uch .. 
posts with notices tp.ereon, as may be approved by the Minister,' are hereby inserted.'" 

Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
Clause 4 disagreed to. 
Clause 5. 
Amendment made (Mr. Page), page 2, line 49, before "It," by inserting "subject to such regulations and'. 

restrictions as are, and may be from time to time made by the Minister in respect of timber _growing upon Cr,:nvn 
land~." · 

Clause, as amended, agreed to. 
Clause 6. 
Amendment made (Mr. Page), page 3, line 1, after "persons," by striking out "who shall at any time, m,der · 

agreement with the said Promoters, be engaged in prospecting or searching for minerals or metals on any of the 
Seven blocks of land men_tioned in Section Eighty-three of the said Act," and inserting "shall at any time have the 
right to prospect or search for minerals or metals on any of the Seven blocks of land mentioned in Section Eighty-. 
three of the said Act, and acquin, lands from the Promoters on the same terms as mineral lands \lre from time to­
time acquired from the Crown, hut subject always to the additional payment to the Promoters of the roydty:· 
provided in the said Act and." · 

Clause, as amer;de\1, agreed to. 
Clal'!se 7. 
Motion made, and question put-That the Clause be disagreed to. (Mr. Woollnough.) 
The Committee divided. 

AyPs. 
Mr. W oollnough. 
Mr. Fowler. 
Mr. Murray. 

So it was resolved in the Affirmative. 
Clause 8 agreed to. 
Draft Report brought up and agreed to. 
'l'he Committee adjourned sine die. 

Noes. 
Mr. Bradley. 
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EVIDENCE. 

MoNDAY, 16TH OcToBrrn, 1899. 

The Committee met at 3.15 P.M. . 

· JJfr. Butler :-The reasons for which the Company are coming· to Parliament to have amend­
ments made in their Bill are the unsettled state of affair's on the English market, principally. caused 
by some telegrams and corrrspondence which has passed between members of the Government of 
Tasmania and the Ag·ent-General, and this, whether rightly or wrong·ly, lias caused a feeling in the 
minds of the public and of London financiers that the Government is hostile to the Company, and 
that under these circumstances they will not receive that liberal support that they might fairly ask, 
and such an interpretation of the Act as would meet the views of the people who are finding the 
money for construction of the line. Also, taking· into consideration that other colonial 
Governments have had concessions of a similar character given to promote1·s of companies placed 
on the market, that they haYe not dealt with the promoters and the public, who have found the 
money, in the way that a commercial house anxious to keep its footing would do. We find in 
some correspondence I wish to have put in later on that some very strong opinions are expressed 
as to the action of the Government in not giving that interpretation to the Act that might have 
been expected. It will be seen from perusal of the correspondence between the Agent-General 
and the Premier of Tasmania that the Agent-General has always been very hopeful of the flotation 
of this Company. Again"and again in his letters he says," I am hopeful that the Company will he 
floated." Notwithstanding the various delays that have taken place, he still points out the way in 
which it is being put before the people in Eng·land, and that the prospectus is not at all highly 
coloured. Every word has been scrutinised by the ablest heads of solicitors'·firms in London, and 
the Agent-General says he could put his name to these. documents, as Agent-General, without in 
any way compromising the honour of the Colony. Under these circumstances money was subscribed, 
and a large amount underwritten. The amount of £1,100,000 was underwritten on -terms which 
appear likely to be accepted. [Telegrams were read from Mr. Fitzgerald to the Agent-General, 
dated March, and from the Agent-General to Mr. Fitzg·erald in reply; also letter dated 
20th April, 1899, from the Agent-General to the Premier of Tasmania. The Attorney-General's 
opinion was read, and also the Solicitor-General's opinion, dated 20th April, 1899; also reply 
on the Solicitor-General's opinion sent by the Premier, dated 22nd April.] I should like 
to call attention to the Solicitor-General's opinion as to curves and grades being used as 
often as required. The _Premier says exactly opposite. The whole of this trouble has 
been ea.used-as Mr. Palmer will tell you when giving evidence-by the actions of the 
Government of TaRmania. Had the Government fallen in with the suggestions of the:r 
Agent-General, . there is no doubt that the Company would have been floated, and a very 
large s~m of money would have been spent in the Colony. The contractors are men of the 
highest standing in England, and, the contract is for a very reasonable sum indeed-less by 
£160,000 than for building somewhat similar railways in Tasmania. The matter as to the con­
cessions having lapsed naturally caused some feeling- of distrust amongst the financiers, but hearing 
that the Government had selected their blocks and also accepted the surveys, put the agents in 
England under the impression that the concessions really had not lapsed, and that though the 
Government at the .time had stated the concessions had lapsed, they had subsequently given up 
that opinion as not being tenable, more especially as advice was given by Sir Edward Clarke, of 
England, that the Company had fully complied with the requirements of the Act. [Letter from 
the M_inister of Lands, dated 30th December, was read.J 'The Company's blocks were pegged on 
the 26th November, so that the Government have treated the Company as being alive. There is 
a letter frolll the Premier, of the 5th June, 1899, in which he refers to floating the railway upon 
lapsed concessions. He can hardly say in June, 1899, that they had lapsed in November, 1898, 
when, on the last day of December, I 898, the Minister had selected the blocks under the Act, and 
was really 11cting· under the Act, the concessions of which were said to have lapsed. I will novv 
call Mr. Chrisp, engineer in charge of the railway. 

MR. CHRISP took the declaration. 

1. By Mr. Butler.--What is your name? Hugh M'Donald Chrisp. 
2. You were eng·ineer in charge of the survey party of the Great Western Railway Company? 

Yes. 
3. When did you begin the work of the preliminary survey? At the end of September, 1897. 
4. How many parties were working on that survey? Three. 
5. Who were they? My own party of 10, and Mr. Duffy's at Zeehan, and afterward:,i Mr, 

Griffith's, neiir Queei:tstown. 
6! y OU started the surver at three different points, then? "¥' es'. 
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7. What points? Glenora at this end; Leslie Junction at the further extremity; anrl 
Mount Sedgwick close to Qneenstown. 

8. How many men were there with each party, speaking· roug·hly ? There were from l 0 to 
12 in each party. . ; . . . 

9. How long· did the survey t\lke J.OU? Fro111 September, 1897, till April, 1898-abont seven 
months. The survey has gone on continuously ever since that date. The ·preliminary survey was 
finished then. 

1 l 0. How much was the cost of the preliminary survey? About £3500. 
11. Was Mr. Bernard employed on the work? Not under the present Company. He was 

under a previous Company. 

Yes. 
12. Have you furnished the Government with plans of the survey of the whole of the line? 

13. Is that the result of the actual survey made by you? Yes ; myself and my assistants. 
14. You took the actual bearings, curves, and distances? Not the curves. 
15. You would take the distances and bearings? Yes. 
16. From the field notes you would prepare your plan? Yes .. 
17. Have you deposited any plans and sections of any portions of the line? Yes; since the 

preliminary survey was sent in I have deposited four different lots. 
18. "Then did you deposit them ? From GJenora, mileage O to 4 miles 53 cha.ins, deposited 

on 9th May, 1898; the second batch from 4 miles 53 chains to 10 miles, on 6th June, ] 898; a third 
lot from 10 miles to 15 miles, on 15th July 1898; the fourth lot from 15 miles to 20 miles on 25th 
October, 1898. 

19. Twenty miles complete of the working· plans? Yes. 
20. Have the Government accepted them? Yes. 
21. Did they make any statement to you with reg-ard to them? Yes. 
22. "That was it? I received a communication which .came either from the Minister of 

Railways or from Mr. M'Cormick. At any rate, it came through the lY-linistry, to say that the 
plans were satisfactory and were accepted by the Government. 

23. Have you had any conversation with Mr. M'Cormick? Yes;. 
24. Did he consider the plans satisfactory ? Yes, quite satisfactory. · 
25. Have you done any further than 20 miles of survey? Nut finally completed. We ha\'e 

done a considerable amount of work up to a~ont 30 miles. The work is not q nite completed, but a 
great part is done. 

26. Is the preliminary plan in accord with Section 15 of the Act ( Sestion 15 read)-you 
notice what is said about grades and curves-is it in accordance? Yes. Curves are not shown on 
the preliminary plan, · . 

27. Your survey is made with the object in view of showing· them later 011? · It will show 
them-yes. 

28. Are the grades not more than one in forty, ·and is the pt·eliminary survey made so that the 
curves shall not be less than five chains radius? No grades on the plan exceed I in 40-there are 

. none steeper. I can hardly answe1· about the curves, because you cai1 put any curves you like. 
29. As you prepared the survey, the curve,; will not be less than 5 chains? Until they are 

actually shown or put in you cannot say that there can be curves of any particular radius. 
30. Were not the instructions of Mr. Palmer that grades should not be more than l in 40, 

and curves not less than 5 chains-was that C'anied out? Yes. 
31. You know the position of the eastern boundary of the line? Yes. 
32. Yon know the terminus at the Western mining· division? Yes. 
33. And the preliminary survey between these points, will that be the position of the per­

manent survey? It will be approximately. 
34. Does not the country compel you to that? In some particular parts. The final survey 

must follow closely on the preliminary. There will be, of course, little deviations here and there. 
For 30 miles the final line is almost identical with the preliminary line. 

35. Up the Rasselas Valley, for instance, will it adhere to the preliminary survey ? That is 
the portion I have referred to. 

36. You remember as to selection of the blocks-having made this preliminary sur\'ey, it is 
really the permanent survey as far as the selection of the blocks is concerned? Yes, fairly 
so. It fixes the position of the blocks. 

37. Have the Government approved of the fixing of these blocks? No. 
38. Are they marked out? So far as the eastern block, the Government say they will select 

that block. Still that is only on paper .. They were marked.on the paper by the Government .. 
39. "When did you begin the work of construction? On the 23rd of May, 1898, aud stopped 

on the 27th of July, 1899. 
40. Where did you begin? Close to Glenora. 
41. Did you peg off the first block? I posted a notice up at the C'orner of the block. 
42. When? On the ~5th November-or it may have been the 24th: I am not quite sure. 
43. About the working· plans for the first 20 miles: have these been accepted? Y P.S. 

44. Did you see a letter from the Minister of Lauds and Works, dated 30th December, 1898, 
about pegging· off (letter read)? No. Mr. Mc Williams informed me as to its purport. 

45. You remember that you leh ofl work some little time ago, in August? Yes. 
46, Did you proceed wit11 t~ie work after the Oovernment had given leave to star? Yes: 
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Yes. 

47. How long? I think about 3 weeks afterwards-a month or 3 weeks. 
48. Do you remember an interview with the Minister as to the number of men arranged? 

49. When? About the beg-inning of May, 1898. 
49A. You know the terms of the Act when to commence constructio11? Yes. To commence 

. work 18 months from the date of the Act. 
50. Did you do so? Yes; about two or three days before. 
51. Did you continue? Yes. 
52. Until when? Till the 27th J u)y last. 
53. Did you conform with the remarks made by the Minister as to work? Yes. . 
54. You will notice, in Section 15, that the rails are to be 43 lbs. to the yard: do you know 1f 

it was proposed to put heavier rails in? Yes. From correspondence we have received from Eng­
land, the contractors who were willing to take it up proposed to put in heavier rails. 

55. How much heavier? 60-lb. rails. 
56. ls that provided for by the contract ? Yes. 
57. Is there any difference in the ballast? It is somewhat heavier than provided for by 

the Act. 
58. The contract provides for a more expensive line than the Act ? Yes. 
59. In other rn,pects is it equal to the Act? Yes. · 
60. There is one point I want you to be particular on : did you maintain the nq.mber of men, 

as agreed to by the Minister ? Yes. · 
· 61. All the time? Yes. Occasionally, perhaps, two or three men may have been sick, or 

away for a day or two. The number of men ag-reed upon by the Minister was 25. ,v e had 
actually one man in excess of this. 

62. Never less ? No; never less. 
63. By tlte Chairman.-You sav the plan's of the survey of the whole of the line were 

deposited with the Govern meut ? Yes. 
64. And the working-plans and sections of about 20 miles? Yes, exactly 20 miles. 
65 ... Will the course of the railway deviate much from the original plans? No; I do not 

anticipate that it will. 
66. Does any part of the line present any serious engineering difficulties? No; porlions ~ill 

be expensive to construct; still, there are no unusual difficulties: it is similar to country in winch 
several li11es have been constructed in Tasmania· already. . 

67. Does your accomJt of what has been spent in surveys includl:l what had been paid for 
clearing ? No. 

68. How much is that? _ About £I 80 a month. We have spent about £2500 in clearing. 
69. Is that the only additional expense beyond what has already been told us, as far as you 

are concerned ? The survey has been carried on simultaneously with the clearing·. 
70. What has been expended in that? A bout £2500, a similar amount. That i~, sine~ _the 

first £3500 was spent there has been about between five and six thousand pounds spent rn add1t10n. 
About £8500, or £9000 altog·etlrnr. 

71. How far have you cleared ? To 17 miles from Glenora. 
72. I u?derstan·d none of the blocks have been surveyed? No. 
73. In the amended Bill it is proposed, instead of surveying and marking them ont on the 

line, to mark them out on plans: do you know the object of that? No. Perhaps. it is to save the 
very large cost of survey. 

74. Would it be a difficult matter for prospectors to say whether or not they were on the 
company's lancl if the blocks were not surveyed? Yes, it would. . . 

75. Will it make any difference to the character of the line if maximum grade and muumum 
curve is used as frequently as you like? A very decided difference. 

76. vVhat will the difference be? The cost of traffic on the line will be very much increased, 
because the engine would not pull anything like the loads, and the wear and tear on the rolling­
stock would be increased. That is to say, a line with these 5-chain curves and 1 in 40 grades 
would be more costly to operate than one in which the curves an<l grades are easier. . 

77. Will the character of the line_, as a serviceable line, be lessened by your frequently usmg 
the curve and g·rnde mentioned in the Act? No, except that the speed of trains would not be so 
great. 

78. Is the speed of the trains regulated by the Act? Yes, it says 15 miles an hour. That is 
the minimum speed. 

79. I see the ballast stated in the Act is 13:JO cubic yards per mile: do you kno_w whnt is 
proposed? 1330 cubic yards to the mile would be about 16½ cubic yards to the cham, and the 
contractors propose to use 22 yards to the chain, that is, 5½ yards more. 

80. By Mr. Woollno11y!t.-Do the 20 miles working plans show the grades? Yes. 
81. What is the steepest grade in these 20 miles'? 1 iu 46, I think. I know there are none 

down to the limit, and the piece of 1 in 46 is a very short bit. 
82. Do they show the curves ? Yes. 
83. What is the minim nm curve? 5 chaius radius. 
84. The remainder of your survey, I understand, is preliminary survey: does that show tl1e 

grades ? Yes. 
85. What is the steepest grade iu the whole lot? It is under the limit, 
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86. Are there any very steep grades near the limit? I in 45 is the steepest 
87. In the same way, does the preliminary survey show the curves? No. . 
88. I understand only the first block is peg·ged out? It is not surveyed. A notice was posted 

at one end in the usual way of posting notices. "Vhen a piece of land is applied for it is usual to 
post a notice, and we did that. 

89. That applies only to the first section? Yes, ouly to the first block. Still, the position of 
the first block i·eg·ulates the whole of the succeeding blocks. 

90. The last of the working plans was sent on ~5th October. 1898? Yes. 
91. Have any working- plans been prepared since that date, or have you only been engaged 

in the preliminary survey ? We have been proceeding with the permanent survey since then. 
We have been working continuously since the beginning of August. 

92. No further plans have been -sent in? No. 
93. Have you them ready to send in? Not quite ready, but we have a very considerable 

amount of information towards it. 
94. How many miles would that include? About 10 miles more. 
95. By ilfr. Page.-Have you kept the same number of men employed from October to 

July-you spoke of having three batches of 10 · or ] 2 men each? 'l'hose were only survey 
parties. 

!16. How many had yo11 employed from October to July? One survey party of about the 
same strength as formerly. 

97. Has the work done between October and July been continuous with the pernnrnent 
survey? Yes. As well as the survey a considerable amount of work was entailed in cutting tracks. 
It was necessary to cut horse tracks. 

0 

98. You spoke of the cmves making a difficulty in the ability to keep up the speed required. 
Is there anything to suggest any difficulty in keeping up the required rate of 15 miles an hour? 
Certainlv not. 

99." By 111r. Woolinougli .. -You have spent, I understand; £3500 ·to 25th October, 1898. Can 
you give any roug·h estimate as to how much money has been spent since then in preliminary survey 
aud preparing for more detailed plans? Up to April, 1898, we hacl spent about £;:l500. 

JOO. And since then? Since then we have had one survey party, and the permanent survey 
cost about £180 a month, up till last August. That is, 16 months at £ISO-about £3000. 

101. That is in addition to the £3500? Yes, on the permanent survey. 
102. Then there is the preliminary survey? That cost about £3500. And about £2500 in 

clearing, in addition to the two· sums. The figures are only roughly given. 
103. It is really about £10,000 altogether? Yes, somewhere about that. Perhaps more­

certainly very little less. 
104. That is, roughly, the whole of the money spent on survey and construction work? Yes. 
105. By the Ghairman.-Do you k11ow what is the minimum curve and rnaxium grade on the 

MainLine? No. 
106. Do you produce copy of any plan showing· the work that has been clone? No, I have a 

plan of the preliminary survey. The Government have copies of all plans. 
107. By .Mr. Butler.-As to the expenditure you have been g·iving· us-does that include 

money paid in the London Offices? No, it is what has been spent locally and passed through my 
hands. 

108. As to putting in plans in sections-is it usual in building railways to put the plans in in 
sections? Yes; I believe, in Tasmania, it is. Other companies building lines have pursued a similar 
course. 

109. Suppose you waited till the whole survey was finished, how long· would it take to complete 
the line-would you do it in the time allowed by the Act? It depends, of course, upon the 
number of smveyors at work. 

1 I 0. It would then take an extraordinarily large staff? Yes. 
111. It is absolutely necessary that it should be allowed that plans be put in in sections? It is 

certainly a more reasonable way. 
112. Looking at the time it would save? Yes. 
] 13. The expenditure, roug·hly speaki11g, was £400 a mouth? Close on £400 a month. 
l] 4. That is the local expenditure passing through your hands? Yes, that is for clearing and 

surveys. · 
l 15. There is one tjiing· 1 would like to call your attention to: I am afraid I made you say 

that Mr. :M'Corrnick had approved of the whole of the plans that had been sent in? The whole 
of the plans and sections. 

116. Not the preliminary survey ? No. · 
] 17. He has approved of the working plans in sections that have been put in up to 20 miles? 

Yes, not for the whole route. I have receivetl no communication as regards them. 
The Committee adjourned at 4·35 P.M. 
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TUESDAY, 17TH OCTOBER. 

The Committee met at 2·30 P.M. 

MR. WALTER HARCOURT PALMER, examined. 

Mr. Palmer was called, and took Statutory Declaration. 
Mr. Butler.-1 think it would facilitate matters if I read over a statement to Mr. Palmer 

which he made in the il1ercury of 12th August, and asked him if it were true, and put it in as part 
of his evidence. 

The extract was read as follows:-
" Asked what was the present position of affairs in regard to the London company and the making of the 

line, he said, 'If Parliament ·will give us the concessions we ask, and pass a Bill this session giving a more 
liberal interpretation to certain Clauses, such as is suggested by more than one of the leading barriste1·s at the 
English Bar, and drafted by them, the flotation may be regarded as completed; the money was absolutely 
ready. Messr8. Pauling and Co. bave actually signed the contract, the price being £1,017,000, most of 
which must he spent in Tas1rnmia, the railway to be completed in two years. When they signed the contract 
they were not aware of the necessity for the interpretations of the Act that we now seek. That contract s;:ill 
holds good ; but ,it would be absolutely unfair and inequitable to compel them to carry it out until these 
stumbling-blocks have been removed. My mission here at this time, then, is to get such an amending Act 
passed as I have indicated, and I belieYe your Parliament will do this much fo1, us in the interests of the 
whole Colony, as well as by way of doing an act of justice to the contractors and the promoters of the l_ine. 
When the public of Tasmania will have read all I have to say to you, confirmed by documents among the 
host of those you see before me, I think they will all strongly sympathi,e with us, and support us, i·ega1·ding 
what we ask for as only right and fair. At present, a very illiberal construction is put upon some 
of the Clauses of the present Act by your Law Department, and which has done no _end 
of mischief, as it has caused the English financiers and underwriters to be under ibe impression that the 
Tasmanian Government are our strongest opponents, and at present we cannot get them to abandon that 
idea. It will ·be seen at once that that is a very unfavourable condition of things. Remove that difficulty 
and the building of the line without further delay is assured, and my colleagues in Adelaide believe that 
your Government is in sympathy ·with us, and will do everything that is fair. 

"' Statements have been made relative to myself in Hobart and elsewhere that have been cruelly unfair 
to nw, and I am reluctantly compelled to ask the ill ei cury to allow me to put the real facts of the case 
before the public, leaving them to judge whether or not I have acted throughout as a friend to Tasmania in. 
the matter of this great project, which, if accomplished, will connect your capital with its magnificent harbour, 
a~d the rnutheru districts of the Colony, with what is believed will prove to be the finest mineral fields south 
of the Line. It is nearly 20 months since I left Hobart. At that time everything was done that could 
be done by certain persons to put me under a cloud, and to some extent they succeeded for a time. The 
evidence given before the Select Committee on the Great Western Railway Bill w&s represented in various 
guises, with the object of showing that I should be mistrusted ; but I now think I have tumed the tables 
on my detractors and those opposed to the best interests of the project. My then partner, Mr. Charles 
Officer af that time said the money required coulcl be found, and notwithstanding the financial difficulties 
Mr. Officer fell into, the firm that he was then connected with could no doubt have found the money, I 
am now back from London in a position to assert, without qualification, that the money was assured in 
London months ago, and was obtained by myself, in confirmation of my late partner's statement, and I 
now ask that the evidence that I have given before the Select Committee may be examined as a proof 
of my bona ficles instead of justifying the allegations that were made. Nothing but the action of certain 
people here and in Melbourne has prevented the work going 011 at the present moment. The money is now 
available, providing your Parliament will allow the Act to be fairly interpretecl, and interpreted in honest 
Engfah. · · 

"' Th1:ough the statements of certain people in Hobart to Mr. Rymill during his visit here, the Board of 
Directors in Adelaide absolutely refused to allow me to go to London as the representative of the Gre~t 
Western Railway Company, even after they had previously "minuted" a resolution that .I should 
go. That involved my either throwing up the interests of a large minority of the shareholders who 
had placed the same in my hands, or my going· to England at my own expense and watching the 
operations of the Company's attorneys, Messrs. Horn and Bakewell. · But before going further into this 
part of my account I must here revert to an earlier stage of the proceedings. Mr. Charles Officer and 
m., self, who were members of the firm of Officer & Co., got the Act passed, ·and everybody in HobaJ"t will 
remember the circumstances and the difficulties that then arose. Through the death of Sir W. Clarke the 
Company went into liquidation. Mr. O'Dowd and 1 1hen offered Mr. Brown (the liquidator) £10 for the 
assets of the Company, and u11dertook to discharge all debts of the Company. This ofter, after some 
del~beration, was accepted. The was no chance of finding the £10,000 deposit in Melbourne, and thera 
was only a few days left in which to find it So 1 immediately went to Adelaide, and there, on the ver:, 
night before the date when the Bill would be forfeited, I managed to raise the last £1000, and wired the 
money to Hobart. I did not take Rdvantage of the trust reposed in me by the shareholders in Melbourne, 
but handed to every ~har(•holder tl1eir p1·0 rara interest in the new company now formed. The 
Melbourne Pwu·h of June 3, 1897, refening to it, said: "Sir ·William Clarke's trustees will lose tlB 
£~500 deposit he planked clown to the Tasmaniau Govemment for the Great Western Railway concession. 
When the option looked like falling· through an Adelaide syudicate paid up the requirecl £10,000, and 
takes over the scheme. Mr. L. C. Agar Wynne was Sir William's chief supporter in this deal, and it was 
intended to send him to London to float the concession into a large company." In the ne:xt week's issue of 
the same journal a letter, signed by Mr. C. L. Nation, one of the shareholders, appeared, which you will 
see read as follows: -

"'"In your edition of the 3rd June a statement is ma.de in regard to the Hobart Railway Co. now in 
liquidation, and also to the advance made by the late Sir William Clarke of £2500, to pay the first deriosit 
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of £2500 to the Tasmanian Government. I must point out" to you that the liquidator of the company 
sold such undertaking and property to Messrs. 0' Dowd and Palmer, of Broken Hill .Chambers, Mel­
boume, for a small sum, and a further sum sufficient to pay that company's debts, including the late Sir 
William Clarke's £2500, M1·. Palmer subsequently went to Adelaide, and sold the same property to an 
Adelaide syndicate on exceedingly good terms, and he then immediately and gratuitously arranged that the 
shareholders in the old company should share proportionately in the interest which they obtained from the 
Adelaide syndicate, so that they will receive exactly the same i11 tetest as if the liquidator had sold directly 
to the syndicate. I think such magnanimous and straightforward action should be made public, instead of 
paragraphs which are absolutely mislending and detrimental to Messrs. O'Dowd and Palmer, who were 
instmmental in obtaining the advance made by the late Sir William Clarke of £2500, and which £2500 is 
absolutely secured," Up to this point, then, you will see how I acted, and how what I tell you isc on firmed 
~M~~ . 
• "' After this matters seemed to be going on swi_m;ningly until Mr. Rymill came to Hobart. To my 

great astonishment, the moment he arrived in Hobart my power in the promotion of the railway was, for a 
time, neutralised, and when I returned to Adelaide I was further astonished tQ find that I was to be 
ignored by the other promoters, they regnrding themselves as the originators, promoters, and everything 
else. After several ver_y disagreeable episodes in Adelaide, I was formally told I was not to go 
·to London to float the company, or as a representative of the provisional company in any way; but, in the 
interests of those shareholders who had throughout trusted me, I went at my own expense. I met Messrs. 
Horn and Bakewell, the attorneys for the provisional company, at the Bank of Adelaide, in London, when 
Mr. W. A. Horn positively and distinctly refused to have anything to <lo with me, notwithstanding the fact 
that 1 was in a position to introduce him to certain people who were able to float the company. 

"' Several months elapsed, when Messrs. Horn an<l Bakewell approached me, asking me to assist 
them in the very difficult task they had undertaken. H avin!): the interests ot those shareholders who had 
all along trusted me at heart, l acceded to the request, and worked with them heart and soul, with the 
result that, notwithstanding the hostility and intense antagonism of certain persons, and with the assistance 
of some firm friends, to whom I am under a deep obligation in the matter, the flotation of tlie company 
was put on a firm footing, and I here wish to state that, though Messrs. Horn and Bakewell misunderstood 
me upon my arrival in London, in consequence of the actions of the Adelaide and Hobart people above 
refened to, they afterwards proved themselves tc, have been as magnanimous and just as any men could be, 
and were most energetic. I would, perhaps, have failed, had it noi been for the very able legal assistance 
given me by Mr. Bakewell, and the knowledge of company affairs geuerally displayed by Mr. Hom, and 
l also wish it to be clearly understood that. I am now working in thorough harmony with my co-directors 
in Adelaide, and, I believe, the whole of the shareholders of the comp,1ny. · Here is a letter, dated the 
5th of the present month, from the Adelaide directors to me, which I wish to have published :- -

"'"Messrs.Horn & Bakewell have both written that you have been of the g1·eatest assistance to 
them in London, and have been mainly instn1me11tal in obtaining underwriters for shares and debentures. 
They have also stated that the scheme of flotation was actually ·asrnred and would have been completed 
in a few days, had not Sir Edward Braddon sent to Loudon certain telegrams at an inopportune·moment 
that prevented the flotation." 

"' I may say with -reference to that letter, that, with one exception, the directors on the London Board 
are some of those who assisted me in London. The Board of Directors is as influential H body as have 
ever been got tog·ether to promote any concern south of the Line. Mr. H emy Tennant is the Chairman. 
He is the late General Manager of the North-Eastern Railway, aud is now a Director of the Company ; 
Chairman of Directors of the York City and County Bank, and Chairman of Directors of the Centml 
London Railway, Company. Then there ure ~I r. Wm. Austin, Chairman of the Hhymney Railway 
Company, which is one of the most "fashionable" rail way stock in Engl~nd, in that it has for years paid 
the highest dividend of any railway company in the old country ; Chairman of the C;_irdiff Coal Company, 
and of several other Companies; Mr. James Craik, Director of the Central Argentine and Southern 
l\1ahratta Railway C,,mpauies, both of which are large dividend-paying concems; and Mr. ·w. Frederick 
Pepper, the sole proprietor of the principal colleries in Yorkshire-the Monk Bretton Colliery Company, 
Barnsley. Tl1e Solicitors are known throughout the world as a firm do_ing the largest business in 
connection with railway companies, namely, .Messrs. Norton, Rose, Norton, and Compan), The engineers 
in England are a firm called "Messr~. Jno. Bnimlees," who also have a world-wide name; while the 
Solicitors for the debenture-holders are Messrs. Bircham, who some years ago acted for the Tasmanian 
Government in a case in England. So you see there is not a dummy name 011 the prospectus, or one that 
will fail to inspire confidence on the pa1·t of investors and all classes; and if we now outain the amending 
concessions we seeh, the Great Western Railway will be a fait accompli at an early date. It is ,a pity that the 
rules and regulations of your Parlinment compel us to go through the usual routine of advertising, &c., on 
account of its beiug a private bill, and so lose a certain amount of valuable time ; but that cannot be helped. 
The Bilhvill be advertised in The 1liercu.ry in a few days, and no time wi1l be lost on ou1· part. 

'" I may f)ay I found that the representatives in London in that matter were probably, through ignorance, 
misrepresenting- the Great Weslem Railway.' 

".Mr. Palmer added :-'You may meution that while in Adelaide last. week I arranged with my co­
directors that I should make extremely reasouable terms with any pt'ospectors who would like to go on to 
the company's blocks. The Govemmen t would uot concede more reasonable terms under their mining 
Acts. ] am iuforme<l that one syndicate lrns been formed iu Adelaide ah·eady, fol' the pu1·pose of p1·0-
specting on the blocks, and another is in course of format.ion. Already some "finds" have been made on 
our line. · 

"' I think I may best answer that by handing you an exl1·act from a letter received from Sir Philip Fysh 
by a Hobart gentlemau, dated June 30, 1889, twenty days after I left London. It is as follows:-' Mr. 
Palmer and his co-operators here did good work, a pe(·pctual strife against great difficulties, removing 
obstacle after obstncle, overcoming object.ions, and planting foith in the venture with such a strong com­
pany of contractors as 'Paulings Limited,' and so eminent a body of directors. Palmer deseryes success,'" 
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1 I 8. "' as that statement made by yon to a Mercury representative ? Yes, some time after I 
came here. 

119. Is such statement correct? Yes. [Letter, Appendix A, read from }\fr. W. E. Dalton 
to "Mr W. H. Palmer, of 8th August, 189!:l, as to flotation being hindered.] 

120. I must take yon back to the beginning of this scheme: what was your connection with 
this scheme from its inception? I was the originator. 

121. When was that? Late in 1B95. 
122. Are you a Director of the Company now? Ye,:, a Director of the present Company. 
12:3. The Bill was passr.d on 26th November, 1896: what steps did you then take to float the 

Company ? I collected all the information that could be obtained in Tasmania anrl summarised it 
in a pamphlet. 

124, Have you the pamphlet? Yes. [Pamphlet produced.] 
12.5. What was done then as to survey? I engaged three surveyors-Burrows, John Brown, 

and Bernard. · 
J 2<->. What initial expenses were there in connection with the survey? They were ont fo1· 

several months. I think the initial expenses in connection with the sni-vey were a bout £4000 or 
£5000. They found and surveyed the two divides-the King "\Villiam Divide and the Humboldt 
Divide-and made a rough trial survey through 

127. Who found that money? The original company found mo,;t of the money. 
_ 128. The Act was passed on 26th November: when did the party start work ? Before I ll~ft 

here, which was in December. 
129. Were you g·oing to England to float the Company? Yes. 
130. What was one of the reasons which prevented you? ThA branch line questions-the 

Emu Bay line. 
131. What had that to do with it? I had to come over here. 
132. Where wern you? At Adelaide, en route for London. 
13:3. What bearing had the Emu Bay branch line on the flotation? It was believed at that 

time that if branch lines were run into :Mount Lyell' without the Emu Bay line mnning to Zeeha,n,. 
that a line connecting Mount Lyell with a port would interfere with our chances of floatin!? the 
railway connecting the Capital with Mount Lyell. 

134, Was that mooted when you first had your scheme brought out? No. 
· 135. ,vhat other su1·veyors were employed on the survey? No others, till the fresh Company 

was formed. 
136. After you had reconstructed the Company? Messrs. Ch1·isp, Duffy, and Griffiths, 
137. How much did they do? They surveyed the line right through. They were enabled to 

go right through without stoppage by the amount of work that had been done by the other 
surveyors,_ who had found the crossings of the various divide,;. . 

138. Have you any idea what was the cost of the survey? About £3q00, £or the survey,_' 
· I would rather allow Mr. Chrisp's evidence on that point to stand as it is. 

139. vVhat money has been expended in the Colony in connection with this scheme ? The 
amount of money I had to pay for debts _of the old company when I took over this Company was 
£7400. £2600 was spent by the old company prior to that on surveys. &c., and of course ·part 
of that £7400 was part of the money that had been spent on the surveys, too. Then there was. 
£10,000 deposit. · The £7400 included £2500 advanced by Sir William Clarke. About £80,000 
has been spent in the Colony, including· the deposit. This does not take into consideration the office 
expenses, but is ·simply the money spent here or deposited. 

140. When you went to England what took place when you arrived? Horn & Bakewell 
said if I could float the Company they would give me a fair show, but on my telling them I could 
introduc~ them to some very important people who would look into the thing, and who rather· 
liked it, they refused to have anything to do with my suggestions at all. I think up to that time 
they had no idea I could introduce them to anybody, and when they found I could they did not 
like losing a share of the profits they would have got for the flotation, if 1 had had no hand in it. 

141. How long did they keep to the intention of floating the Company, apart from you? 
Eight or nine months. _ . 

142. During that time what were you doing? I arranged the whole of my present float 
during that time, and had men ready to step in on the very day they told me I could float. 

143. What did you do then? I sent out £500. · 
144. How? By wire, through the Bank. 

. 145. "\Vhere to? To Adelaide, to carry on the survey here, and continued payments of £500 
monthly during the rest of the time I was in England, until a month before I left. 

146. That was sent out by your people? Yes. 
147. Then during the time Horn & Bakewell were attempting· to float yon were perfectly 

right with yonr men? At times I was perfectly right, anrl at times they were off, becanse, for instance, 
the first firm I introduced them to was quite ready to go on with the scheme at once. Then they 
took the big· Chinese railway on, and were of course unable to take up more, and I had to find 
fresh men. As a matter of fact, on 'three different occasions I had three separate sets of men 
ready to go on with the work. The time that Horn & Bakewell occupied in trying to float made 
some of them go off. 

148. After the matter came into your hand", how di<l you succeed? When it came into my 
r.~~ds 'Ye qad a ratqer awl~ward tin1ei War w~s tal~e<l of between france and England over t~~ 
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!"ashoda affair, and that dt>layed the matter considr.ra bly. Of course people will never find money 
m Eng·land until war has actually commenced. That is a well known fact. When there is 
rumour of war they wait to see what the effect will be. . 

149. I am referring· to the correspondence laid before the House-thern is a paragTaph in 
Sir Philip Fysh's letter to the Premier, dated 17th March, 1899-at that tim2 were yon sending 
ont money? Yes. 

150,-,Vhat was the date when yon _took over the flotation? About t.he 22nd Febrnary, 1~99. 
151. What firms of solicitors are these mentioned in this letter of the Agent-General? 

Messr~. Norton, Bose, Norton, and Company. They are the solicit.ors for the new Company. 
152. And the other solicitors? Messrs. Bircham and Company acted for the debenture under­

writers. 
153. ,vlrnt did they do in regard t0 the prnspectus? They examined it carefully and 

thoroughly, and examined all the reports carefully, and would not let anything go into the 
prospectus that was not vouched for hy documentary evidence. · 

154. A strong Board of Directors was formed? Yes. The £500.000 worth of preference 
shares was subscribed by very strong firm~, including Barclay, Pauling, Erlanger & Co., &c., all 
snbstantial financiers. The £600,000 debentures was all underwritten, with the exception of 
£50.000 that M1·. Hom said he would take. 

155. ,v as that arrang·ed for? Yes, a few clays later. The financiers said it was no use 
hurrying the thing through. Tht>y work on these lines-tht>y underwrite a thing and make them­
selves responsible for it, but expect the public to take it up, and won't pnt anything· on the market 
till the people are in a state of mind to take it up. If the thing had been pressed a little we 
might lrnve got it through, but we agreed to the financier's request. 

156. ViTere you in communication with the Agent-General?. I was in commnnication with 
the Agent-General every day. The Premier did not take the advice of the Agent-General. 

157. [Extract. read, Appendix ,v., from letter of the Agent-General]: ,vhat was the object 
of the Agent-General in writing this? I cannot say. He never spoke to me on the subject of 
any hitch occurring. 

158. What have you to say on the clause about being au advantage to the Colony : I want to 
know how much money it is anticipated would have been brought into the Colony? Everything 
would have been spent~a. million pounds-with the exception of the £200,UOO for material, 
equipment, &c. · 

159. [Telegram, dated 14th April, from Fitzgerald to the .Agent-General, and his reply, was 
read (Appendix Z.) J: Did you know of that telegram being sent? Yes. 

160. How were matters progressing· then? Everything was then practically fixed, 
161. That was about the 14th April? Yes; the time Pearson came into the thing. 
162. [Lette1· from Agent-General to the Premier, dated 14rh April, read (Appimdix AA.)]: 

What alteration is that mentioned? I expect about the 60 lbs. rail, because l did not consider 
43 lbs. was sufficient for heavy traffic. 

163. Is that agTeed to in the contract? Yes. 
164. The rails will be 60 lbs. instead of 43 lbs.? Yes. 
165. By tl,e CJ,airman. - What do you mean by "agreed to in the contract"? I mean the 

contract sig·ned by M ess1·s. Pauling & (' o . 
. 166. B11 Lltlr. Butler.-Here is another letter, Appendix B., written by the AgPnt-General, dated 

20th Ap1·il, 1899, with reference to local expenditure, [Letter read.] ,vhat have you to say t,, that? 
Sir Philip Fysh interviewed the contractors at my request, or rather alhwed them to interview him, 
and he told them that the curves and gTades could be used as often as the contractors liked, and 
they then asked him if he would wire to ask if this was the case. I knew why the contractors did· 
it, although the Agent-General did not. Mr. Pauling- asked me to allow him to test the G,:Jvern­
ment by asking· a simple question, to see whether they were hostile or friendly. I said, "You can 
do as you think fit." He brought me this telegram and got Sir Philip Fysh to send it. l said," \Yhy 
did not yon ask about some clause on which there was some doubt?" He said, "That w11uld not 
answer the p111·pose; they would then have· perfect rig·ht to answer and say there was a don bt." I 
said, "Mr. Pauling, I do not see how they can ans,~er in any other way than 'Yes.'·" Pauling 
said he had dealt with 83 different Governments in different parts of the world, and that the 
simpler the question and the easier it is to answer, the more easily the hostile Government puts its 
foot in it. 

167. Was there any question about lapsed rights then? No. A wire had been sent Home 
to Sir vV. Perceval by the Government of this Colony saying that the plans hacl been deposited. 
Then another wire was sent Home that the first block of land hacl been chosen by the Govern­
ment fixing tl1e position of all the blocks, so that there was no question of lapsed rights in 
England. There was a question in Tasmania some months before, when the Government wrote 
and saicl the rights for the lancl had lapsed, ancl om Company wrote ancl said that they hacl not 
lapsed, and that they had had the best advice on the subject. 

168. Diel the Government's subsequent acts lead you to believe they had given up that 
contention? The fact that the Government, after saying the rights hacl lapsed, chose the first 
block of la.ncl, made me think they hacl found out they hacl macle a mistake. 

169. You went on with your flotation under the impression that the concessions were still 
alive? Of course. Reacl Sir Edward Clarke's opinion on that point. Another thing that made 
t1s thinl-: the rights were all right W(l,S tµat telegrams were being sent fret~uently to the Government 
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on other points in connection with the concessions, and being answered. Why should the 
Government answer these points as to grades and curves and other matters if the rights had 
lapsed ? When the wire came to ns that the rights hacl lapE>ecl, it se.emecl so utterly a,bsurcl that 
we could no longer contest the view of the financiers that the Government were hostile. 

170. Did you get information that surveys were being accepted? Yes; every time a sm·vey 
was sent in a notification was sent to the Agent-General or Mr. Bakewell. 

171. Was money still bein!l· spent? Yes. 
172. Now, as to the last part of this letter, with reference to the contract being signed-was 

the contract ready for signature on 20th April? Yes. 
[Telegram, Appendix C., read from Agent-General re Clause 15, dated 19th April, 1899.J 
173. Is that the telegram you have been speaking· about? Yes. 
174. And the reply you got from the Premier to that telegram sent to the Agent-General, 

mentioning· Sections 15, 16, and 17 being read together-what was the result of that? The result 
was that I asked the Agent-General to send anothe1· wire before showing that answer to Paulin/:,", 
asking the Premier to modify his opinion. This was because it was opposite to the Agent-General's 
statement to Pauling. 

175. Two days subsequent to this a telegram was sent by the Agent-General to the Premier. 
[Telegram read, Appendix F. J ,v as that rnnt at your request? Yes. 

176. The reply [ Appendix G.] received, dated 22nd April, do you remember it? Yes. 
177. Was it communicated to the contractors? Yes ; they refused to sign the contract, 

and did not go on with it for some days afterwards. 
178. Diel they subsequently sign? Yes ; I arranged to get £200,000 more of debentures. 

to indemnify them against any loss that might arise from the stringent regulations as to curves 
and grades. If they had to put in anything more on account of the stringency of the engineer's 
supervising, the £200,000 was to meet extra expenses. 

179. Was it added to the contract? No ; It was held in trust, to be at the call 0£ the 
contractors in the event 0£ any extra work to be done. · • 

180. That was on 28th April; the Agent-General writes and says-" The cont1;act has been 
signed?" It was provisionally signed; that is correct. It was a provisional signature pending 
the :final settling 0£ some of the clauses; but has since been unconditionally signed, 

181. The Agent-General refers in his letter to "such help as I should have gladly g·iyen this 
project, &c."-Did the Agent-General afford you assistance? Yes. 

182. Was it of any value to you? Very valuable. 
183. As to the Ag·ent-General accepting a position on the directorate-had ·the money been 

subscribed before he accepted the position? Everything was absolutely finished before the Agent­
General was asked to come on the Board; and it was then done out of compliment to him, in 
recognition for the amount of work he had done. He never was spoken to about it till the whole 
·of the capital was subscribed. · 

184. While he was helping you to float the Company in this manner, was the question under 
consideration? Never in any way. 

185. Then his name was never held out to the public as director while it was in course of 
flotation ? No ; Albert Vicars was one of the directors at the time. He was a very busy man, 
and said he would stand down if Sir Philip Fysh would take his seat. P1·ior to this his name 
was not mentioned, and was not used to assist in flotation, except that he allowed himself to be 
referred to whenever anybody liked. He took every possible trouble to assist us. 

186. Here is a letter [Appendix J.J from the Ag·ent-General, dated 5th May, 18!:J9, as to 
the staff for construction purposes leaving-was that so? Yes. 

187. Did Sir Edward Clarke have the proclamations laid before him showing that the Govern-
ment had selected their blocks? Yei.. · · 

188. With reference to the instructions for Sir Philip Fysh to withdraw from the directorate,­
did that militate ag·ainst the flotation? Yes; the underwriters at once said the Government knew 
something of the scheme that was hidden from them. 

189. Was it the opinion of the financiers in London that the Government and the Company 
should be in complete accord ? Yes, of course; no contractor will work under a hostile Government. 

190. (Reading extract from the letter as to three-quarters of a million being spent in 
Tasmania), .. -was that a large estimate? £800,000 would have found its way to Tasmania. 

191. What was the cause of the stoppage of the flotation ? 'l'wo causes: the telegram about 
the land concessions having lapsed after the Government had chosen the first block, and after 
having answered the telegrams we had sent on other matters : and then, immediately on top of 
that, refusing to allow Sir Philip Fysh to act as director. Both these matters were in the same 
telegram. 

192. What effect had the telegram about the curves and grades?· I had to get another 
£200,000 worth of capital. 

193. What opinion had Pauling·? 'l'hat the Government were distinctly hostile.· But, as I 
had guaranteed them that the Governmrmt were not hostile, and that. it was only a little extra 
care on the part of the 'fasmanian Government, they said " You will have to prepare for it." I then 
suggested raising the £200,000 extra debentures. I think, had it not been for the other telegrams 
later, the idea of hostility would have passed uut of everybody's mind, because the fact of our 
being prepared to raise the extra moner would prove that we guaranteed that the Govern~ellt were 
not hostile1 · ' 
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194. There is a forther telegram from the Agent-General, dated 11 th May, 1899, abo1it the 
rails? Yes, the rails are to be 60 lbs. instead of 43 lbs. The fish-bolts are exceptionally go11d 
and strong·, with nearly three time1- the amount of irnn i11 tlwm that there is in the Tasmanian 
bolts. The fish-bolts are bolted on to the bottom of the rail, and to the bridge of the rail. 

195. And as to ballast? There is more ballast. The Government amount is a little over 16 
yards, and the contract in England is for 22 yards to the chain, so it is more than one-third more . 

. [Le~ter rei\<l ?f 12th May, 1899, from the Agent-General, as to the statements in the prnspectns 
bemg strictly w1tlun the reports. J · 

196. vVhat was done-did Sir Philip Fysh verify this? He had taken every report and read 
them beside the prospectus, I reading· the prospectus and he reading· the reports, and he check.eel 
each report with the prospectus. 

[Letter, Appendix K., 1·ead from the Agent-General, dated 19th May, to the Premier.] 
197. ,vho are Coates & Co.? Coates & Co. are the sub-nnderwriters. The principal under­

writers were Barclay & Co., and Erlang-er & Co., the Anglo-American Debenture Corporation, and two 
insurance companies. Coates & Co. were the sub-underwriters. They are broking underwriters. 
Their name would appP-ar 011 the prospectus as broker;; fo1· the Company. They made no difforence 
to the matter of underwriting, except as to relieving the other financiers of some of their 
responsibility. Sir Philip Fysh means that he was pleased that we did not try to run Coate;; & Co. 
into a corner by misstating anything·. · 

198. The Agent-General had taken the trouble to inform himself as to the truth of the 
prospectus? He not only personally informed himself, but he asked us if we would allow him to 
interview l\'Iessrs. Bircham and Co. on the matter, and to get them to look into it for him as 
Agent-General for the Colony, and he said he would not care to assist us or g·o into the thing 
if he we1·e not perfectly clear on every point. He had faith in Bircham and Co. If we paid 
Bircham and Co, to examine everything· for him he would be more satisfied than if he examined 
the matters by himself. . 

199. Did the people in England consider the Government was showing a hostile front? They 
all stated so openly. They said the Government evidently knew something about the line that we 
did not know. I disagree with Sir Philip Fysh, that a11ythi11g could act as an antidote to it. 
Nothing could hitve made anybody believe that the Premier was uot hostile to the Company. The 
impression then was that thH Government was absolutely hostile. 

200. And about the message to The Times-the Tasmanian Government declining to allow 
Sir Philip to join the Board-was Sil' Philip Fysh's nanie puJ:,licly placed on the prospectus? 
No. It was on the prospectus shown to the financiers and the directors. • 

201. Was there any necessity to. publicly state that he was not allo1ve<l to join the Board? 
No. As we had got over all the other difficulties in regard to flotation, all the people there r~garded 
it as being the only move possible to kuock the thing out again. Of course, that is only an opinion, 
This happened lR days after Sir Philip Fysh had g·une off the Board. . 

202. You remember later on a cable was received from London to the Premier-"·Palmer en 
route to Tasmania," dated 16th June, I 899-why was it considered necessary for you to come out 
here? Because it was made apparent that it would be impossible to float in England without 
coming· out and re-arranging·. . · · · 

203. What is the method of flotation ?-first of all a contract is signed-is it then you g·et 
the capital underwritten? Of course the underwriters will not underwrite anything· unless they 
know that when the amount of underwriting is done they will uot be called upon to subscribe more 
than the contract price. · 

204. By the Chairman.-How are the contractors able to form an idea as to the t.!OSt of the 
work to be done? They get a survey showing· the curves, grades, and distances. If the survey 
is practically st.raig·ht., it shows there is no heavy work for that portion ; if it is crooked 01· twisty, 
it shows there is some very heavy work. The grades show what the amount of work is likely to he. 
Up to 30 miles sufficient work had been done to know what it would be like for that distance. 
They had my statements that Mr. Chrisp was to be relied upon, and that the first 30 miles was a 
fair average of the whole line. 

205. By ])fr. Butler.-Are not Pauling and Co. one of the most experienced firms of con­
tractors f 'l'hey are supposed to have built a greater length of railways than any other co11tractors 
in England. They have built nearly all the railways in South Africa. 

206. Here is a letter from Brunlees, dated 8tli June, 1899-did yon receive that letter after 
you came to Tasmania? Yes. Mr. Bmnlees is ex-President of the Institute of Civil Engineers. in 
England. 

207. [Letter read, Appendix N.] Is this g·entleman connected with the flotation? He is 
one of the underwriters, and eng·ineer to the new Company. 

208. So he is competent to speak about the matter? Yes. 
209. Does the Premier's name appear in the Great N orthem 01· Emn Bay Company as a 

director [Appendix 0.J? Yes. 
210. Here is another letter r Appendix P.] from Norton, Rose, Norton, & Co., dated 5th 

June, 1899, to Mr. Bakewell-did you see this letter? Yes. 
211. Who are Norton, Rose, Norton, & Co. ? The larg·est firm of solicitors in Eng·land, and 

solicitors to the new Company. . . 
:212i Was that letter forwarded to you? · Yes1 
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213. By the Clwirman.-This letter of Bmnlees was handed you in England, was it not? 

No, it was sent after me. I left Lond.on on the 5th June. 
214. By Mr. Butler.-[ Head letter, Appendix Q,., from Mr. Edwin Sloper, dated 9th June, 

1899, lo :Mr. Palmer]. Who is Mr. Sloper? • He is late manager of Stuckey's Bank. He is 
now in rather a larg·e way of financing himself, and is adviser to moneyed people. His opinion is 
entitled to some weight. 

213. In connection with that paragraph about fixing rates, did you apply to the Government 
to fix the rates? Tbe late Minister of Lands, Mr. Miles, agreed to do so. Wben M1·. Dobson· 
and I asked Mr. Fillinger and Mr. Back to fix the rates, the latter said it was •an impossibility. 
As tt railway man for over 20 years, I know it. is not inipossible. It should be done at once. vVhy 
should we be uncertain as to the rates we have to pay for our goods over the Government line? 

216. In what light was that action of the Government regarded in London? They said we 
should have to put a clause in the Act to cause the Goverument to go to arbitration. They said 
there must be hostility, or the rate would be fixed. The railway people pointed out that in perhaps 
30 or 40 cases where railways were being built as extensions to other companies all cbarg·es were 
fixed at once. Suppose you had a thousand bags of wheat to send from here to Glenora, would 
not Mr. Back sav what he would take them for? 

217. Mr. B"ack's opinion is not borne out by these people in Eng·land, then? No, it is not. 
218. Here is a letter [Appendix R.J from Walford Brothers, & Co. to Mr. Bakewell-who 

are they ? 'l'hey ai·e brokers on the London Stock Exchang·e. 
219. Did you see that letter? Yes; it was forwarded to me. 
220. And Ellis and Co.-who are they? They are the brokers of Barclay's Bank and 

other banks-in vesting brokers. 
[Letter from Ellis and Co., Appendix S., to Mr. Palmer read.] 
221. Was that letter received by you? Yes. With that should be read a letter fro·m 

Stubbings, who is Barclay's other agent. . 
[Letter read, Appendix T., from Stubbings to Bakewell, dated 19th June, 1899.J 
222. Who is Stubbings? He was attorney for the Bank of New Zealand, and agent for 

Barclay and Co. 
223. Was that letter received by you? Yes. 
[Letter read from H. E. vVarner and Co., Appendix U., to Mr. Bakewell, dated 7th June, 

1899.J 
-;224. Who are W arnei· and Co.? They are solicitors for the Bradford Cotton Combine. 
225. Did you receive this letter from Mr. Bakewell? Yes. 
[Re.ad extract from letter of Mr. Tennant, Appendix V., of 22nd June, 1899.J 
226. Who is Mr. Tennant? · He is Chairman of Direct.ors of the Central London Railway. 

He was General Manager of the North-Eastern Bailway. He is Chairman of Directors of the 
York City and County Barik. He is a man of 75 years of ·ag·e, but does not look that ·ag;e. He 
was General Manager, till last year, of the North-Eastern Railway. He is chairman of our 
English Company. 

227. You have a Bill in your hands containing the proposed amendments to the Great 
Western Railway 4-ct-who suggested those amendments? Messrs. Norton, Rose, Norton, and Co., 
who instructed Mr. Buckley (who is one of the most eminent Larristers in the world in Railway 
Companies' business), Sir Edward Clarke, aud Mr. Kil'by, to advise us what amendments we require~ 

228. Were these amendments suggested by these g·entlemen after consultatio11? Nearly all 
of them. · 

229. We will go through each amendment, and ask the reasons for each-what are the 
reasons for the first amendment we have, that is to say, that the plans, specifications, and sections 
have been lodged with the Minister, who has approved of the selection, &c.? That has to be 
slightly altered, I think. The whole of the plans of a survey of the line and part of the specifi­
catious and sections are in. 

230. How long did the survey take? Seven months. lt is more than an ordinary flying· 
survey. The actual bearing,;, distances, and grades have been taken. The whole of the line laid 
down is laid down from an actual and perfect survey. It is only a flying· survey, in that it is not tt 

permanent survey. It is not what we usually call a flying survey, but an engineer would call it 
a flying survey. It has proved itself so correct for 30 miles that the permanent survey ha3 
followed it exactly up to that 30 miles. . 

231. The second clause here, " Promoters have made the deposits mentio11ed in Section 
171 "-what is the reason for this-is that required by the people iu England? Yes, it is an 
absolute faet, because the Government could not have given us permission to cease work unless ,rn 
had been doing bond fide work. · · · 
· 232. Fr,,m these .letters that have been read, did the people in England require it to be stated 

in the Act that you h,ave complied with the Act so far? Yes. 
· 233. We now come to Sectio11 4 as to words, " First day of J anuai-y, 1900,"-is that to 

extend the time of the primary lease? It is g·iving 4 years further. . 
:234. Section 5-in place of the words "for a further term not exceeding "-please explain 

that? That is to malrn it clear that, proviJed tliat we carry out our part of the contract, tha 
leases shall lie permanent. The clause says if the land is actually occupied. If we occupy it, then 
we have the right to occupy it for a further successive terLU. 

235. Section 5, sub-section 1v ., clause B? It has been commenced and continued to th.e 
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satisfaction of the Governor in Council up to the time the Governor in Council allowed tis to cease 
work, therefore that clause is unnecessary. It shonld be "if the construction of the railway is not 
' re-corn mencecl ' " 

236. Section 15, after the words" Three foet six inches"? That seems to me to be rather 
r.uriously worded. Clau~e 15 wants alte1·ing. It seems that the Promoters have discretion for more 
than the curves and grades by what is proposed here. 

237. By the Chairman.-vVhat does your Company mean by these words? That we may 
use the curves and grades as often as we like. 

238. By llfr. Butle1·.-Section 33: the reason for that please? That ag·ain is badly worded. 
,v e are compelled to give the Government rm111ing powers over our line, and if we do not agree to 
terms they can g·o to arbitration; wheraas the Government may g·ive us rnnning powers over their 
line, and we have no arbitration clause if they fix high rates. 

239. \'\7 as that sul);gested by the English capitalists ? Yes. 
240. Section 42-is that to g·ive the full term? Yes; it is to keep it in conformity with the 

rest of the Act. 
241. vVhat was the necessity for putting in the word "plant"? It is now known that the 

r.ontract is let for a locomotive line instead of electric line, and the suggestion of a great many 
people in England is that that clause enables the Government to take over the line without 
taking over the plant. That is the opinion of experts. 

242. Section 83-'fhat is as regards land concessions ? Yes. vVe contend that we have the 
rig·ht to select our land and mark it now. Clause 83 enables us to acquire the right if we do certain 
things-which we have doue. Having done the things, we want it put very rlearly that we have 
acquired that right. As there is no limit to the time, we want it to be said that we have actually 
acquired the right. vVe have deposited the money, and commenced work, and done everything 
that is required. 

243. tichedule l, paragraph 2, under the heading" description "-who ~ug·gested these words? 
Mr. Miles, the late :Minister for Lands. 

244. ,vhat was his opinion as to the meaniug· of the original Act? He said he would have 
taken the contract himself~ and used the curves and grades as often ~ls he liked. He said the 
Act really meant that. 

245. Section 5-Timber-why did you want this amendment made? The opinion of the 
English counsel is that, althoug·h we may use timber for ourselves on our own blocks, we have not the 
right to send any timber off our blocks for sale. vVe should have that right. 

246. Section 6-as to prospectors for minerals? 'l'bat is entirely for the protection of the 
people looking for minerals. That if we lose our rights in any way the people who are prospecting 
shall not lose theirs. 

247. It is more in the interests of prospectors than in yours? Yes. We want to see that the 
people who prospect our land are protected from being· ''jumped.'' 

248. Section 7-branch lines? vVe must be able to connect with the railwav lines that connect 
with Macquarie Harbour-either the Mount Lyell line or the North lVIount Lyell line-so as to 
be uble to commence at three different points. We waut to be able to connect with the big popn• 
lation of Gormanston. 'l'hen, of course, the reason for wanting to connect with the coal-mines is 
apparent. The timber supply ou the W e~t Coast is getting· very rapidly denuded. It is difficult to 
supply the mines with timber for fuel, and we know we can deliver coal from the coal-mines along 
our line, at a price that will supply the whole field with fuel. 

249. You have come frum England by the instructions or at the in;;tigation of the financiers 
to obtain certain amendments? Yes. 

250. If you get these amendments is there any chance of the railway being carried through? 
I think it will be carried throug·h with these amendments pure and simple. I think it is possible it 
could be g·ot through. To make the flotation an absolute. certainty we must g·et some form ot 
g·uarantee from the Government for a small percentage on half the cost of the line, say, on the 
debentures alone. There are three different methods proposed, one by Sir Philip Fysh, that the 
Government should take £200,000 worth of 5 °lo debentures. That would secure the flotation 
absolutely. 

251. What guarantee lrn,ve they for payment of their internst? No guarantee, except 
security over the whole line. The clebeutme-holders get security over the whole liue. The 
second proposal was it guarantee by the Govemment of 3 per cent. on the £600,000 worth of 
debentures, but the late Minister of Lands, suggested 2 per cent. ; the third proposa,l, made by 
one of the financiers at home, who was prepared to find the whole amount on this proposal, was, 
that the Govemment be secured 5 per cent. on the whole of the debentnres, the smne as the 
English c:tpitalists-the Government to receive 5 per cent., and guarantee the English capita­
lists 3 per cent.; and thus the G:)vennnent wonld make £12,000 per nmrnm. The G-overmnent, 
having a mortgage over the railway, could take the rnilway at the £600,000, if the 5 per cent. 
were not paid. A.s security they would have the whole of the railway and land rights ancl 
other rights. As the Government wonld guarantee 3 per cent. on lmlf the cost of construction, 
I wish to show that the cost is extremely light as compared with other Australian contractors' 
tenders; it is £Hl0,000 less than Baxter and Sadler's tender. Biixter tenders for the contract 
at £6000 a mile, we finding rails and fastenings. Rails and fastenings come to about £140,000 
when delivered on the line. Then, they do not find interest during construction, which comes to 
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another £50,000 per annum. You will see that their tender is about £160,000 n:iore than ·Paul­
ing's contract price ; I wish to point this out to show that the Government would not have to 
find interest on the total cost of the line, but only on half of it. . 

252. What about preference shares ? The undenvriting of these stands. 
253. What would the Colony gain by that guarantee? They gain £12,000 a year. If they 

take 5 per cent. and we get the money at 3 per cent., they get the difference. 
254. By M1·. Bmdley.-You suggest the idea of asking the Government to g·uarantee a 

certain amount-in view of the very large acreage of land under the first Act do you think it 
reasonable to ask this ? Considering the Government absolutely blocked the flotation, anything 
that does not injure the Government is a fair thing for the Government to do. 

255. This large acreage was given at the time to make up anything in lieu of that? The 
Government blocked the thing when we had it floated. You know the difficulty of resuscitating 
a scheme. · 

256. The question of getting the Government guarantee-is it vital? It may be and may 
·not be. I cannot say whether it is vital or not. We had the thing done, and the people who 
did it ask now for a guarantee of interest on half the cost of the railway at a low rate. It is a 
sort of proof that the Government are genuine in their statement that they are friendly. · ,v e 
are spending over a million, and are only asking for a guarantee really of 2 per cent. on half that, 
or are offering to give the Government 5 per cent. if they like to guarantee 3, they taking a 
mortgage over the line and all other concessions we have got, and can foreclose if we fail to pay 
them the 5 per cent. This is to prove to the English people that we are working together. 

257. By the Chairmaii'.-Assuming that you get this Bill, when do you expect to have the 
railway finished ? Within two years. When I left England the financiers said. they would 
find the whole of the money on the lines of the third proposal. It would only require a wire £nm 
me to England to get the whole thing fixed np. 

258. Under the original Act you had five years from that date? November, 1896 ?-Yes. 
259. Since that time you have had the five years altered-to six-yon have now altered the 

commencement of the Act to first of January next? vV e do not want that; we want three 
years from the commencement of January next. It would be unfair to the Colony. . 

260. In the amended Act you speak of starting work in August-what have you to i;:ay 
to something added of this kind: That from the first of August you shall expend in the 
employment of labour so much per month, say £3000 .a month for the first three months, and 
thereafter £10,000 a month? I do not see that there will be any objection to something of that 
kind, but consider £1000 per month for the first three months would be enough. . 

Mr. Butler to the Chairman.-ln view of these letters that have been read, perhaps it would 
be better not to hamper the promoters with restrictions. The letter from ]Hr. Tennant shows that 
the Company have been hampered enough at present .. 

At 5·15 P.M. the Committee adjourned till 2·30 P.M. on Friday. 

TuESbAY, 24'I'H OcTo:Bim. 

MR. PALMER'S Examination continued. 

261. By the Chairman.-Mention has been made of Sir Edward Clarke's opunon lAppen-
dix Bn.J-do you produce it? Yes. . 

262. Can you remember what were the facts on which Sir Edward Clarke was asked to advise? 
I would recommend you to see lVIessrs. Norton, Ros·e, & Norton's questions, and the opinion. 
The facts are attached to the opinion. . . 

2o3. Do you know whether or not the plans, specifications, and sections have been deposited 
with the Minister of Lands? 'l'hey have been deposited for twenty miles. 

164. I mean for the rail way ? 'l'he Act ·says we can deposit the plans in portions. . 
265. But is not that working· plans ? 'l'bey arn the working plans I am speaking of.. Plan&, 

specifications, and sections, are working plans. . .· 
2fi6. Clause 17 says, "Before the Promoters shall commence to construct the railway they s.11:all 

deposit with the Minister copies of the working· plaus and sections"? It g·oes on to say, "proviC:ed 
they can do it in portions." . 

267. I am referring to section 83-" Upon deposit of the plans, specifications, and sections ?f 
the said railway," &c.-my question is: Have the plans, specifications, aud sections of the said 
railway been deposited? "As herein before provided"-Yes. . 

268. Do. you still thiuk it is necessary to alter the"1)reamble at all-you propose to alter 1t and 
say "whereas portions,'' &c.? 1 think it is unnecessary. I was going to speak to you on that 
point. 

269. Have any of the blocks been surveyed? No; if they hacl to be surveyed it would have. 
been mentioned in the Act. They are to be marked out on paper. 

270. You i;aid in your evidence that a wire had been sent home by the Government to Sir '\V, 
Perceval, saying that the plans had been deposited-have you a copy? No. 

271. Did you see it? I saw the wire, 
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272. Why did you ask in this Bill for the rig-ht to miu;k out on pa,per yotir seven bloci-:s? To 

make it distinctly clear that marking out on paper was intended-to show the intention of the Act. 
273. If you do not mark them on the land will it not be difficult for prospectors on Crown. 

lands to deterwine whether or not they are trespassing on your blocks, and liable to the penalty of 
£20? No. The whole of the country has been surveyed by trig·onometrical survey, and anybody 
who takes up a block of land can get his position fixed immediately by observing a trig·ono­
metrical station. 1 discussed that matter with Mr. Chric;;p after leaving· the room together the other 
day, and he agreed that it was very easy to fix the position exactly. 

274. In actual practice, supposing a prospector went out, would he know whether he was on 
Crown land or on yours? If he 1vere on our land he could have his block on the same terms from 
us as from the Government, thernfore it makes no difference who he gets it from. ,v e give land 
on precisely the same terms as the Government, plus a royalty of 2½ pei· cent. on such profits. 

275. What assurance has a prospector that you will do that? We will put it into the clause 
in the Bill. I have the written consent of my co-directors. 

276. Does the Committee understand that you would offer no objection to a clause being put 
that prospectors could take up land on your sectio11s on the same terms as they get it from t.he 
Gornrnment? Precisely. It would be the same terms, but subject to our Act. We have to pay 
royalty to the Government. We do ~ot charge more rent than the Government charge. 

277. When did you al'l·ive in Eng·land to start the flotation of the Company? On the ] 9th 
February. 

278. What year? 1898. 
279. Then, you tell us that eight or nine months were lost, and nothing do·ne, owing to a 

dispute between you and Messrs. Horn and Bakewell, your co-directors? Hardly a dispute. They 
held a power of attorney, and I held no right in England at all, except that I went to watch the 
interests of shareholders. · · 

280. Then, subsequently the flotation was further delayed by the threatened war between 
England and France? The flotation was delayed by that.· 

281. Do I understand that it was not till the 22nd February this year that you took over the 
flotation? I assisted Mess1·s. Hom and Bakewell for tlu·ee or four months before that; I was 
working with them when the Fashoda matter occurred. 

282. And you beg·an then independently? The whole matter was placed in my hand~, but 
they assisted me and worked with me. · 

283. You were in treaty with Pauling· & Co. in the first instance? Yes. 
284. And owing to their not agreeing to the weig·ht of rails, all negotiatio1is we1·e off? Yes. 
285. Then you communicated with Sir. vVheatman Pearson? Yes. 
286. Did they take it up? They agreed to take it up on worse terms than Pauling. I told 

Pauling they were acting stupidly in not giving· way, and that Sir. VVheatman Pearson was willing 
to take the matter through. 'l'hey then sa,id that they would take the matter up again if Sir 
,vheatman Pearson voluntarily withdrew, or that they would stand in with him in the contract, 
but what private arrangements were made hetween them 1 do not know. Ultimately, however, 
Pauling took up the contract. 

287. Are you agreeable to a provision obliging you to have the railway completed by January, 
1902? Oh no-January, 1903. We cannot start much before August, and must be allowed 
2 years and 6 months from then, bL1t I do not think it will take that time. I thiHk we shall 
probably start in January, 1900, if we get a Government guarantee, as suggested. It is a tedious 
matter getting these_ thing·s fixed up, and one must not be too short of tiri1e. 

_28~. You are agreeable to the Act compelling you to put in rails of not less than 60 lbs. instead 
of 43 lbs? Yes. 

· 289. And ballast 1760 cubic yards, instead of 1330? Yes. 
290. Sect.ion 42.-Why do you want that amendment you propose as to striking out in the 

original Act the reference to electrical works? Because you can put in a clause if you like to say 
it is a steam railwa.v, and only a steam railway. Steam railway people and electric railway people 
are totally distinct, and those who are co11nected with steam railways do not, as a rule, like to have 
anything to do with electricity. 
· 291. Is it your interition to use steam ? Yes. 

292. vVill you ha.v.e any electric works? Ye_s; but not in connection with the railway-just 
for lighting, &c. · 

293. You do uot want to:oblige the Government, on resumption, to take this over? I do not 
think so; if it pays us it will pay them. 

294. Is that-the only electric work yon will have? Ye~, in connection with the railway. 
The people who are in charg·e of this afli1ir in Lo~don are all steam rnilway people, and it makes it 
clearer to them what will be required. · 

295. "'ill the use of steam make any difference to the· water you will require? \Ve shall 
require the same amount of water because we want to supply the mines with electricity. ,v e 
would form a separate Company for that, apart from the-Railway Company. \.Ye wish to generate. 
electricity for the manufacture of chemicals, &c. 

296. Do I understand the contract price is one million and five thousand? One million and 
seventeen thousand for building the railway, apart from the money it will take to buy laud through 
which the railway will run, and the wharfage and other matters which the original Uompany have 
to find. 
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297. Is there much private land to g·o through? I think there are about twenty miles at this 

eud before we leave the private land. I am not qni!A snre, bnt J\fr. Chrisp',; plan shows it. 
298. The Airent-GenEral, in writing to 1he Colony on 19th May, 1899, says," The price of'the 

contract is £1,005,000, but the originaf company is to find wharfage accommonation "-wherf:l? 
In Hobart. 

299 . .--\nd "pmchase of all land "-does that include land in Hobart? Yes. 
300. What i,:; the f'hare capital of the company? · £1,400,000. 
301. Then there are debentures beyond that? £600,000 beyond. ,v e have the right to go 

up to £800,000 under the articles of association. 
302. That £200,000 ·over and above the £600,000-was that for tlrn purpose of meeting· the 

question of curves and grades? Yes. 
303. vVho are Coates and Hanson? Coates, Son, and Company. . 
304. The Agent-General says J\fr. Hanson, of Coates and Hanson, has called on him? Yeil. 
305. Did that firm undertake to raise the £600,000 clebenturPS? They undertook to take the 

underwriting off the hands of the people who had underwritten; they were sub-underwriters. 
306. Who are Coates and Son?. 'fhe same people. Coates, Son, and Company it is, really : 

Mr. Hanson is a partnei·. . 
307. Have you put in a letter from Jackson and Prince, in which they say Coates stated they 

positively cannot entertain the debentnres, &c.? Yes; that was after the telegrams ·were sent by 
the Premier to Sir Philip Fysh. 

308, What portion of the £600,000 debentures were Coates and Son and the Clydesdale Bank 
going to raise? _- They were for the whole of the underwriters. 

309. ,vho are Ellis and Co.? Brokers for Barclay and Co.'s Bank-:-investing brokers. 
310. In another letter, they say, "Barclay a!ld Co. are willing to underwrite £150,0_90 

debentures on the terms mentioned by you~did that include the Government guarantee? 1\ o, 
certainly not, _ 
· 311. In the letter froin Norton and Co. it is said that the 1'igl}t of the Company to the l'aq.d 
rp.ust be put in language beyond all question, and that ~t clause has been settled by counsel in 
England for this purpose-which clause is that? The ameudme11t to Clause 83. 

312. 'fo what extent are Norton and Co. i11terest~d in the flotation-will their withdrawal 
1;eriously affect the debenture;;? It will stop them-that is, as far as their clients are qoncerned-
and if the fact became public property, it may stop it throughout England. . _ · . 

313. Who are their clients, except those you mentioned? Barclay and Co., Coates_, Earing 
Brothers, au cl. all the railway pe_ople. 

314. In Norton and Co.'s letter they say, "There must be an absolute and unalteraLle 
obligation on the part of the Government to make certain :i.nnual payment of intere~t on bon~s 
wi_thout any clain1 on the Company for repayment, except out of smplus profits,"-what bonds do 
the~ mean? _Guarantee bonds. They have given way to the extent of the Government not 
havmg any claim on the _Company for repayment, except out of !'urplus profits. lt has· been 
pointed out to them that if the Government guarantee anything on the liQe the _Goverrrment mus_t 
have a security over the line the same as any other mortgagee. Although they wrote that. letter 
they gave way, and accepted the proposal that the Government would receive 5 per cent. and 
guarantee 3 per cent. _ · 

315. Who are Warner and Co.? A firm of solicitors; cotton combine people. 
316. Is l\'Ir. Bakewell a lawyer too? Yes. _ 
317 .. Is h.e a co-director? No; he holds a power of attomey. 

· 318. He represented the Company? Yes. -
~19. What opinion did he give as to your rights aR to the seven blocks of land? That- they 

wt!re mtact. . . _ _ . 
320. What did Warner and Co. mean in_ their letter of June, 1899, when they wrote to Mr. 

Bakewell, '' We note you have come to the conclusion 1 hat. the land grants are not in order "? 
They came to that conclusion on account of the Government having· sent the wires before referred 
to. They took it for granted that Mr. Bakewell had come to the same conclusion; M1·. ;Bakewell 
never did come to that conclusion. · 

· 321. They say in the same letter, "It was only comparatively recently you were able to make 
a clear arrangement with Pauling & Co. to do the work," -w bat delayed t.hat arrangement? 

_ The Premier's telegrams, entirely. · 
3:22. You say Mr. Sloper is late manager of Stuck.ey's Bank-is his opiriion as to the 

likelihood of flotation reliable and valuable? I should thi1ik f'O; he is a very able financier. 
323. In his lette1· he says there is no prospect of getting the Company through without a 

Government guarantee--do you agree to that? Not entirely. As far as his particular clients are 
concerned, I have no doubt be is correct. At the same time] think it is just possible we may get 
the Company through other financiers. , 

· 324. Sloper, Norton, Coates, Ellis, the Clydesdale Bauk, Barclay & Co., all seem to absolutely 
depend upon this guarantee-do you think the Government guarantee is vital? Yes, as far as 
those financiers are concerned. 

325. Why ~id_you not inrlude a provision in your Bill for a Government guarantee? Because 
some people advised me to wait before bringing these letters forward. _ _ _ 

~29. How man! branch lines a1·e you asking leave to construct? Three1 
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327. Are the coal mines you refer to at Hamilton and Lake St. Clair? Yes; a11d the 

third proposed branch is to connect with Gorrnanston oi· Qucenstown. 
328. To w horn do they now belong? The Lake St. Clair one i,; Govt'rnme11t prope1-ty. I 

think it has been applied for by Mr. Howard \Vrig·ht, but nothing done to it. 
329. Has your Company secured any property in them? No. 
330. Have you any information as to their extent and value? The Hamilton one, we have. 
331. Can you tell us about the Hamilton one? It is a very large one. According to Mr. 

M ontg·omery's report it extends for hundreds of acres, and has a great many seam~. 
332. Y 011 do not ask for additional land areas or water rig·ht,;? No. 
333. You ask for the right to cut and dispose of timber.~ Do you object to such rig·hts being 

subject to the Crown Lands Acts? The land is ours; it is only on our own ground we ask for the 
right. 

334. You are asking for the right to cut timber on these 7 blocks ? They belong to ns as 
long as we occupy them. 

335. Are they not subject to any conditions? vVe pay a royalty of 2½ on net profit of 
minerals. They are really leased lands. 

336. There is a liability under certain conditions to forfeit the land? Yes. 
337. Do you object to the cutting of the timber being regulated the s~me as it is on Crown 

lands? I think that the property being vested in the Company, the Company should be better 
judg·es than the Crown as to what the proper regulation of the timber should b<'. 

338. B.11111r. fVoollnou,r;h.-You were speaking of an intention to supply electric light to 
the mines ; would any such supply be under the directions of the rail way company? No. 
The railway company would be quite distinct from subsidiary companies. 

339. That is, the Bill would not touch them at all? No. vVe have practically made arrange­
ments for a subsidiary company of £200,000 to work the electric power. 

340. That is, for use of the mines ? Yes. 
341. Will there be any electric works connected with the railway? We may have enough 

to do the lighting, or work a hoist. 
342. Will this electric power be used in connection with the railway, as stated here in the 

clause? There will be no electric power used on the railway for traction purposes. I should 
think, under these circumstances, that the very :£act of its being a separate company, the railway 
company having to pay the subidiary company for any electric light they may use, that it could 
not be said to be used in connection with the railway. 

343. Is it in order to prevent any possible dispute on the part of the Government when pur­
chasing---what clause is there protecting the Government from having to pay? The people 
running the steam railways are a· conservative lot of men who are frightened that electric powei· 
will be used ; they want it struck out. 

j44. By the Clwirman.-But you have got large rights for the purpose of generating electri­
city? It will be an electric company pure and simple. 

345. By Jllr. Woollnouglt.-There are powHrs given .under this Act only to be used by the 
railway company? No, you can make subsidiary companies. 

346. If the electrical rights given under this Act are to be used by the railway company at all, 
whether by themselves or by a subsidiary company connected with them, do you not see that the 
Government would have to protect themselves in till~ case of purchase? That would be done by 
arbitration, and the arbitrators would see that the Government do not pay for anything that is not 
of value to them; and that being the case, the company is not likely to put up works that are not 
necessary. , 

347. Does that meet the difficulty-you have mentioned you contemplate under the powers 
of this Act to use electricity, one of the purposes being in connection wit.Ii the railway-the inten­
tion of this clause is to guard the country from the necessity of purchasing· such electrical works? 
They are guardPd in the fact of their arbitrators p1:otecting· them. If the work is valuable to the 
Government the arbitrators will say, "Purchase it," that is, if tlrnre is anything of the kind used 
at all. 

348. Under your present arrang·ement, would any selector tak_ing up land on your block have 
to pay more for such land in the long run than he would have to pay on Government land? No; 
it will be the same. 

349. The same terms of payment? Yes. I am authorised to state that by my co-directors. 
350. By .lfr. Page.-When did you first form the opinion that the Government were hostile 

to you? I never believed they were hostile till I saw the answer to Pauling's wire as to the curves 
and grades. 
• 351. That was the first time you formed the opinion that they were hostile? I did not cqrue 
to the same conclusion as Pauling's till we got the secund wire about Sir Philip Fysh not acting on 
the Board, and then about the land being forfeited. · 

352. Did you take any measures, after you became aware of this teleg-ram of the 22nd April, 
to test that opinion as expressed by the Premier as to curves and grades? Yes; I sent instructions 
to my co-directors in Adelaide, to ask Mr. Mc ,~7illi;ims and :Mr. Fitzg·erald to make certain 
inquiries. The answers g·ot back were rather satisfactor)" to my mind. Their answer was that they 
were simply acting in accordance with the advice given by the Law Department, and against their 
wishes-that having got certitin advice fro~n the l,aw Department they coql<l not help wiring as 
the! did: . , . . . . 
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: :353. Did you take steps to get opinions from any independent people as to this opinion? ,v e 
immediately asked Mr. Norton and Mr. Bircham, and they told us we could use the cnrves aurl 
g-racles as often as we chose. 

354. You have said that these financiers would not be satisfied now without a g;narantee: Y 011 

think, then, it j,, not possible to use any others? I think it is possible, but" of course, having harl 
experience of the time I have taken in getting things to the present point, I would not tackle ·the 
job. I think it may be possible. 

355. What is the form of guarantee you would ask .for? There are three different suggestions. 
Either one will suit these financiers. 

356. Are you satisfied with the proposed amendment to Section 15? I think that quite covers 
it. It is in Clause 15, and then again in the Schedule, under the heading "Description of the Line." 
The wording in the proposed Clause, amending Clause 15, wants changing a bit ; the last part 
wants amending·. 

357. By Mr. Butler.-About the time you wish to have for the completion of the railway­
you·said two years once-was not two and a half years the time? Two and a half years from the 
fii:,-t of Aug·ust. .. 

358. You did say two years a little farther back. You have got to go to England, and then 
float the concern, imd then send out here -it will be all time wasted? I fancy there would be two 
or three montht wasted before we could actually start work. If we get liberal treatment, I do not 
think it will be very long before we start. We win start_by_ the 1st August, and it will certainly 
be completed by the 1st February, 1903. · 

359. Has it not been snggested that one of the ·rea_sons for asking for this guarantee is that it 
gives confidence to the public that the Government will not treat the Company in that hostile 
manner which has been the ca~e? The financiers had actually found the money, and nevei'thonght 
of a guarantee till they became convinced that the Government were hostile. They then said there 

. was only this one way to show they were not hostile. 
360. This project has been beforo the public for something like fifteen months. Is there any 

<'hance of it being- to a certain extent discredited unless this guarantee is given? A thing that is 
"hawked'' is always damaged. There is no doubt about its being damag·ed. 

361. .A.re you satisfied that £200,000 will do? Yes; the other £400,000 would be fortn­
coming. Sir Philip Fysh's proposal was that the Government should take up £200,000 worth of 
debentures at 5 per cent. · · 

362. This letter from Mr. Tennant-one portion of it has been put in the appendices as an 
extract. There is a large portion ·of it which Mr. Dobson and I think should go in? I have no 
objection to its going in. 

[Letter read, from H. Tennant to W. H. Palmer, elated 22nd June, 1899, (Appendix V.)] 
363. Was that received after your arrival in Tasmania? Yes. 
364. You might g·ive us some information .about the last paragraph-the want of confidence 

which prevails in relation to colonial matters? Mr. Tennant refers to the Midland Railway of 
,vestern Australia and the :Midland Railway of New Zealand. 

365. "What wPre the consequences in these cases to the promoters? The New Zealand line was 
almost built by the English promoters, and all the money was found for construction. - The money gave 
out when within a very short distance of the encl of the line. Therefore, as they did not complete 
the construction of the line under the Act within the given time, the Government stepped in and 
took the line. 

366. Did that happen in any other case? That happened in both cases. 
367. Is that recently? Within the last few years. 
368. lR it recent in the minds of financiers in. London?· It was so much thought ofin London 

that the president of the Stock Exchange was asked to refnse to allow .1' ew Zealand stock to be 
quoted until the New Zealand Government paid a proportion at any rate of the money that bad 
been paid down by the Company for this railway that the Government of New Zealand now use. 

369. Did the Government of New Zealand do that? No ; they let it go to Court, and the 
Court decided that legally they were right. 

370. And what about the rights and concessions? They were forfeited too. 

THURSDAY, 2ND NOVEMBER. 

M·R. W. 0. ,vISE, called in, made the declaration, and examined. 

The Committee met at 11 A.M. 

Mr. Wise was called, and took Statutory Declaration. 
371. By the Clwirman.-,vhat is your name? ·w alter Ormsby Wise. 
372. ·what are you? Secretary to the Law Department. 

. 373. Do you produce opinions given by the Crown Law Officers at different times upon 
sections of the Great Western Railway Company's Bill? · I produce copies of two opinions of the 
Solicitor-General, dated 22nd April, 1899, and 3rd July, 1899. The Attorney-General desired me 
to state that it was unusual to produce the opinions of the Law . Officers, but, that under the 
circm:nstances1 he thou~·ht it was better that the! should be placed before tl~e Corrpllittee, 
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374. Is there not an opinion g·iven· by the Solictor-General 011 the question of the forfeiture 

by the Company of seven blocks of land, dated 10th D(~cember, 1899? 1 believe the1·e is snch au 
opinion, but I was not asked as to that. I was only asked as to the construction of Clause 15. 

375. Was there not. an opinion given on the 20th April, 1899, by the Solicito!'-General 011 the 
const!'uction of Clause 15? 'l'bere is one dated 22nd Ap1·il on Clause 15. It was given on 1·ec:eipt 
of a cablegram from England as to curves and grades. 

376. But hel'e is an opinion pl'inted, dateJ 20th April, given by the Solicitor-General? 'l'hat 
is evidently a mistake-it must be 22nd. 

377. (Shewing Mr. Wise pl'inted opinion, dated 20th April)-Huve you any such opinion as 
this? No; the two I mentioned before are the only opinions we have. · 

378. Can you say whether or not that dated 20th April is an endorsement on any com­
munication? I do not understand it. Those two I have pl'oduced are the only opinions the 
Solicit.or-General has given upon the construct.ion of Ch1use 15. It is possible this may have beeu 
an endo1·sement. If you desil'e it I will search through the papel's. 

We shall be glatl if you will, as it ha, been -put before us as an opinion of the Solicitor­
General. 

Mr. Wise withdrew, and the Committee adjourned until 10·30 A,l'tl, on Friday. 

FRIDAY, 3RD NOVEMBER. 

EDWARD MULCAHY, examined. 
Mr. Mulcahy took statutory declaration. · 
379. By tlte Cltairman.-Yonr name is Edwa1·d Mulcahy, and you are Minister of Lands and ,v orks under the present Administration? Yes. 
380. You have seen the draft Bill to further amend the '' Gr.eat ,v estern Railway and Ore­

Reduction Company's Act"? I have. 
381. You will notice that it states that plans, specifications, and sections, as mentioned in 

sections 17 and 83 of the Act, have been lodged with the Minister, who has approvecl of the 
selection of the most eastern of the blocks, &c. Have snch plans, specifJ,cations, and sections, been 
lodg·ed? Plans and specifications of the first sections of the railway have been lodged with the 
Minister in compliance with the Act, and have been accepted by him lJS satisfactory ; and he has 
approved of the selection of the blocks as mentioned in the Preamble. 

382. What portion of the line do these plans relate to ? The first section, beg-inning·, I believe, 
at Glenora. 

383. For what distance? 20 miles, I understand. 
384. In the evidence of Mr. Palmer there is reference to guarantee of interest, or taking up 

of debentures by the Govemment-do you care to express any opinion as to the manner in which 
the Government have considered, or are likely to consider, such a proposal? I cannot express an 
opinion on that matter, inasmuch as no definite proposal has been made by Mr. Palmer to the 
Government. · · 

385. After having· read the Bill, is there any evidence you would lil~e, as Minister of Lands 
and Railways, submitted to this Committee by the heads of .any of your departments? 1 am 
taken somewhat at a disadvantage, as I have not had proper time to enquire into this matter, I 
could not just now give you a full answer to that question. 

386. The Committee propose to call the General Manag·er of Railways, Mr. M'Cormick, and 
the Surveyor-General. ,v e do not know whether or not yon wish anyone else called? If those 
officials are to he called by the Committee I shall be perfectly satisfied. I presume there will be 
no objection to my being· present and putting questions to them. 

Mr. Mulcahy withdrew. 

MR. W. 0. WISE, re-called. 
387. By the Clwirrnan.-Do you produce that document which was put in, dated 20th April, 

purporting· to be an· opinion from the Solicitor-General? I produce a copy of an endorsement npon 
a cablegram from London, and which is in exactly the same words as that which purports to be 
the Hon. Alfred Dobson's opinion. It is sig·ned by Sir Edward Braddon. I hand you a copy 
herewith, and also show you the original. This is in the saii10 words as A ppen<lix marked E. 
(Document shown to Committee.) 

388. ,,r as this cablegram with the late Premier's endorsement, or a copy of it, laid on the 
Table of the House? I could not answer that question. . 

389. By .Mr. Butler.-Where did you g·et these papers? The orig·inal documents I got from 
the Premier's office. 

390. Was the opinion of the Solicitor-Ceneral amongst these? Yes ; in the same order as 
they are now. 'l'hat is practieally the case that was submitted to the Solicitor-General for opinion, and 
to make doubly sure, I thoug·ht it best to bring the originals to show you, to verify the copy. 

391. And you cannot say whether these documents were laid on the 'fable of the Honse? I 
\mve alreadr told the Chairlllan I am unable to sar what papers were laid on tl~e Table of tl1e }ioqse, 
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Mr. Butler.-! should like, if possible, for the official who did lay these papers on the Table of 
the Hoµse to be called to say what papers where put there. · 

'/'he C!tairman.-1 fancy they were laid on the Table by the late Premier. 
. Mr. Butler.-It places us in an awkward position. We do not wish to misrepresent anything. 
We have been led astray, having been perfectly satisfied that this was the opinion of the Solicitor-

. General. 'l'his is the first time I have seen the correspondence in this form, and 1 do not think Mr. 
Dobson saw it at all. I think we were justified, to a certain extent, in coming to the conclusion w~ 
did. One document was missing·, and this is it. The copies that were snpplied to us do not give the 
signature of the Premier at the bottom of that telegTam, and this has 1nisled us. The copy that 
we have reads as follows,-" Opinion of the Hon. Alfred Dobson reads as follows"; &c. [Document 
read (Appendix E.)]. fhat is not signed, and Mr. H .. Dobson and myself have always taken that 
to be an opinion of the Solicitor-General. This purports to be a copy of the telegram that has 
been laid on the Table of the House. I exceedingly regret the mistake, but I can assure the 
Committee that it has been totally unintentional on our part. 

392. The Chairman to Jl,Jr. Wise'-Can you throw any light on the matter of the original? 
None whatever, beyond the explanation given tha~ the opinion of the Solicitor-General was taken 
away: and whoever copied the views of Sir Edward Braddon omitted to copy bis signature. They 
have not made a proper copy of it, because the words "opinion herewith" are omitted. 

Mr. Wise withdrew .. 
Mr. Butler.-! would ask that these papers be available if required; there may be 

some documents there which may have a bearing on the case; 
The Chairman.-That is a matterfor the Committee to consider, and requires deliberation. 

EDW AHD A. COUNSEL examined. 

Mr. Counsel took Statutory Declaration. 
393. By the Chairman.-Wbat is your name ? Edward A. Counsel. 
394. And you are Surveyor-General ? Yes. 
395. The Great Western Railway Company have a Bill before the House· which you have 

already seen? Yes . 
. 396. There is a provision in that Bill entitling the Company to mark out on paper the 7 blocks 

of land which they receive ar; a consideration, or part consideration, for the construction of tbe 
line? Yes. · 

397. In what respect does that differ from the orig;ina:l' Bill ? The original Bill provides that 
the Company shall have the rig·ht to mark off 7 blocks, which I take to mean that they shall be 
marked off on the ground. · •-

398. . Why do you take it to mean that ? The fact of marking off means marking on the 
ground. If this were not so, it would have been stated as amended. 

399. Would marking· out on paper create any confusion in the 1ninds of prospectors as to 
whether they were on Crown land or on. the Company's blocks? It would be likely to; it has, I 
believe, already caused some confusion. 

400. Do you think that in the event of the Company haviirg powel' to mark the blocks off 
ouly on paper it would retard prospecting· only on Crown Ian:ds? I think it would; and this has 
been borne out in practice, up to the present. There has been very little prospecting done on this 
land, and I know there have been many inquirie,;. . . 

401. Is not that because the land has been withdrawn? For a considerable time part of the 
laud has been available. 

402. Would it be easy for prospectors to tell, from the trigonometrical stations, without the land 
being marked off, whether they were on the Company's blocks or on Crown land? No, it woul'd 
not, for obvious reasons. The stations are not defined, and a g·reat many could not be distinguished. 

403. There is a.nother clause (5) of the Bill, empowering the Company to cut timbel",-have 
you any observations to make with respect to that? I do uot think they should have the right f.o 
take that timber without paying something for it. They should pay a royalty on the same pripciple 
as the royalty paid on minerals. A royalty should be· paid on anything for· sale. 

404. W ha,t does the royalty amount to, at present, for the right to cut timber on Crown land? 
One shilling· per thousand super. feet, and a rental of £1 per 100 acres. 

4P5. The administration of the timber and forests of the CL•lony is within your Department? 
Yes. 
_ 406. Do you consider that the cutting of this timber should be regulated, as is the cutting of 
timber on Crown lands? Yes, to a·great extent, at any rate; I think the royalty would be a fair 
thing·. -

407. And should thern be any restrictions as tu the manner in which the timber should be 
cut? It should be cut subject to the regulations as to size, etc. I do not think it would be fail' to 
charge the Company a rental as well as the royalty, as is dune at present. . 

408. By J.l1r. Hall.-The trigonometrical survey of the Colony was never compl'eted'? No. 
409. For that reason it would be a difficult matter to locate these blocks on papel'-from the 

fact of the mountains and rivers not being located? Yes. 
410. That is your objection? Yes. . - · 
411. Do you know the GOnntry through which the line is to pass? Yes; g·enei-aTly, 
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412. Can you give us any idea as to the value of the timber,-whether it is pine, black.wood, 

etc.? There are some fairly good pine forests, but not extensive. There is not any great quantity 
of blackwood, possibly there would be patches. 

413. Has a difficulty already occurred bRtween your department and the prospectors? In the 
Mines Department, I believe, some trouble has arisen. 

414. By lYJr. Murray.-Reg·arding· the survey of mineral land, if a prospector applies to 
Government for a block of mineral land will he not have to pay survey foes before working it? 
He takes out a prospecting area, or claim, aud g·ets a right to prospect it, and afterwards to locate 
his section. He does not usually do it at once in a new country. 

415. He bas to pay for the survey? He has to pay before he gets a lease. 
416. Will the same apply to a company if a prospector applies to the Company fo1· the same 

right? He will have to pay survey fee, he would not pay for locating the sections. Connections 
have to be provided by the State. , 

417. By Mr. Page.-! understand you to confine the claim of royalty to such timbers as would 
be cut for sale, and to give them, free of royalty, what is wanted for constrnction ? Yes. 

Yes. 
4] 8. By .Llir. rVooLlnough.-Are there any forest1·y regulations now in operation in this colony ? 

419. Do these regulations prevent men from cutting certain kinds of wood ? . Yes ; they can 
only cut the kinds specified in the regulations. ' 

· 420. Are there any other regulations for preserving· certain kinds of wood ? The reg·ulations 
are as to cutting certain kinds, and as to size and measurement. · 

42 L \Vould it be desirable, in the interests of the public, to apply these regulations to the 
Company's land? Generally, I think they should, with some slight amendments. I do not 
think the Company should be called upon to pay rent and the fees as well. I think the royalty 
would be fair. · 

422. By the Chainnan.-At the outset of this Bill it refers to certain plans, specifications, 
and sections having been lodged with the. Minister. Have you seen such as have be~n loclgecl? I 
have seen plans for about 25 miles and sections. They came under my view, but did not belong to 
my Department. 

423. Have yon any other observation to make on the Bill, as affecting your Department? I 
cannot think of auytbing at present. 

424. · By .lfr. Butler.-vVith reference to the timber-Have you taken into conside1·ation that 
this Janel is practically the Company's land, part of their concessions? Yes. 

425. And they have very long terms of lease? Yes. Du you think it fair to treat them m 
the same way as people with timber licences? 

426. I have not suggested that; I mean under the same regulations ? I think so, except as 
already stated. 

427. No one else can g·o ou that land to ,cut timber? I still think they should cut accordiug 
to regulations. The Company may break up, and the land corne back to the Crown; and why 
should young timber be destroyed. 

428. The Company having leased t.his land for a long term of years, would they not be as 
careful of young timber as the Government? It is a fair conclusion, but, as I said, the Company 
may fail, or a great many things happen. 

429. The Crown get quid pro quo for the conce.,sion of land, do they not? I think the 
Company ,:hould pay a royalty 1,11 timber as well as minerals. 

430. As to survey,-if the Company undertake to pay for connections, the same as the 
Government, would not that put them on the same footiug·? If the Company undertake to pay 
all the survey fees it would be satisfactory. A prospector making application for mineral lease 
pays the survey fees. That would be the same in the Company's as in the Government's case. 
If lines were run round the blocks the prospector would be safe in knowing the position of his 
land, through the fact of these lines being 5 miles apart one way, and 22 miles the other way. 
He would know whether he was on Company's laud or uot. 

431. Can a man who is not a surveyor say whether he is within 5 miles of a certain spot, he 
having travelled 22 miles back from a line ? He should know bis position approximately, if he is 
a bushman. · 

432. Would he know if he were on one side of the line or another ? Yes. 
433. If the company agree to pay for connections up to the surveys that would cove1· the 

difficult.y ? I think there are the strongest reasons why blocks should be surveyed independently of 
the prospector. I do not consider blocks should be made over to any party without survey. 

434. By the Chairman.-\Vould you give yonr reason ? The question cropped up iu regard 
to whether it was expedieut to issue Proclamations without a survey. It is an axiom of the Lands 
Department that no laud should Le alieuated or reserved from the jurisdictiou and contrnl of the 
State until the bou11daries thereof have been correctly defined by survey and permanently marked 
on the ground. There are obvious reaso11s why surveys should be made in this case for the 
guidance of prnspectors. 

Jlir. Butler.-Mr. Chritip spoke to me some <lays ag·o as to alteriug- a statement in his evideuce­
see question No. 81. I wish to explain that the survey of 1:lrn first four or five mileti was taken 
from the Govel'Ument survey already made. He says there is one piece down to the I in 40 _limit. 
It should be stated that in the first 4 miles, which was surveyed by the Government, there is one 
grade that is down to the li.mit of I in 40. Mr. Chrisp asked me to have him re-called, in order 
to rectify that error. 



2i 
(No. 71.) 

JOHN M. McCORMICK, examined. 

Mr. McCormick took the Statutory Declaration. 
435. By the Chairman.-What is your name? John Macneill McCormick. 
436. And yon are? Eng·ineel' of Existing Lines. 
437. You have read the Bill before the House to ameud the Great Westean Railway and 

Ore-reduction Company Act ? Yes. 
438. There is a reference in the beginning of the Bill to certain plans, specifications, and 

sections having being lodged. Does that come within your knowledge? Yes. 
439. What have yon to say? The plans, &c., for 20 miles have been deposited. That should 

read " portions" have been deposited. 
440. Have such portions been approved? 20 miles of the plans and sections have been 

approved, as far as they go. There are additional plans required. 
44]. 'l'his Bill asks, in effect, for the right to use the maximum grade and minimum curve as 

frequently as the promoters like. Is there any objection to granting that? I think so. I do not 
think the option ehould be left to the promoters. Take Section 15, after the words " three feet six 
inches," add "and in the discretion of the promoters." I think that is rather ambiguous. It might 
be read that they had the right to put curves of less than 5 chains radius. 

442. Assuming that that will be put plainly, is there any objection to allowing the p1·omoters 
to use the grades and curves as frequently as they please ? Every objectiou. They might make 
the line on what engineers call the" contour." It would be injurious to the maintenance of the 
line. They might put them so close that Section 16 would not be complied with. 

443. Assuming that they had complied with section 16, is there then the same objection? 
Section 16 is simply a matter of opinion, and is not in itself sufficient. It should be read with 
section 17. 

444. Assuming the promoters put in rails of 60 lbs. instead of 43 lbs., and ballast 1700 yards 
to the mile instead of 1330 yards, would the line not then be of a sufficiently stable character, not­
withstanding that the maximum grade and minimum curve were used as often as they liked? That 
would not effect it in any way. If you have two 5 chain curves close together you cannot comply 
with section 16, as to the speed of 15 mihis an hour. 'l'he mattel' should be left to the approval of 
the Government. I will g·ive an instance. Take the Van Diemen's Land Company's Line; they 
have a similar specification, and at the commencement of their surveys their 5 chain curves were 
too close together. They admitted so, an cl re-surveyed that portion. The speed of 15 miles an 
hour could not have been maintained. I think there is no doubt that the Government Officers 
will deal fairly with this company, and it should be left to them. If the promoters got the plan 
and 8ection of the Waratah Company's line it would give them an idea of. how we are likely to deal 
with them. · 

445. Will you turn to section 3 of the Bill, which deals with section 42 uf the original Act. 
You _will notice that after the word "way" the word "plant" is inserted? I see no objection. 

446. And as to the latter part-the words expunged. This deals with the purchase of electric 
plant. It is proposed to strike out that provision ? I do not think the electric power would be of 
any value to the Government in case of purchase. 

447. The promoters do not intend to .drive the railway Ly electric power, and sug·g·est that the 
words be strnck out, as not being· necessary : Have you any opinion to offer? I have no o~jection 
to offer to their being strnck out, if it is cleal'ly understood that the promoters do not intend to use 
electricity. . 

448. Have you anything to say about the bmnch lines to be constructed-Section 7? Line 
15, extension to any coalfield or mine. That appears to me to be too general; They might go 
anywhere. The following portions are defined, and I see no objection. I think where thern is a 
general statement of diversion toany coalfield or mine it ought to be submitted to Parliament. 

449. Section 4, referring· to "description" '( I think I have practically replied to that alread). 
Sections 15, 16, and 17 should be read together. However, as I say, there is some ambiguity 
about 15. If yon adopt this insertion you should state minimum curves of 5 chains, and maximum 
grade of l in 40. 

450. vV oulcl your objection be ornrcome by inserting "in accordance with Section I 6"? 
No; yon could not insert that at all; 17 is for the approval of the Minister. I ·might mention to 
the Committee that I notice several dates have been altered. Section 170, miscellaneous; the elate 
should be altered to ag1·ee with the othe1· alterntions of dates. 

451. B,11 Mr. Woollnough .. -If you were informed that the electric power was going to be used 
for other purposes than haulage· --if it were to be used for lifts, and large plants for other purposes­
would you still give the sauie opiuion as to purchase ? That makes it a very big question. 'l'bat 
would qualify my opinion as to the percentag·e. If there were a large electric plant, I should then 
say, purchase on a commercial value. 

452. The intention is to use electrieity for other pmposes than the railway, aud connections will 
be made with that plant for the use of lifts, &c.-it is possible the Government might. be let in for 
the purchase of not merely a partial i11 terest, Lut for the purchase of the whole plant used for other 
purposes-it seems desirable tu preserve the Government from being· let in for this expense? I 
understood they did not intend to U!'e electricity for rolling stock or anything connected with the 
railway. · 

453. By .Mr. Jl:lurray.-Have you be_en over the proposed route? No. 
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454. Do you know if the survey has been made for the whole length of the line? I have 
stated that plans are deposited for 20 miles. 

455. That is a working survey? That is the only thing· I have to deal with under the Act. 
456. Are you aware if a trial survey has been made? I believe a preliminary survey has been 

ma<le. . · 
457. Are you satisfied that if the curves are used too frequently it will seriously interfere with 

the safety of the line? Yes. If there is not sufficient interval between them it will. interfere with 
the haulage an<l maintenance. 

4158. By Mr. Bradley.-From what you know of the route, is it likely there will be an 
unusual number of these five-chain curves, required or the gra<les of l in 4U? 'l'hat I cannot answer. 
I do not know anything of the route, except in so fa1'. as the plans that have been before me. 

459. For that 20 miles? The 20 miles is comparatively easy. 
460. By Mr. Page.-You object to g·iving them a free hand in using these curves and grades 

-you would limit it? By Clause 17. It should be snbject to approval of the Minister. That 
is what was done with the Emu Bay Company. I have had certain alterations to make, and there 
has been no objection. 

461. By 11fr. Butler.-Can you tell me what is the weight of rail on the Main Line? Various 
weights. 

462 . .VVhat is the ruling weight? The original weight was 40 lbs. iron rail, then, I think, 
40 lbs steel. When we bought the Main Line they were re-laying with 46 lbs. steel rails. The 
present Main Line is partly 61 lbs., 46 lbs., and a portion of 72 lbs. The bulk is 46 lbs. steel 
rails. 

463. Are there· any curves less than five chains? I believe there is only one curve under five 
chains. 

464. I mean on the Government lines generally, not only the lVIain Line? Our ruling curve 
is five chains. 

465. What is the ruling g-rade? One in 40. 
466. Are there many one in 4l) grades on the Government lines? A good many. 
467. What speed was the Main Line run at? I cannot tell you. It was under the Act. 
-!08. I should have said,-What speed was it run at in the Company's time? It was fixed by 

the Act. I cannot tell you. · 
469. Was it more than 15 miles an hour? I believe it was. Twenty something, I fancy, but 

am not at all sure. 
470. Is not the speed before you in that Act the average speed? No; it says not less than 15 

miles an hour. 
471. If we have so many of these curves and grades, would that decrease t.he speed? 

Decidedly. . . 
472. If our line is huilt with so many of these curvfls and gJ"ades, will it be run at 15 miles an 

hour'! Not if they are close together. 
473. In order to comply with that Act the Company should build the line with the curves 

sufficiently far apai't? Yes. . 
474. Is not the wear and tear very much greater with these frequent curves and heavy 

gPades? Decidedly. 
475. Would not that be ag·ainst the promoters' interests? I am not prepared to say that. 

There is such a thing· as building· a line for sale. Let us take the Main Line, for instance: in a 
certain portion of it there are a good many 5-chain curves and steep gTades. It wonl<l not have 
cost any more to build with 10-chain curves. 

476. How long· did the Main Line Company own the line,-all that time they would be 
rnnning at an excessive rate? Yes. 

477. Does not the Company find the money to build this line? I presume they will do so. 
478. Is the Government compelled to take the line ove1·? No; I believe not. 
479. If they did take it over, l think you said it ought to be taken on the basis of a going 

commercial concern? No; I did not say that. It was in speaking as to the electric plant. I said 
there !Should be some other terms of purchase. 

480. Do you think it would be a fair basis to take over on? Ji think so; but I have not 
g·iven the matter careful consi<leratio11. 

481. As to that first W miles: do you know that the only place where the grade of l in 40 
occurs is in a part that was done by the Government? That l am not prepared to say. 

482. Section 4 of the a111endi11g· Bill, last three lines: does not that provide that the l'ailwity 
shall be constructed in a .8ubstantial manner? Not neces1Sarily so; because Section 16, read by itself, 
is a matter of opiniou, an<l should be g·overned by Section l 7. 

483. It is proposed that minimum curves and 111a.xi111um grades may be used as often as 
deemed necessary by the promoters-if they wel'e allowed to put them in as frequently as possible, 
subject to t.he railway being- constrncted iu a substantial manner, Jo you think there would be 
any objection? You still propose to leave the power with the promoters. 

4ti4. \V ho is the autho1·ity who· says whether the railway is constrncteJ in a substantial manne1· 
or not? The Governor in Council. 

485. It lies in his. hands-is that nut a safeguar<l to the Government? I do not think it is 
sufficient in itself. 

486. All you want under that Act is that a substantial and safe line shall be built? Yes. 
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487. What is the reason of saying '' the maximum gl'acles and minimum curves" if you object 
to them? We do not object. There nrny he local l'en:,;ons why they should not be used in cel'taiu 
places. 

488. The question of curves and grades is only a difference in the speed? No, there al'e many 
reasons. I gave, as one reason, that it would affect the speed, and that it would affect the safety of 
the line, if the trains had to run at ] 5 miles an hour. 
· · 489. It is only an avel'age speed? It says not less than 15 miles au hour. There will b3 
places where you will have to run easy, and others where you have to run hard, and it may 
necessitate running fast ovel' 5 chain curves. · 

490. The contract provides fol' rnils of 60 lbs., steel, and ballast 22 ya!'ds instead of 16 yards 
pe!' chain. Does that prnvide for a very substantial line? It pl'uvide;; fol' a heavier rail and a 
heaviel' en/;dne. 

491. The speed is 15 miles an huU1·. When we come to look at the GI'eat Western Railway, 
with heavier rails and mol'e ballast, running at 15 miles an hour, and the Main Line 23 miles an 
hour with lighter rails, which is the more substantial? The Main Line is run with heaviel' rails. 

492. I want yon to draw a compal'ison betweeu the two lines, as this is proposed to be built, 
and as the Main Line Railway was run? It does not get over the question of safety. I might be 
of the opinion that the Main Line was not run safely. · 

493. Were there anv accidents? I believe there were some accidents. I do not know how 
many. There were a go~<l many accidents and fortunate escapes. 

494. A l'e there any unnecessary number of curves or g1;ades in tf1at 20 miles? I think it 
complies with the Act. 

495. That is all yon have received from the Promoters? Yes. 
496. You are satisfied ? Y11s: 
497. If this is a sample of their wol'k right thl'ough you would have no objection ? No. 
498. By the < 'hairman.-After ph11s, specifications, and sections had been submitted to you 

and approved, could you, in your opi11ion, afte!'wa1·ds demand an alteration if the speed provided in 
the Act could pot he complied with ? I do not think it wotild be 1·eas,,nable after the !in!! w_as 
constructed. 

499. You think thRt afte!' having appr,Jved the plans you have no further right to iuterfere ? 
If the work had been done I <lo not think it would be reasonable. 

500. Could you, by inspection of the plans and sections, decide whether or not the speed could 
be safely maintai1wd ? 1 think so, supposing- the line were constructed in accordance with the Act . 

. rlr. Butler.-Speaking from memory, I believe the promoters lose their concessions and rights 
if they do not run up to 15 IJ"!iles an hour. · 

Mr. McCol'mick withcl1·ew, 

lV1 R. W. H. PALM ER, recalled. 

50 I. By Mr. Page.·-.-\s to the Solicitor-General's opinio;1s : how did you come to understand 
that this exhibit, which we know to be a reference of the Premie1·, was an opinion of the Solicitor­
General? Copies of Papers laid on the Table of the House were handed to me as correct copies. 
I never doubted they were correct. · 

502. How <lid you get these? I asked one of the Pressmen to g·et me a copy of the pape:rs 
laid on the Table of the House. 

· 503. Is this copy put in by you the one given you by the Pressman ? I do not know whether 
it is the actual paper ; if not, it is very much like it. . 

504. Did the Pressman who gave you this g·ive you a series of small slips of copie~, or was it 
in one lot? It was put together with pins, dates following·. l believe this is the very copy. I am 
very sorry that this mistake should have occurred. While I have the opportunity _f wish to say 
that in stating- the Members of the Board of Directors when I left England there has been an 
alteration. By looking up my instructions from England I have found that l\fr. Austin has resigned 
from the Board. He is rather an important man, and 110 doubt it will become known that he 
has resigned. I therefore wish to say that it was an unintentional mis-statement on my part at 
the tjme, 

MONDA y, 6TH NOVEMBER. 

FREDERICK BACK, examined. 

Mr. Back made Statutory Declaration. 
505. By the Chairman.-Your name is Frederick Back, and you are General Manager of the 

Tasmanian Railways? Yes. 
· 506. You have perused the Bill to further amend the Great Westeru Hail way and Ore­

reduction Company Act? - I have. May I ask yon to kindly let me make a short personal 
explanation before you proceed with the examination. It has been said, and said frequently, that 
l am opposed to the Great W e~ter11 Railway. I w~sh befor~ i commence my evidence to st~t~ 

- \ ·, . 
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that such is not the case. I was very mnch opposed to the Bill before it became law, but Parlia­
ment and the Government of Tasnmniit having- decided that the Company shonl<l have a Bill, I 
have been always, and am, quite ready to give t:he Company every assistance to 111ake that Bill as 
workable as possible. I have some information he1·e that I think you should possess, and if yon 
will be sufficiently indulgent I will place it before you. At t.he time the Bill was going through 
the House, \\hen it was decided by the Governmeut that they should g-ive the Company all 
reasonable ass1sta1ice, I was instrncted by the late Mi11i~ter of Land'> to itrrange for a schedule to be 
prnpared to accorn1?any the Bill, and my instructions were that I was to take into consideration that 
lVfr. Palmer, as reprnsentative of the Company here, had undertaken, for certain eonsiderntions, to 
give the colony a line of railway equal to those which have been constrncted by the Government. 
In effect, he said that he was preparPcl to give the country a line which would cost nut less t.han 
£10,000 a mile. :Mr. 1\'l'Cormick prepared a specificn.ti'on and handed it to mr.. I had many 
interviews with ~Jr. Officer and one or mom with l\1r. Palmer. The nJsult of these interviews was 
this correspondence. The l'remier was at Leith, and he wirnd me to al'range with the Promoters 
that the specifications might. be made suitable. The result of' an interview with 1\11'. Officer was 
the despatch of this teleg·,·am to Sir Edward Braddon. (TelegTam read.) During the_ same 
week I received a letter from M1·. Palmer tdated 5th November, 1896), of which I put in an extract. 

· I wish to say that I have opposed-and strongly opposed-at the initiatory stage, the Emu Bay 
Railway, the Great Western Railway, and the Midland Railway, because I considered it my duty 
as a servant of the public; bnt the policy of the Government having decided that thrse railways are 
to be made, I consider it my duty to do all I can to make these Acts as workable as possible; at 
the same time, protecting· the public. I thank yon for permitting me to make this explanation. 

507. By the Chairman.-In the beginning· of the Bill it states," whereas the Promoters have 
made the drposits men1ionecl in Section 171," &c., &c. : _can you fell the Committee whether the 
Company has commenced the construction in a bonc1 fide manner?-is that a matter which comes 
within your knowledge? We have had no reports o~ the subject, as the inspectol' provided for 
under tha Act has uot been appointed. I think a g-reat deal of misapprehension may be prevented 
in t.he future, if you were to embody in this, after the word "plans," '' and whe!'eas plans to the 
extent of 20 miles hare been deposited." As a ma t.t.er of fact, the whole of the plans provided for 
have not been deposited, and therefore it ·would not be wise for Parliament to admit that the whole 
of the 1·eqnirements of these specifications have been complied with, as mentioned in this section. 

508. Have you anything to say as to r,onstrnction? You would have, I think, to appoint an 
inspector, and get•his repo1't. 'l'he A.et provides that an inspector should be appointed to supervi~e 
construction ; and his report should be before you. · . · · . 

509. Section 15, referred to in Section 4 of the Bill -after the words "three feet six inches," 
in the 4th line, "and in the discretion of the Promoters;,: that has been said by the P1;omoters to 
mean that the minimum curve and maximum grade should be used as frequently as they desire; 
have you any objection to the Promoters havino· full di,-cretion in the use of the mi11imum curve 
and maximum grade? I would 1·ecommend _vgu, if I may be permitted, to_n~ake it quite clear and 
perfectly defined that whatever power may be given to the Company the nnnnnurn curve shall be 
5 cha~n radius, and the maximum grade 1 in 40 ; if not, I take it they may put in le~s cm·ves than 
5 chams, 

510. Assuming that. the minimum curve of 5 chains and maximum grade of 1 in 40 is plainly 
stated in the Bill, do you see any object.ion t,i the Promoters using· those curves or those grades as 
frt:Jquently as they like? I think this should be a matter for Pal'!iam·rnt or the Minister to decide. 
It is, in my opinion, decidedly wrong. The inspecting· officer should be the pe1:so11 t~ decide. . If 
you allow the Company to use curres as often as they like you may get them imperfectly pnt m. 
The tangent points may be too close tog·c>ther. You may get a su

0

l'face line . instead _of a Ii ne of 
much more stable character. If we had to constrnct the ~Iaiu Line over agarn, we nught ease the 
curves, and get a very much better line, which would cause less resistance. This is more a matter 
for the Government to considPr than for me. My opinion is that having undertaken to give you a 
line equal to the Government railways at a cost of £10,000 a mile or thereabouts, some supervision 
should be necessary on the part of the inspecting officer. 

511. The Promoters propose to increase the weight of rail from 43 lbs. to 60 lbs., a.nd the 
ballast from 1330 to l 700 cnb. yards per mile: the1·e is a provi~ion in the original Bill that they 
shall run at a speed of 15 miles an horn·. Provided they supply that rail and ballast, and rn11 at that 
rate, is there still an objection to the maximum grade and minimum curve bei11g· used as frequently 
as they like? 'l'he objection remains precisely the same'. The question of the weight of rail 
governs the weight of their rolling·-stock. It would not affect any other conditions. ·Modern 
engineer~ are increasing- the weig;ht of rail ~aily, as they find they can take a heavier eng111e and 
draw a bigger load, and work more econorrncally. 

512. Section 42, referred to in the Bill under Section 5, as to certain words being expunged. 
Yon will find that this 1s a provision which relieves the Government from purchasing P,lectrical 
works. lt is proposed to strike out that provision. Have yon any objection? Decidedly. That 
provision wa~ pnt in, I think, at my instigation. In this Act we are dealing·_ with the Great 
,ve,-tern Railway, and this 8th Section of the Act deals with the resumption of pnmary lease and 
purchase of the railway. Now, I think the Government should be relieved from any liability for 
the purchase of electrical pla.nt or any other matter outside the wol'll.ing of tlrn railway as a steam 
r_ailw~y, because, probably, if it came to a matter of purchase it might be, because the va1·ious 
electqcal ,yor~s were not paring. I think if s0111e relief is wanted b! the Prorµoters, I would keep 
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in the clause. and insert "except such approved locomotives and other plant as may be 1·equirec 
to work a railway by steam pt>wer." That is to say, the Government should purchase their railway 
r!ant. Tl~e mere fact, I take it, of the rail way being connected with electr:cal wol'ks might legally 
bmd the Government to buy works that were of no use to the Government, and as the Company 
has deci~Jed to make a railway to be worked by steam, they would be sufficiently protected if we 
were to msert a clause somewhat to the effect I have mentioned. 

513. Section 33, refemid to in Section t of the Bill. That refers dispntes to arbitration, and 
relates to rnnning powers over the Government lines? I may say that I had a hand in drafting 
this clause, and i11 my orig·inal memorandum I put in exactly what is now asked for, and I think it 
was Sir Philip Fysh taking it through the House who thought it was unnecessary to repeat the 
words after each section. Iii the original Bill you will find that Section 33 gives the Minister power 
to grant certain concessions to the Promoters, and Section 34· makes it possible for the Minister to 
obtain certain powers from the Promoters. Sir Philip Fysh, taking the Bill through, thought there 
was a redundancy in putti11g the clause each time. He thoug-ht one governed the other. 

514. By 1l1r. Woollnough.-If the Company are allowed this discretionary power as to curves 
and grades, mig·ht it mean any hindrance in getting the required speed of 15 miles an hour? They 
ought to be able to run at a minimum speed of 15 miles an hour. The load would. probably be 
~edueed in consequence. The great point about the curves is that if they were alloweJ to put them 
m as often as they please they might constrnct the line in a manner which would be dangerous. 

515. If they pnt them too close together would there be any possible danger? I think so. 
The Government is in the position of a Board of Tradr, and it is their dnty to see that the line is 
constructed so as to satisfy their officers as to safety. When the line is constructed it will be to the 
advantag·e of the Company to consult with the Government officers, and those officers will do .all 
in their power to make the Bill workable. 

516. Are you distinctly in favour of the Government having the last say in this rnatte1; of 
curves and grades? I think so. Section I 7 of the Act makes it quite clear that some supervision 
is intended. Look at the last clause of Section 17: If you put in this new clause you take away 
from the Minister the power to say that alterations are necessa1;y, and must be ranied out. There 
ar~ two ways of looking at this-the liberal interpretation, and the exact interpretation, and .I 
thmk the company should be satisfied with an assurance that all we ask. them to do is to take a 
liberal interpretation of the clause. They can see for themselves how we put in curves and grade3 
to keep down expense. · . 

517. Jn Section 34 the Governor-in-Council is enabled to force the hands of the Promote1·s, 
and oblige them to give running powers to the Government, but in clause 33 the Company have 
not the same power, apparently. Therefore, there is an inequality. The Governor in Council can 
do as he likes. I take it, the object of this proposed amendment is to give equal powers. If the 
Minister refuses running powers the matter shall be referred to arbitration. Do you see any 
objection to that? I do not think anyone would commit such a suicidal act as to compel the 
Government to give them running powers. That section of the Act gives the Governor in Council 
power to gTant running· powers over any railway in Tasmania. Would it be right that thi3 
Company should coine in and interfere with our traffic in any part of the Colony? It would be 
unreasonable to do so. We have expended some 4 millions iri railways, which we. are struggling 
along· with and endeavouring to pay expenses. Why should the Government give a coucession 
agai11st its own interests. Parliament has said we wiil give you power to construct a railway to t!1e 
Wes~ Coast. As a matt~r of fact, it is exceE>dingly unlikely that the_ Governll?ent would reqmra 
runnmg powers. If so, rt would simply mean that the Government might reqmre to run over a 
piece of thei,· line which might junction with other lines. 

518. Have you unde1·stood_that under the amendment pl'oposed to Section 33 it was intended 
to cover, not merely the question of payment, but the question of whether. if any dispute arose a.s 
to whether the Con:1pany should have running powers over certain Government lines, it should 
no longer be left to the discretion of the Governor-in-Council, but should be submitted to somebody 
el~e_? I can ha1·dly find words strong enough to oppose such a proposal. It would be simply 
smcrdal. . · 

519. By Mr. Page.-,Vhat is the danger you apprehend from the too frequent use of these 
curves and grades? If you place two reve1·se curves too close together, you might come off th~ 
road. There are certain formulre which have to be adhered to; too much of a bogey is made of 
this matter altogether. No Government officer would object to such reasonable use of o-chai21 
curves and I in 40 grades as would be used in the Government railways, and in laying out a rail­
way we should avoid these curves n.nd grades if we could, but if it came to a question of more 
expense we would use them. In the same manner the Government officers would assist the 
Company. 

520. Section 83 seems to me to be a matter for the opinion of the Crown Law officers; and the:i 
I come to this ve1·y important question of b1·anch lines. I should say, that before giving power to con­
strnct branch lines, they should make their trunk line, and then submit plans and apply to Parliament .. 
I consider it is equally important that branch lines should be submitted to Parliament, and, as it 
must take some years before the trunk line is finished and as we know that discoveries are still 
being made, and tlie mining business is growing rapidly, it would be exceedingly unwise to grant 
·power to make branch lines b2tween undefined points or over undefined country. It may be 
necessary or desirable to allow the Company to make such branch lines by-and-bye. If you giva 
them these powers now, you may have the· country griclironed all over, and you do not know tqat 

I . I l • ; 
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it will not interfere with the trnffie on Government lines. I have always urged that befol'e any Bill 
is discussed by Parliament a preliminary sul'vey should be made, and 1 still think that it is a very serious 
mistake to consider any Bill for the construction of a railway unless a preliminary survey is 
deposited, and I would urge the Committee to think strongly on this subject. There is really 
nothing here to shew definitely over what country these lines will go, nor definitely, between what 
points. 

521. By Mr. Butler.-Would you have any objection to a branch line being made: for 
instance, suppose our line were constructed as far as some certain point, branch lines being· marle 
from that point? I think so. There is nothing to prevent the same thing being done as i11 the 
case of the Emu Bay Railway,-half the line constl'ucted, and a bra.nch to Lyell. It is exactly 
the same position. 

522. Supposing the line were constructed from Gleuora to the Humboldt Divide, woultl you 
have any o~jection to a branch between those two points? Undoubtedly, until the line is 
completed. What would be the use to Tasmania of a line from Hobart to the Humboldt Divide? 
You are getting concessions in land and other thing·s for a line from Hobart to Zeehan. Therefore, 
get your line made from Hobart to Ze8han; and then, if you desire to construct a branch, apply to 
Padiament. 

523. But are not railways beneficial to the Colony? Not always. 
524. As to the curves and gmcles, are you not looking at this question as if the Company were 

contractors? Certainly not. In England the Board of Trade governs these matters absolutely. 
There is no Board of Trade here; and the Govemment have to rely on their officers, and they 
have a duty to perform in seeing· that lines are constructed to work with every possible degree 
of safety. · 
_ 525. This rail way is being constructed for a company. If it is inefficiently constl'ucted they 

will be the losers? This line is being constructed for a payment by the Tasmanian Government. 
They pay not in coin bui in land and other concessions. Let me refresh your memory as to what 
took place when you were present at the original Committee. (Page 29, question 732). You will 
see the position you take up in asking me this question is an unte_nable one, b~cau,-e the Company is 
not in the position you represent, They are receiving from the people of Tasmania a payment. 

526. 'l'he railway still remains their property? When they have CDmplied with the Act. 
527. And the cost of maintenance will be very large'( I think they must have anticipated 

that. Mr. Palmer says you will have to face a loss of £50,000 to £60,000 a year fDr 1 (l years. 
528. Is it not to their advantage to make the line as substantial as possible? It may be to 

their advantage to make a cheap and inferior line. 
529. Do you know that the contract which the Minister has had in his hands, and which the 

late Minister has now, provides for steel rails of 60 lbs., and ballast 1720 cubic yards to the mile. 
This contract is signed by Pauling· Bros. Does not that provide for a very substantial line? 
Certainly not. You may have good rails and plenty of ballast, but there are other points quite as 
material which may be overlooked. 

530. Does not that show on the part of the promoters a desire for a substantial railway? Not 
necessarily. I think they are very wise to adopt a stronger road. 

At 5.20 P,M, the Committee adjourned . 

. WEDNESDAY, 8TH NOVEMBER. 

Examination of FREDERICK BACK, continued. 

531. By M1·. Butler.-_What has been the averag·e cost of construction of the Government 
lines per mile? £8189 per mile. 

532. What does that include ? It includes everything for the railway, and rolling stock. 
533. Does it include the purchase of the Main Line Railway? Yes. 
534. What is the cost of the Zeehan line? I have not it here, separated from the tram, but 

you may put it down at £9000 a mile approximately. 
535. The averag·e cost of £8100 includes the purchase of the Main Liue; and does it include 

the _cons_truction of the Launceston and Western broad-gaug·e line? Yes. I may explain that the 
Mam Lme cost the Government £10,150 per mile. 

536 That is the purchase price? Yes. The Western Line, £9093, and the Scottsdale Line 
£8595. ,v ere I discussing the constrnction of a line to the West Coast, I should take the Scotts­
dale Line a:c: a guide. 

537. When where the majority of the lines built? During the last 14 years. It may interest 
you to know that the Sorell Line, with its light rails, cost £912:3 per mile. 

538. Were not the majority of the lines built in expensive times? I think the wages now 
are higher than when the lines were constructed. 

539. The specification in the Schedule of this Act: was that prepared by your instrnctions? 
By direction of the Minister. 

5401 'f?e Act provides for 0,overnment inspection f It dCle~. 
I •' • 
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541. l think the Act provides for pretty foll inspection-Section 16 provides for inspection, 
Section J 9, Sections 26, 27, aml 47---under these circumstances, wonld not the Great ,v estern 
Railway be built equal to the Government lines'? Not necessarily. 

542. Why not? The whole matter turns, not on what you have mentioned, but on the last 
paragraph of Section 17, I take it. The inspecting officer would see that the specifications, 
plans, and sections approved by the Minister were faithfully carried out. 

543. The Minister has the approval of them? At the present moment, unless something in 
this Bill were to remove it. 

544. Is there anything in the amending Bill to remove this approval? Yes, by inserting the 
amendment in Section 4. If the amendment to Section 4, as proposed, is given effect to, to my 
mind it will nullify the provision of Section 17. 

545. And do away altogether with the powers of inspection of Government officers? No; 
the inspection of the Government officer is simply this :-That he sees that the work is carried out 
as provided by such plans, sections, and specifications as may be approved by the Minister. 

546. And good work must be put in, I presum·e? That g·oes without saying·. If he sees that 
the work is properly carried out, you will get a good line, of course. 

547. Is that the same principle on which you would build a Qovernment railway? Yes; if a 
Government railway is tendered for, and contract let, it is the Government Engineer who sees that 
the contract is faithfully carried out in terms of the plans, &c. 

548. Can you tell me the cost of the Derwent Valley Hailwayper mile? £9100 per mile. 
549. You know it is proposed to continue that through to Zeehan by our line? I understand 

your company junctions somewhere at Glenora. 
550. As far as you know would the price per mile exceed the Government contract, the 

£9000? I have nothing to form an opinion on. 
551. Have you seen the plans? I have seen no plans that could give me an idea. As a 

matter of fact, plans have only been deposited for 20 miles. 
552. Have you any reason to think it would be less? I would not attempt to form an opinion. 
553. I have the contract here-it provides for 60-lb. rails and additional ballast-does not 

that increase the cost of the rail way ? Slightly, yes. 
554. Only slightly ? Your promoters will tell you that the cost of the rails and so forth is 

only a very small proportion of the cost of a railway. It will increase the cost of the railway by 
the difference in the weight of metal and the ·difference in number of yards of ballast. That is 
easily run out. 

555. Your evidence, Question 531, given on Monday, in the latter part, you say modern 
engine"rs are increasing the weig·ht of rail, &c.? Quite right. 

556. U n<ler those circumstances does not that increase the cost of the line by building it for 
heavie1· traffic and heavie1· rolling-stock? If you ask me simply the question you originally did, 
will it cost more to pot down a heavier rail and more baliast, I say yes: the difference in the cost 
of iron or steel and in the additional ballast. 

557. Using heavier rolling~stock, does not that increase the cost? No. 
558. The cost of the rolling-stock? No. 
559. Not for more powerful engines? No ; because you will get heaviel' locomotives and less 

of them. 
560. Turn to Question 531-w hat are those ~ther poin tf> you refer to? First of all drainage. 
561. Is not drainage provided for in the specification? Your question is not a fair one ; you 

a:;k me a straight-out question, will putting in so much more ballast and heavier rails give you a 
good line, and I say not necessarily. If your specification is strictly carried out, you will get a good 
line. Merely adding the weight of rails and putting more ballast does not of itself i1ecessitate a 
good line. 

562. If we ha;-e this line constructed in accordance with the specificatior1s prepared by yourself 
or your officers, and under inspection of Government officers, with this extra weight of rail and 
additional balla~t, does 11ot that insure that that the rail way will be a good one? Yes, if that Section 
17 is not interfered with. 

563. As the Act stands at present, you say that will provide for a substantial line? 'l'o put it 
plainly-if the Minister has power to compel this specification being· carried ou~ If the power 
remains with th_e Minister, you can ensure a substantiid line being built. 

564. 'l he specifications are only propo.;;ed to be altered in one place-that is, the curves and 
grades-with the ballast, sleepers, and all other details put in, does not that provide for a substantial 
line? Substantial in the way of' strength. 

565. And safety ? No. . 
566. \Vhy not? Because you at once remove from the control of the Minister the enforce­

went of those specifications. With the powers of the original Act-referred to in Section 17-
remainiug, you will have a good line, If you put in a heavier rail and more ballast, you will, of 
course, have a better line. 

567. Have you any ueason to think that the line, as proposed, will be inferior? I do not 
understand the question-inferior to what? 

568, You said it may be to their ad vantage to make an inferior line? So it might be to 
their advantage. 

569. With the Government inspection and the heavier weight of rails, have you any reason to 
believe this will be an inferior line? I will point out to you that it. was to the advantage of the 
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Main Line Company to put in an inferior line because they ran short of funds. · I can only repeat, 
that if the original Act is kept intact you will h~ve a good line, and if the Company put in more 
ballast and heavier rails you will get a better one than originally proposed. The whole thing hinges 
on that Section 17. . 

570. Can you suggest an amendment to the proposed alteration, that the five-chain curves shall 
not occur within a certain distance? I must refer you to ]\fr. M•Cormick, as he will be the 
responsible officer. 

571. Heferring to the l\Iain Line-you put it to me that it may be to the advantage of the 
promoters to put down a cheap line-Section 43 oft.he original Act provides this:-" The amount 
of compensation paid to the Promoters, &c."-under thesa conditions (which I do not think the Main 
Line Company had) do not we get back all the money we expend on the line if the line is taken 
over by the Government? There is a clau::1e there you have to put into good order. 

572. You put it to us that it mig·ht be to the promoters' advantage to build a cheap anti inferior 
line-I want to point out that what we spend on this railway we get back? Twenty-five years 
hence. 

573. At any time we will get our money back? If the Government buys in 25 years' time, 
the Company will g·et their money back, It is too remote to have any bearing at present. 

574. I wish to show that what money we spend we get back again, and we get 20 per cent .. on 
this? I have given you a_ case where it was to the advantage of a Company to put in a cheap line. 

575. vVas that provision insei·ted in the Main Line Bill? As far as I .can remember, the 
conditions were absolutely different: in one case- no provision was made for purchase; and I 
believe that one of the Premiers in this Colony stated that the Main Line Act was purposely bal<l 
and vague; various provisions, such as should be put in, were omitted. 

576. Is our Act bald and vag·ue? No; I do not think so. If you stick to your schedule 
and Act you have a very good one. 

577. If the line is not in goo<l wor~ing order we have to pay what sum shall be ueces~ary to 
. make it a fair working· line t The Act provides that ; yes. 

. 578. If we build a shoddy line, is not the cost of rnai'ntenance very much greater? It depends 
011 the traffic: a good line is always more economical than a bad on<>. · 

579. vV e have to run 25 years before the Government can take it over? Yes. 
580. During that time we have to provide fo1· the cost of maintenance? Yes. 
58]. Therefore, it is to our advantage to run the line as cheaply as possible? It depends on 

circumstances: if you have not the capital, you have to finance, and do the best you can. 
· 582. Do you know the contract provides for the full amount to be subscribed? I have not 

seen the contract. 
583. I may say that you should have had this before you, but it only arrived from the "\Vest 

Coast this momiug-I should like to put it in, so t.hat you should see it, and make any comments 
you wish, if you care to do so? If it is the wish of the Committee, I shall be very pleased. 

584. Have there been many accidents on the Main Line? None since I have had charge. 
585. The :Main Line Railway, by their contract, l think, could put in 4-chain curves? I do 

not think so; 5 chain~, I think, is the limit. 
586. I have been informed there was a 4-chain -curve-I think l\'[r. M'Cormick said the1·e was 

a 4-chain curve, or he said he believed so? I think the Act provided for 5-chain curves. I know 
some of the curves have been altered. 50 miles of the line have been relaid. 

587 . .AI'e any of ·the grades on the Main Line steeper than l in 40? I do not know of any. 
588. You have seen the plans that have been put in for these 20 miles? No; I cannot ~ay I 

have seen them. They passed thl'ough my hands, but I have not examined them. 
589. On the Main Line, I think, 23 miles an hour was the average speed ? By the Act they 

had to run a train at 23 miles an hour once a day. 
590. The Main Line between Campania and Flat Top is very rough? It is hilly. 
59]. In the northern part, I believe, it is fair country-from Launceston to Campbell.~ Town, 

say? There are some steep gradieuts there. 
592. And sharp curves'( Yes. There are some pieces of straight line, and less curves and 

steep grades than on the other portion ; but still they are there. 
. 5!:l3. Do they occm' frequently? Less freqnently than in other places. 

594. This railway is to ruu at 15 miles an hour, including all stoppag·es and detentions? That 
is, tu include everything? I think I recommended you to put the word "average" in. 

595. That is an average speed? Yes. 
596. I want to know if the shal'p curves aud heavy grades were put iu very frequently, could 

that speed be nmintained? Yes; you would reduce your load accordiug· to the resistance due to 
friction, always undel'standing sharp reverse curves are not too close together. . 

587. Or use more powerful eng·ines? vVhatever your engine is you reduce the load. 
598. To force the train over sharp eurves and heavy grades, it wears the line out quickly, at a 

big speed ? The grnater the speed, and the greater the weig·ht of the engine on sharp curves, the 
less tli e life of the rail. 

590. You knuw the Main Line fairly well? Y eF. 
600. The coutract is iu accordance with the specifica tious in the A et, and provi<les for 60-1 b. 

rails, and 22 yards ballast, iustead of 16 yards per chain, and the speed is to be 15 miles an hour. 
Then we have, I believe, ballast on the Main Line 13 yards to the chain, speed 23 miles, and rails 
40 lbs. or 46 lbs.· I want to put it to you, as the Main Line was built by the contractors, and as 
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this Great Western Railway has been signed for to be built, which would be the most substantial 
line? I do not know anything about the i\Iain Line, as it was built. Railway construction then 
was of a very much lighter character. I went over part of the Midland Railway in England, 
when they were putting· down ~O lbs. rails, and the Chief engineer told me he thoug·ht they had 
reached the maximum weight then, but since that they have been increased up to I 00 lbs. and over. 
The Tasmanian Main Line has been relaid with 61 lb. rails, for more than 50 miles. 

601. On the same ballast? On our standard ballast . 
. 602. My question is a fair one-the Main Line, as you saw it when you came here, and the 

Great We!"tern, as it is signed-or in that contract to be built under Government inspection, with 
a specification prepared in your office, and heavier rails and more ballast, and 5-chain curves and 
more ballast.-! want yon to make a comparison between lhe two lines'( I have not seen the 
inside of the contract. 

603. But if I tell you the contract is to build a line in accordance with those specifications 
prepared in your office-under these circumstances can you compare the two Jines? Yes. I 
should say a line built under this orig-inal Act and specification will give you an infinitely better 
line than the country got 25 years ag·o from the Main Line. 

604. Question 510-" You would have to appoint an inspector, and get his report "-Who has 
to appoint the Inspector? The Governor in Council. . 

605. Have the promoters anything· to do with this appointment? I must refer to the Act. I 
think- the Minister appoints his own inspector. 

60G. Your statement was that you were not hostile to the Company? Quite rig·ht; whilst I 
have been opposed to the several syndicates I have named, as I believed it to be my duty. Now 
the Government having decided that tlrn country should have them, it is for me to give them eve1·y 
assistance I can. Having recorded my protest, it now becomes my duty to assist the Company. 

607. May I remind you that Section 19 provides that the inspector is to be appointed by the 
Governor "in Council-yum· answer rather puts it that the promoters were lax in not having this 
report before the Committee? No. 

608. I want that construction removed? 'l'be Chairman was about to ask me as to the con­
struction of the line. I said I knew nothing· about it-that the inspector was. the proper person. 

609. It is not through any fault of the promoters that this officer was not appointed? I take 
it thnt practical construction has not commenced, therefore no appointment has been made. When 
the promoters begin actual construction work they will notify the Government, and an officer will 
be selected. . 

610. I think, although you may not think it, that yon are putting a very stringent constrnction 
on some of the provisions : you have not a liueral mind towards the concessionail'es? l do not 
agree with you. At the present time you are trying to cross-examine me, and I only prot~ct 
myself. I gave yon my evidence to the best of my knowledge and belief, and I stick to every word 
I said; and if you try to shake my evidence I also take care that you shall not. There is nothing 
hostile in that. 

611. In the event of this Company failing to build the line, would the Government build it? 
I could not say. 

612. Would you recommend it? A question of that sort is far too large to answer. 
613. You know the feeling· in the South that the capital should be connected with the Zeehan 

silver fields? I believe a majority hold that opinion. 
6 I 4. Do you not think so yourself? lf the line can be made to pay. 
615. And if it could be made to pay, you would have no hesitation in recommending the 

Government to build? If it could be made to pay, I should recommend it, undoubtedly. 
616. Do you think it could be made to pay-I am asking you as a rail way man, from your 

own knowledge and opinion? The whole of the Governwent railway revenul) of the West GJast 
amounts last year to about £40,000. If it could be shown that this railway, or any other railway in 
the Colony, would pay, I should hold up both hands for it When you ask me if I think it would 
pay, I can only deal with facts before me. I can only give you the tonnage carried last year. The 
total tonnage of minerals carried on the Govermnent lines on the vVest Coast last year was 53,000 
tons, including· that carried on the tramway. They are <leepening the harbour. At the present moment 
the sea freights rnn from 5s. ficl. and 6s. up to 12s. Ore is taken to New South Wales at a freight 
of 6s. a ton from Strahan. Low-gTade ore, valued at less than £6 a ton, is caniecl at 2d. per ton 
per 1nile on the Government lines. Cau you divert this trade to the G-reat \iVestern Railway? 

617 . .Are the pl'incipal mines opened up-is not that the smallest part of the field which is 
served by those railways? I do not think so. I do not know of any mine that is not served. 

618. Is any ore being sent from tlie Mount Lyell Mines or Mount Read? From Mount. 
Read, yes, a considerable quantity. 

. 619. The Hercules? The Hercules have not commAuced sending out ore. \iV hen it does, it 
will come by our tramway. 

620. Tile Red Hills lVIine? It is ouly iu a prospecting stage. 
621. Have you any objection to the nrnniug· rates being fixed ?-Section 33, the Minister may 

g-rant running powers. Have you any objection to these rates for the running powers being· 
fixed? lam very g·lad to have the opportuuity of rnplyiug· to that question. Mr. Palme1·,·acting 
probably nuder some misappreliensiou, sai<l ·I declined to give him the .1·ates for caniage of goods 
over the Government railways. J.vlr. Palmer has the opportunity of sending his goods a.t our 
schedule rates. Mr. Palmer's counsel, Mr. Dobson, pressed me very hard to say what con-
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cessions on the present rates would be made. The: statements that have been made in 
evideuce-particularly Mr. Palmer's and Mr. Officer's-a;·e so widely diverg·ent that no railway 
manager would undertake to make up a schedule under exisLing conditions. We have, uuder the 
evidence of :Mr. Palmer, that for the next ten years the line cannot pay,-that there will be a loss 
of £50,000 or £60,000 a year. Then we have, in Mr. Palmer's evidence, that they will have 
ore-reduction works somewhere, probably on the ba11ks of the river, and the minimum tonnag·e per 
day will be 1500 tons, and the maximum 3000 to 3500 tons. See Questions 563 and 588 in the 
original evidence. lf Mr. Palmer's fig·ures are realised, we shall require to duplicate the line from 
Hobart to Bridgewater, and proba.bly to Glenora, and should require a large amount of rolling­
stock. I have prepared a schedule of the r11,tes in operation for the carriage of materials used_ in 
the construction of a railway, such as rails and fastenings, cement, bricks, timber, galvanised iron,· 
and contractors' plant and material. The average of these rates is lower slightly, by Id., in 
Tasmania than in Victoria, and compare with New South Wales,!) 1 /, as against J 15/ in New South 
Wales. I shall be very pleased to g_et from :Mr. Palmer any definite proposals as to traffic; and, 
if any reductions are made, they :would have to be made 011 such quant.ities as would enable us to 
work at a profit.. At present, on the Derwent Valley line, it costs us £ 111 to earn £ LOO, and the 
.Main Line returns 0·8:1 per cent. only: so that there is very little scope for reduction under existing 
circumstances. I have never had any trouble in making arrangements with other companies; but, 
with such widely divergent statements as 1 have had befol'e me, it is impossible to deal with them. 
Nothing has ever been put in writing about the matter. 

621. I asked you if you would fix the rates. You say you will ; and I am satisfied with that? 
Certain verbal statements have been made in connection with rates, but I have never had anything 
definite before me. Mr. Dobson said he wanted to know what concessions I would make on the 
traffic of the line. With such different statements before me, I was really not in a position to 
answer. If a railway manager has a definite proposal before him he knows what he is doing, but 
in this case there is nothing to go on. · . · 

6:23. These rates you have given us are not hig·her than charg·ed to the general public? Those 
rates are open to all. 

624. Are they any cheaper ? Those are the rates in our rate book. 
ti25. Could you, under the circumstances, make any reduction on these rates? I am afraid 

not. The Derweut Valley Line is working at a loss. We are practically working between these 
points at less than cost price. . 

62t:i. But, many of your railways are not running at a profit? Five of our lines are worked 
at a loss. 'l'he total is a loss of about £3500 a year on the non-paying lines. 

627. The other lines have to make up for the non-paying ones? 'l'here is no making up for 
losses. . . 

6:28. You have referred to Mr. Palmer's evidence, page 29, about the loss on the railway-I 
want to ask you if that evidence was not given four years ago? Yon will see the date for yourself. 
I dare say it was. . 

62~. On the 2nd October, 1896? Three years ago. 
630. Were the fields anything like as developed then as they are now? No; particularly in 

the Lyell district. _ 
t:i3l. By Mr. Hall.-You said in your evidence the total tonna.g·e carried on the ,vest Coast 

lines was 53,000 tons ? That is goods and minerals. 
63:2. I presume that would be over the Government lines? Yes,· between all stations on the 

railway from Strahan to Zeehan, and on the tramway to Deep Lead as well. 
633. ,vould it not be safe to hazal'd an opiuion that there is an equal quantity carried between 

Lyell and Strahan-that is, goods and minerals? There is a considerable amount. I forget the 
figures. I do not think it is so much as ours. 

634. ln the evidence you gave, the 53,000 represented the volume of traffic on the West Coast. 
I should like to have that removed? I was asked whether I would recommend the construction of 
the line by the Government, aud if we constructed a line there the Mount Lyell traffic would not 
come to such a railway. . 

6:~f>. S11ppose this Colony constructed a line to the West Coast-say to Mount Darwm. 
\Vould it not be reasonable to assume that a larg·e passenger traffic would at once spring up between 
Hobart and the \-Vest Coast, in preference to travelli11g by steamer? I am sorry that I have to 
give evidence which may appear hostile to the Company. The whole of the passenger traffic 
between Launceston and Hobart, including· that which comes from Australia, would not half pay 
the cust of working the line. . 

636. I know you are hostile to all syndicate railways? J am not hostile. I was hostile before 
the Bill was passed, but Parliament having decided that the Company has the right to construct a 
line, 1 will help all in my power. I am prepared· to work witl1 them. But when we come to 
figures, I must express myself clearly iu the ma11ner which I believe to be trne. . 
· 6:37. I was a member of the Committee which took evidence on the :Midland Railway Bill, and 

in reply to myself you said you were opposed to syndieate railways? Yes, I was, and still am, 
opposed to auy syndicate railways; but this Bill has been passed by the House, an? assented to by 
the people of 'l'asmania, and as a servant of the public l must give effect to their wishes, and there-
for I am prepared to work in partnership, as it were, with the vompany. . 
- 638. You gave in your evidence the volume of traffic. Counsel did not push the q uest10n as 
to whether that was the actual volume of traffic over the Government lines. I tt10ught, as 
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Manager, you would have some idea of the good; ca1Tied over the Stnthan-Lyell Line ? I think 
it is about 50,000 tons. 

630. You are aware that that district is i11crnasing rPar by. year? Yes. 
640. Within your knowledge, during. the last two 1years it has nearly doubled its output? I 

think you are right. 
641. In your answer to Mr. Butler you pointed out that the Derwent Valley Line was being 

worked at a loss. You also refer to a retnrn, or some estimate given by Mr. Palmer, in reference 
to the probable traffic per day. Assuming this line is constructed, would it not increase the traffic 
on the Derwent Valley Line to a. very great extent? It would increase it to the extent of any 
traffic brnught over it. It would increase it to a minimum of 1500 tons a day, if l\fr. Palmer's 
estimate is correct. 

li42. Mr. Palmer wonld make an estimate based on the development of the vV est Coast. I 
do not know that this is over-estimated. · It may he for the prnsent, but look at the fact that the 
late Premier said some time ago that tlw!'e wouid be 3(, or 40 thousand people in the West Coast 
in a few years, which statement was ridiculed at the time. You stated that the Derwent Valley 
Line wa!'l bPing run at a loss? Quite right. 

643 . .You also stated that the Great " 7 estern Line would start from a point on that line? 
Yes, somewhere near Glenora. There is a diffic-ulty in junctioning at the present station, because it 
is confined by the banks of the river. 

644. Is there any probability of the Great Western Railway carrying on their line from that 
point to Hobart, or is it their intention to connect with tlie Government line? Their Act gives 
t.hem power to connect with the Derwent Valley Line. 

645. Assuming they connect, will it not in your opinion, as General Manager of Railways, 
convert this line from a non-paying line to a remunerative one? If the traffic is suffic.ient, it will do 
so very easily. · 

646. I presume your present rolling stock is capable of carrying sufficient goods and passeng·ers 
to convert it into a paying· line? Very nearly. The capital expenditure was very heavy. We 
have a very large sui:n to make up, Not only" that, we are not paying our working expenses on the 
Derwent-Valley Line, it cost £221,UOO, and no interest is earned. . 

647. It struck me when you wade that statement that the line was being worked at a loss, that 
if the Great Western carry out their intention of making a line from Glenora. to the West Coast it, 
must, as an absolute fact, increase the traffic on the Derwent Valley Line'? It will. 

648. And therefore it will be the means of converting this li11e into a remunerative one? Of 
c"urse, if we have such rates as will pay. 

1549. Do you know anything of South Australia? A little. . 
650. Can you give any idea of the daily traffic on the line between Broken Hill and the sea-

board? l have the figures in my office, but cannot remember them. 
651. Have you any idea? Ko. 
652. W ouid it he 5(·0 tons a dav ? More. 
653. l O()D? Probably. • 
654. t!uch being the ('ase, if a population of 30,000 people can provide a traffic of 1000 tons a 

day, is it not reasonable to assume that Mr. Palmer's figures of 1,500 tons a day are correct? Let 
us hope so. ] must remind you that the line you speak of was made for the Brvken Hill mines. 
They are putting out a very great deal of low grade ore, and under like con_ditions this G::"eat 
Western line would pay handsomely. · 

655. What is the length of the line from Port Pirie to Broken Hill-Is it 285 miles ? About 
that. The traffic you speak of is p1·obably confined to low grade ores. 

656. From your knowledge of the West Coast, is it not a fact that you find enormous quantities 
of low grade ores? As far as I know the whole country is mineralised. 

657. Do you know the freight ·on the South Austrnlian lines? I could not tell you fro111 
memorv. 

658. If I said it was, 9s. a ton for the 285 miles, would that be correct? It might be. 
659: From your knowledge of the West Coast, supposing· the ore produced there could he 

landed at a port of shipment like being landed at Adelaide, at !:Is. a ton, do you know that there are 
deposits which it would pay handsomely to work? It has been my experience that when you come 
to these sharp curves and steep gradients the profit is reduced. 

6fl0. Are there any steep grades and sharp curves between these points on the South Australian 
line? Nothing- steeper than one in seventy, l thi11k. 

661_. Of c?urse you know that the great difficulty in developing the West Coast has been the 
tr?u_hle in gettmg the low grade ores to some central position, and where they can he smelted at 
rnrnnnum cost? Yes. · · 

662. Do you not think that if the low grade ores could he located in some central position, say 
at Bridgewater, where vessels of larg·e tonnage could g·et in and land coke, if landed there at a cost 
of £1 a tou, would it not mean the opeuing up of enormous deposits where the line is likely to p::.ss? 
If they could get such traffic as on the li11e you refer to in S(1uth Australia, and if they pay £1 a 
ton freight, it would be a payable und- !'taking. All these matters we refer to are much matters 
of local conditions. In New South Wale~ on a grade of I in 40 they take 350 tons at a speed of 
15 miles an hour. Our very best would be ] 20 tons, and then at 4 miles anh our. Practically, our 
load is 100 tons on 1 in 40 grades,as against 350 tons in New South Wales. Our maximum load 
with a ~·oods train between Hobart aµd l,aunc~ston, is ] i trµcks, ln Australia and New Zealand 
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tlrny take 60 to 80 trucks. I have taken a load of 106 trucks in New Zealand. There is a g-reat 
difference in the cost of working when vou can take 50, or 60, or 70 trncks bel1ind a trnin, and it is 
nearly the same expense taking 12 • 

R63. You stated that in New South vVales on grades of 1 in 40 they take loads of 350 tons at 
15 miles a11 hour. In Tasmania yonr best is 120 tons. According to this Bill the grade,-; are not 
to exceed I in 40. . I ca11not quite follow it? I can explain it vrry easily .. The power of a loco­
motive is governed by its boiler. A big· boiler requires a large engine, and a large engine requires 
a strong· road. In New South Wales they have engi11es that wrigh over 100 tons. They have 
90 lb. rails and a gauge of 4 ft. 8½ in.-more width for the boiler. They have, consequently, very 
much greater power, and can haul a bigger load. 

664. Are yon aware that 011 some of the New Sonth Wales li11es they convey ore 300 miles at 
£1 a ton-tin ore? Speaking romparatively, that is as dear as we charg·e. 

665. You charge 12s. 6cl. for 29 miles? Aud we caJTy coal at three farthings per ton 
per mile. 

666. You gave 1widence before the C11mmittee when the Hailway Bill was Lefore the House 
three years ago. During· the interval has there been any rapid development on the Coast in 
minel'als? Yes. I take it that the principal developments have been the Mount Read district, 
which was opened by the Government tramway, and the sale of its low-grade ore to the smelters, 
and at Mount Lyell. 

667. Has there not been a wonderful derelopment in the Lyell district? Yes; I suppose the 
business of the Lyell district has more than doubled. · 

668. Do you not think it likely the mineral development will again double during the next 
three years? I think that very much depends on the treatment of zincifer0us ores. I think the 
ores which will form the next large increase will be zinciferous oreg. I eh> nut know much about 
minerals, but I am advi~ed that they are getting· closer to the method of treating_ these refrac-
tory ores. . · . 

669. During· your last visit a fortnight ago did you hear any favourable reports of the Darwin 
and Jukes di~tricts? I heard the prospects are very good. 

670. I think these zinciferous ores are confined to the ,v estern and Read district? Yes, I 
think so. 

671. Going further south the ore deposits take the form of copper more than zinc, that is in the 
Macintosh, Murchison, and Red Hills districts; then g·oing· to Lyell, Darwin, and Jukes? The 
minerals are of a mixture containing almost everything. 

672. I make 110 secret of the fact that I am a strong advocate for syndicate railways, and I do 
not know that I should have put any q nestion at all but that I was afraid your evidence may in all 
probability convey an impression that the!'e was only a certain volume of trade in minerals on the 
West Coast, and that the future gives no indication of a. further development? The figures I gave 
were to empha~ise the position I took up in reply to Mr. Butler's question. The que~tion ~vas, t.hat 
if the company failfid to construct the ·line would I recommen_d the Government to make it.. l said 
if shown that the railway would pay I would hold up both hands for it. Counsel dropped his exami• 
l).ation at that stage and did not bring out the point. What I meant to say was, that 5:3,000 tons 
were c_arried last year on the Government railways on the West Coast, and it was problematical at 
present whether the traffic would warrant the line being made. . · 

673. In addition to that, you went on to say that the 1Vlacqua.1·ie Bar was being deepened, and 
that sea freight was 6s. a ton? From Strahan to Sydney, 6s. a toll. · · 

674. In some instances it was necessary to convey that ore from a considerable distance, at 
great cost, to land it at Strahan. But the impression left on my mind would be that these mines 
were located in the vicinity of Macquarie Harbour or Strahan; consequently they could. be con­
verted into a marketab.le commodity, and landed a~ Sydney at 6s. a ton. Going east of Mount 
Lyell, I suppose you are aware that fresh developments are being made? Yes. . 

675. Suppose the indications continue to be favourable, and assuming· that even ·this syndicate 
fails to construct a line, and the Government refuses to construct a line on the grounds that. there is 
nothing· to warrant it, will it be possible to work these mines at a profit? The question is rather a 
difficult one to answer; it depends on what other means you could get of conveying the stuff to the 
seaboard. I do not think that the people will fail to send their ores away, if tlrny al'e there; they 
will find a means. 

676. Are you aware that before the Government constructed the Strahan-Zeehan Line there 
was only one company able to pay a dividend, and that was through striking· a wonderfully rich bit 
of ore,--I refer to the Silver Queen ? We finished the line at the time you are speaking of. 

677. Since the construction of that line, notwithstanding the fact that silver dropped to about 
half its original value, al'e you aware that wonderful developments continued? Yes .. 

678. And are still continuing? Yes. . 
679. From your knowledge of Zeehan, do yon think the prospects of that district are p1'omising· 

for the future? I give my opinion with much diffidence, as I do not know much about minerals. 
The West Coast uf 'l'asmania contains enormous beds of ore, but the ores are refactury- and low in 
value. It will have to be dealt with by strong companies and large capital. As we have seen in 
the case of Lyell, science and capital will makfl them pay. I. have no doubt that in the future 
these ores will pay for treating, and that the West Coast for many miles will be a large minernl 
field .. I belie".e that where there are now a few thousand people, in a few years the place_ will I?.~ 
,thic).,ltp<?p_ulated1. · · • · · • 
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680. Holding this opinion, do you not think the construction of a line similar to the one we 
are now discussing· would be a marvellous inducement to capitalists to find money and develop these 
ore beds, well knowing that as soon as they had the ore ready there would be a means to send it to 
market? I do not think it would. I think most people will agree with me that the mining 
people will find the cheapest possible method of taking their ore to market, and if water carriage is 
cheaper than land carriag·e they will take it that way. . . 

681. Are you not aware that this company intend to connect the West Coast with one of the 
best ports i_n the southern hemisphere, or, I might say, in the whole world? That does not affect 
the question.- The cost of carriage is very high in . thi~ mountainous country ; therefore, if men 
come here with a large capital they will endeavour to tak_e their output to port by the shortest 
possible means. Why did not the Lyell people take their ore to Hobart? They take it the. 
snortest route to deep water. 

682. You hold in this Colony a very hig·h and responsible position. Any evidence you may 
give will have a wonderful influence on those who, in all probability, may be induced to find the 
money for the construction of this line. This is the reason I am putting these questions to you, 
because I want to have your opinion on various points. You have made certain admissions, and I 
think they are admissions that will be of very great value to the promoters. You have admitted, 
although you disclaim any knowledge of minerals, thaf there are large bodies of ore on the "\i\' est 
Coast ? · Y ei;:. 

683. That admission is of great value. You say capitalists. will find a ·means of reaching a 
market. Have .you heard in general conversation with prospectors that there are strong indications 
of mineral formations between Glenora and the West Coast, or in the country through which. ·this 
line will pass ? Some time ago, when I was in the district, a prospector told me there were traces 
of minerals, but that not sufficient work had been done to see ,vhat minerals were there. But I do 
not know very much about it. . 

684. From that information, it must convey to your mind that this line is not to pass through 
barren country. In all probability it will be the means of developing further deposits practically 
unknown at present? I should not like to express an opinion on that. I should not be surprised 
at a discovery of minerals in any part of 'l'asmania. 

685. Many prospectors have informed me that they have found very favourable indications, 
and I thought in all probability you had heard the same? I have heard what I just said. That 
bears out what I say, and shows that this line is not starting from a given point over _barren 
country the whole distance. It will open up mineral deposits undeveloped at present, but ·still the 
indications are there to warrant the company putting in the line. 

686. By Mr. Butler.-Taking into consideration the carriage of the ore to Strahan on the 
Government lines, have you considered the fact that you have to tranship from Strahan for ·Eng-land 
or for Melbourne, and if brought through to Hobart you can ship direct to England or any part? 
I said that the freight between two points was 6s. a ton. . 

687. Have you taken into consideration that with the railway to Strahan there is shipping 
freight to be paid from Strahan to Hobart, or Melbourne, and if the line is run from Zeehan to 
Hobart, there will be only one shipping from Hobart? It will save a handling. 

688. It will be cheaper? The handling between two points will be saved. 
Mr. Back withdrew. 

MR. W. J. McWILLIAMS, examined. 

]\fr. McWilliams made Statutory Declaration. 
689. By the Chairman.-What is your name? William James Mc"\Villiams. 
690. You ai•e a Member of the 11 ouse of Assembly? Yes. 
691. By Mr. Butler.-"\Vill yon read that letter, and state whether it was received by you, 

and from· whom? This is dated 11 th August, 1899, and is from the Agent-General. [Letter 
read (Appendix Y.) ]. 

692. Are you Agent for the company here? Yes. . . , 
693. Do you know if the Government have approved the selection of the blocks? Yes. ,v e 

applied on 25th November, last year. Mr. Chrisp and myself went to l\fr. Counsel,.the SnrvPyor­
General, and :\fr. Wallace, Secretary for Mines. We were very anxious there shouh.1 be no .diffi­
culty about it, an<l we marked off our application fOJ' one of the blocks of land, and _received an 
answer from the Minister of Lands that the block which we had selected was the one which 
Ministers wanted to retain. The Minister informed us that they intended to retain that block, and 
we would have to take the others. 

694. Did the Government approve of the method of selecting these blocks? Yes. vVe did 
it on the recommendation of Mr. Wallace. There had been some difficulty, and I was very anxiom 
there slwuld be no trouble about marking them off. We went to the Secretary of Mines, and the 
Surveyor-General. 

695. The blocks have been put in? Yes, and the land pegged off. 
696. Have the Government taken any exception to the form of that? No, 
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697. Did you communicate the fact to Loudon or Adelaide that the blocks had been selected? 

I sent on the original letter, keeping a copy. Immediately I received the letter from the Minister 
I wired, and sent on the original letter. · 

698. You remember about June, 1899, the question of the Agent-General being a Director 
cropped up? Yes. 

699. Do you aJso remember that Sir Edward Braddon wrote a letter on 5th June in which 
he stated that the Minister and Solicitor-General stated it was un<lesirable that Sir Philip Fysh 
should take a seat on the Board? I have seen it in the correspondence. I did not know that a 
letter had been sent. 

700. Did you and Mr. Fitzg·erald interview the Premier on that matter? Yes : at the 
meeting we had to discuss the matter; it was then stated by Mr. Mulcahy that Sir Philip Fysh 
had been asked to become a member of the Board and the Government had refused, and after a 
conversation I went with Mr. Fitzgerald to Sir Edward Braddon, and we asked him to allow Sir 
Philip Fysh to remain as Director. 

701. Did lVIr. Fitzgerald g·o with you as Chairman of the Railway League of Tasmania? Yes. 
702. Was his request carrying out the wishes of the League? I believe so. 
703. Did the Premier give you a favourable answer? He said that the matter was of such 

importance that he would have to consider it. After that he sent a letter to Mr. Fitzgerald, or 
informed him that they had not been able to allow Sir Philip to act. . 

704. Do you know if he sent a telegram to Sir Philip Fysh, asking· him to resig·n ? Only by 
correspondence that has been tabled, and by information l have received from the Company. 

705. As Agent for the Company were you not informed at the time? Some little time 
afterwards. That would come from London to Adelaide, and then here. I knew indirectly in 
Tasmania before I g·ot official intimation from the Company. 

706. By the Chairman.-Y ou say that applications were put in for the blocks. \-Vhat 
applications l For marking off the ground; that is, we peg·g·ed off the block. 

707. That is the first block the Company was entitled to? There were certain blocks, and 
the selection of the Company had to agree with the approval of the Minister. That is, the 
Minister could either approve of the red block or the blue, aud we took the other one. Tlrn blocks 
were alternate. We put in pegs for the blue block. The Minister said he wanted to reserve the 
blue block because it would take in the Florentine Valley. We then had to take the red blocks. 

Mr. Mc Williams withdrew. 

MR. PALMER, recalled. 

708. By ~fr. Butler.-! wish to know how often the contractors will use sha1·p curves and 
st~ep grades 't As the contractors are purchasing £385,000 worth of shares in the_ Company they 
will be extremely careful that the line shall be an effective one ; if it is not, they will not be able to 
get rid of their shares. I may say that we have tied them down pretty tight in every. other way, 
so that there is no chance of the curves and grades being used more often than is ne~essary 
to make it a reasonable line. The fact of the Promoters increasing· the weig·ht of the r_ails and 
amount of ballast, l think should prove that they are anxious to make it a really good lme, and 
able to carry heavy eng·ines and large loads at a cheap rate. . 

709. Have your mstructions to the contractors and solicitors in Londou been to have a hue 
equal to the Government lines ? No, better iu every instance. We <lo not think the Goverument 
rolling stock 1s heavy en<>ugh, or that the Government lines are heavy enough iu any way, and that 
is the reason we have increased the-weight of rails and rolling stock. . 

710. Does increasiug the weight ot rails and amount of ballast mean that you are g·omg to 
have heavier rolling !ltock? Yes, of course ; we are able to. 

711. The contract which has been put in has the name of Norton, Hose, & Norton at the 
bottom-they are the solicitors for the 11ew Company '/ Yes. . . . 

712 . .l:ias that contract been prepared by them? Yes, and the articles of assoc1_at10n .. 
. 7 J 0. Ha_ve you anything to say as to the experien_ce _of .N ~rton, Ho~~, & ~ ort~n m refere,n,ce to 

tins matter ot contract ·t 'lhey are regarded as the pnnc1pal rad way solicitors Ill Eug·land. l hey, 
and one other firm, do most uf the railway work. Norton, Hose, aud Nortou d~ tl_ie bul~. , 

714. !Jo you know who were the solicitors who peru!'ed the contract on behalf of Paul111g1:, ? 
I can't remember their names, although I know them. . 

715. lt was submitted to other solicitors? Yes to the solicitors to the u11<lerwr1ters, the 
solicitors for the purchasers of the 120 000 shares soli~iturs tor the contractors, an<l solicitors for 

' ' . l t· I ourselves · and also the contracturs and ourselves with these solic1tors, were toget ier or cays 
discussing: that' cout;·act. 'lhe solicitors for· the t;uderwriters were solicitors for the Tas111a11ia11 
Government. 

716. You heard me read one of l\'lr. Back's answers, in which he said it might be to the 
advaIJtage of the Promoters to build a cheap aml inferior hue'( 'lhat would l,e quite w~·Ollg ~uder 
the circumstauce tlrnt the Promoters are taknJO' uo cash aud are taking what they get m ordmary 
shar~s, allowing debeutures and preference shfres to build the ~ine. '1 herefo_re, lt is inq,ortant that 
the !me should be built in a substantial manner, because the ordmary shares will 11ot come mto value 
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to-day-it will take •time. Therefore, it is of the utmost importance to the Promoters to have 
a very substantial line that will last until the country has time to develop .. 

717. Can you tell me what is the feeling- of the men who are interested in this contract, or the 
Directors, as to the purchasing clause? The Chairman of Directors in Loudon is of opinion that 
the purchasing clause should be a distinct statement that if the line is in running order we should 
get our money back, and 20 per cent. added. 

718. They do not regard the clause as favourable, then? No; they think everything is left 
too much in the hands of the Government, and the people who are finding the principal part of 
the money have too little say in the management of• the concern. There is a clause in Mr. 
Tennant's letter in which he puts it very plainly. 

719. I want you to say whether there is any intention or idea on the part of the Promoters to 
build this line for sale to the Government? I think that the very fact of such men as Mr. Tennant, 
Mr. Craik, and the other Directors and solicitors, speaks for itse

0

lf. The reputation of the whole 
of them is proved beyond anything- I can say. It is quite certain these men will not lend their 
names to anything like trickery. (Reading- part of Mr. Tennant's letter as to power of purchase.) 

720. That was written when Mr. 'l'ennant had in his mind that the Government were hostile? 
Yes. Prior to that none of these questions arose. 

721. Do you know if Mr. Tennant and the other gentlemen in England are still of opinion 
that the Government is hostile? Yes; they do not know anything- about the new Government. 

722. When you return to England will one of tha first things be to remove that idea of 
hostility? That ii;: _the only possible way to get the thing through. 

723. By the Clzairman.-Why in your draft Bill do you not ask for an amendment of the 
purchasing clause? I think it has been overlooked ; I do not know why it was not put in. The 
sug·gestions came from so many quarters that I suppose it was overlooked, 

111r. Butler.-The letter I received in answer to my application that this correspondence 
between the Agent-General and the Premier, placed in the House, shall be open for my inspection, 
hardly gives me what I wanted. I asked that I should inspect these telegrams, in order to see that 
all the documents that passed between the Agent-General and the Premier were laid on the table 
of the House. I cannot really ask for any specific ·documents, as I do not know what they may be. 
I wish to know if all the documents that were broug·ht down by Mr. Wise had been laid on the 
table of the House. As I have a copy, I shall be able to compare, and see. I thought there may 
have been something left out. My application was really for inspection of the documents with 
the copy of those that were laid on the table of the House. 

The Chairman.-The decision arrived at by the Committee on :,our application was a 
unanimous one. 

Mr. Butler.-! do not object to it. I shall be perfectly satisfied if yo_u, as a member of the 
Committee, assure me that tlie documents there were those laid on the table of the House. That 
is all that I really want. · 

The Chairman.-lt may be that some of those telegrams were of subsequent date to those laid 
on the table of the House. · 

JJ;lr. Butler.-! have been instructed to make this request. If the Committee think it 
desirable, would you, as Chairman, or any person you may name, cable to England (we paying 
expenses) to either the Agent-General or one of those financiers, asking that if the guarantee 
stated is given, would the flotation be assured ? · 

The Cltairman.-I doubt whether that would come within the province of the Committee. I 
suggest that, if you wish to get that before us, yon arrange to get the Government, throug·h the 
Agent-General, to do it, and call as a witness the person receiving the reply. So far as the 
Committee is concerned, I doubt whether we could entertain the application, because we are 
governed by our directions from the House. 

Mr. Butler.-"re wish you to know that, if a guarantee is given, the flotation will be assured, 
I should like this to be done, and the reply placed before you as soon as we receive it, 

NOVEMBER 15, 1899. 

STEPHEN TERRY, called and examined. 

Mr. Terry made the statutory declarat10n. 
724. By Mr. Butler.-What is your name? Stephen Terry. 
725. And what are you? I am a prospector and miner. 
726. How long· have you been prospecting and mining ? Nine years - a little over nine years. 
727. Do you know the country round about the Humboldt? Yes, sir. 
728. You know the Great Western Railway-line-the surveyed line? Yes, sir ; but not right 

through. 
7-29. How far do you know it? I know it some few miles beyon<l the Florentine. The most of 

my attention, in prospecting, was given to the country between the Florentine and Tyenna. 
730. How long ago was that? That was in 1898-September, 1898-September and October, 
?31. Did you find anr indications qf m.in~rals? Yes, verr good indications, 
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· 732. Can you give us a general idea where they were, on the map which if' in front of yon? 

Yes, [witness examines map.] 
733. Now can you give us an idea where those discoveries wern? I first stl'llck it between 

six and ten miles from Tyenna. That is where I strnck the iron formation. I prospected then 
well in towards the Florentine, and I found there a very large blow of iron. A piece of it I have 
here now. rYVitness shows specimen.] 

734. Will you explain any other finds that you found there, Mr. Terry ? Ye~. South nf it, 
in the vicinity of Mount Anne. I was np in the 1-fucin district some few months aftGr that; 1 was 
up there to report on a property which is now working, called the \'Veld's Reward Claim. 

735. Can you indicate where that is? Yes; there is a branch of the Weld River, not marked 
here on the map. When I returned from there, I charted the branch for the Mines Office. It 
is on that branch of the river, within (as far as I can make out) six or eight chains of the side­
line of the Great ,v estern Railway block. That is as near as I can guess by the chart. 
That is, I consider, a continuation of the Humboldt belt, which I found again when I went 
through the southern part of the country. I picked the same distinct belt up rig·ht through to 
the south-west-exactly the same character of stuff. · 

736. Is that a specimen there? Yes; I got that on the Great Western',; sc;uthem block. 
737. What minerals are there? That contains copper and gold. 
738. Anything else? Well, there is a little silver, but I did not bother about it. ,vhy we 

did not bother about that property was that I came to town and saw Mr. Smith, who had just 
retired from the Lands Office-the late secretary of the Lands Office. He was interested 
with me, and when I returned we went to the Mines Office and made inquiries to see if it 
were possible to take the land up. We found that the Great Western Railway people had the land 
protected to the 26th N ovembe.r, and we could really do nothing with it; so, of course, we let it 
stay there. The Govemment informed me they could do nothing·, and I went to Mr. M'\Villiarns, 
who said that he could do nothing. · 

739. Have you been to Mount Lyell ? Yes ; I was there some seven years ago, before it was 
properly going. · 
. 740. Is this blow of yours of the same- description as that at Mouut Lyell? Different 

character of iron, but similar in places. This is brown iron; that at Mount Lyell is hematite and 
brown iron. _ 

741. Is there a large quantity where you found it ? Yes, as much as at Mount Lyell in places; 
only different. Lyell is a mountain ; this is on the flat. 

742. Do you consider this a promising discovery? Yes ; if there is another Mount Lyell 
to be found in Tasmania I fancy that this is where it will be found. 

743. When you were prosp·ecting did you know where you were? Yes ; I took my bearings 
from the trig. on top of Mount Field west. I knew where the one line· was-the eastem line. 
Them is a tl'ig. on top of that mountain. I was shown that by a young man-a young man named 
Reynolds. I took my bearings from that, station due south. I knew well that I was on the 
inside of the Great Western Railway reserve. At that time these blocks were not marked off. 

744. If a corner-peg were put in these blocks, would that help prospectors to find their way 
about ? Some prospectors it would. · · 

745. I meari bushmen? Yes, of com·se it would, but the country is not difficult country to 
get about in; it is nothing like the country to the south. · 

746. Much open country? Yes, a lot; what we call open countri; country you can get 
through. 

747. Did you notice any belts of timber about there? No; not in that particular district; 
nothing to speak of. There are belts of timber there, but not of any value. 

748. In your opinion, Mr. Terry, is it necessary to survey each of these blocks in order that 
prospectors may know where they are? I do not see that it is necessary. My idea is that, with 
these blocks as they stand, any prospector g·oing· in there, or going· through ·from Hobart, would 
do this : the first thing· he would do would be to pass along the line and he would find the boun­
dary-peg of the first block. When he went beyond that he would know that he was on the Great 
Western Railway block. He would continue on, and as he passed along· the line he would know he 
was on the block. My idea is that if the Great W estem Railway people put a large stake in 
on the boundary, with a notice on it that this is the Great Western Railway block going south, and 
then at the other corner of the block (the width of the block along· the line) put another stake with 
another notice and a finger-post pointing north, then any prospector could find his way about. 
There is no difficulty at all. lVIy experience has been, with a lot of these surveys, that the smveyor 
in some of that country would not go carrying· a lot of stakes; so a man would be just as likely tu 
miss the survey stakes and lose himself, as he is at the present time. I have travelled a long distance, 
at times, to pick up a surveyor's stake. 

749. In your opinion, then, a survey would not he of mu~h assistance to a prospector? No, 
11ot at all. 

750·. Did you g·o on the Tyenna-Gordon track prospecting·? Yes; that passes through these 
blocks .. 

751. Did you find indications? Yes; I got the continuation of this discovery all through 
there. 

752. I think you said you prospected rig·ht to fort Dave!? 
that district. · 

·Yes ; I was nine moutlis m 
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753. And you found what you considered a continuation of this show right to the sea-board? 
Yes, I did. I g·ot it to the south-east of Harry's Bluff, which is situated on the Bathurst Harbour, 
Port Davey. The country is difficult. It took me 6½ days to do seven miles. That will give you 
an id_ea of what the country is like; you could not do much prospecting. 

754. Then, to sum up your experience, and what yon know from prospecting there, do you 
eonsi<ler that the Great Western llailway will run through mineral country? Yes, I do, as fa1· as 
I have been. It is in belts, the same as in all other parts of Tasmania. But I should say myself, 
if I were going prospecting·, I would sooner go there than to any part of Tasmania I have heen 
in ; and I have been all over it, pretty well. , . 

755. By Mr. Hall.-When did you make your :first visit to the Lyell district, Mr. Terry ? 
Some seven years ago. I came in by way of Mount Bead. I did not go right into Lyell, you 
know; I went round about the heads of it. I confined myself more to North-East Dundas and all 
through there. 

756. You speak of this discovery in the Humboldt Range-does it. present similar features 
to the mineral fl'atures in the vicinity of Mount Head, Dundas, and round there ? Yes, something 
similar. It struck me as something similar to parts of Rosebery-similar to some of the iron in 
the vicinity of Rosebery. The only difference between this stuff apd _that at Mount Lyell is that 
Lyell .is more of a hematite. · 

757. And in prospecting· through this country did you :find any favourable indicatiQns of 
alluvial gold? No. You get colours of alluvial gold, the same as yon will all through _the soi.1th. 
Wherever this iron occurs you will always :fiud alluvial gold. 

758. And tin-did you find any tin? No, ~ir. I went throug·h the til,lle the tin was said to be 
discovered there. It is not tin; it is chromic iron. 

759. Well, apart from that and copper, have you discovered indication_s of any 9ther minel'al of 
commercial value in the country? There are val'ious minerals now, ion know, such as iridium, 
platinum, and asbestos. · _ 

760. Did. yon :find any of them? No; you won't get them the1·e. Yon want to get away to 
the Serpentine, the other side of the Florentine. Yon might g·et a;;best_os through·· there; but 
I did not follow through there; J prospected away on the othel' side of the Franklin range, · _These 
rare minerals I did not bother about. · · 

761. But there is silver? I found silver south of the Great Western Railway. 
765. Have you been in Mount Lyell lately? No; I have been away up on the Nqrth East 

Co~t. . . · 
762. Now, in your opinion as a prospector, and as one having a fairly good knowle~ge of tl1at 

country, and having examined the Lyell country in the e~rly days, do you think, apart, that is, 
from the minerals, that the Great Western Line would be of enormous value to the companies.now 
operating in the district down there-say even in regard to tim her? Well, I cannot ~p(;)ak as to 
timber. By all reports that come in the timber lies further on in the railway, going_ north wElst 
· 763. Perhaps you hardly follow me. As you know, Mount Lyell is very sparing·ly timber"ld, 
A good deal of the ground llp around there is open country ; and, owing to the e}!:tensiye opel'ations 
which have been in progress, the timber of this district has now vanished-vanished, ·you might say, 
at au enormous rate. Now, I did not altogether wish you to understand, in putting that last 
question; that the line would serve for timber supply from the blocks held merely, but from the line 
rig·ht along. Do you think that would give a good supply? Yes, it would, an eve1:lasting sti pply. 
I have heard of the timbe1·, and I have seen it further on. 

764. Mining timber of all descriptions? Of all descriptions, yes. Coming south, there are 
splendid forests of timber. . 

765. And apart, as l say from that, that line would serve the mine_s to thei1; very great 
advantage, even as a means of' transport for timber supply? Yes. In Tyenna thern is some of the 
:finest timbflr in Tasmania. · 

766. Do you know anything of the coal deposits on the route of that l1ne? That is further 
up-up Hamilton way. · · · · 

767. Do you know anything of th 1 ,se deposits? I have seen them, but I do not care for 
black stuff at all. I found coal at Port Da,·ey. I have traced that coal a few miles; but whether 
there is a continuation of it I do not know-I do not think there is. I do not think you will get 
any coal on this route, to look on the south uf the line. Of course the coal mines are nearly up 
in the Hamilton District-that is further up. I have passed through there, but I can.not say any 
thing about them. 

768. Have yon ever visited any of the mining districts of the other colonies, Mr. Terry--have 
you any knowledge of them? Yes; I_ hav_e been through a few. I was in New South ·wa:es 
for some time. The last . time I was there I was up on the W yalong fields and several others- · 
down on Shoalhaven and all through there. 

769. Are the districts you refer tu connected by railway? Some of them are. 
770. But the fact of railway construction has been, I suppose, the means of giving· them great 

assistance? Yes; and I consider that this line is much wanted, because it will open up a vast 
extent of country by branch lines. There is no doubt about that. That is, of course, if they find 
a short mute. There is a country there by Rocky Cap and all through there which· is teeming· 
with minerals; there is no doubt about it. I have passed all through that country and there is 
any amount of timber; the only trouble is gettir1g the ore away; There is no possible chance of 
~etting it away from the seaboard i bqt tl~ere 1fHl be no diffiult! in putting· branch; lines anywhere: 
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771. Now, from your experience of that country, suppose the Promoters of the Great Western 

Railway failed to float their company, all that country; I think, must 1·emain dormant? Yes, sir. 
772. And in your opinion it is an exceedingly valuable country? · It is an exceedingly valuable 

one. 
773. By the Chairman.-Are there 1wg-s at the corners of each of these blocks now? Yes. 
774. So there is no difficulty? No difficulty at all. If a prospector struck in, he would not 

f!.O away round the Tyenna-Gordon track and strike in; he wonlrl strike the railway-line and go 
in from it. A man will take the best track, for a certaintv, when he is in the bush. 

775. By ilfr. Butlf'r.-,vhen you were prospecting out in that direction, did you notice any 
indications of chromic iron? Yes, plenty of them-any amount of it. The rive1·s are full of it 
all thrnugh. 

JAMES HARRISON, called and e.mmined. 

J.Vlr. Harrison made the statutory declaration. 
776. By Mr. Butler.-W.hat is your name, sir? James Harrison. 
777. And what are you? Inspector of !Wines for the ,vestern District. 
778. Do yon know the count1·y round about Tyndall, from the Zeehan side? Yes. 
779. Are there mineral deposits there? Yes. 
7~0. · Of what quality? Va1-ious qualities. Some are ve1·y rich, and some are ridiculously 

poor. 
781. Is there much low-grade ore? Oh, yes; as a. rule, all larg·e formations are of the poorer 

quality. 
782. Is there mnch low-grade ore between Mounts Lyell and Read? Yes, in the vicinity of 

the Red Hills there are ve1·y large deposits. . 
783. Can these deposits be worked at present? Oh, no. 
784. If railway communication was established, could these deposits be profitably worked? 

Communication established where? · 
785. Well, with the mines and some port, say Hobart, by the Great Western Railway, or 

communication with Zeehan by the Great Western Railway? I do not think it would pay to take 
low-grade ores to Hobart. 

786. That would be a question of freight? Yes, freight and distance. 
787. If the Company-or companies-could send ore cheaply enough to Hobart, would it 

pay then? Oh, yes, if they could do it-of course. 
788. Suppose, Mr. Harrison, that the ore there could be treated in Hobart, and arrangements 

conld be made to carry the ore cheaply ,-in your opinion, would low-grade ore be sr.nt by the 
railway? I do not think so. 

789. Could you concentrate the low-gTade ore on the field, and send it through in that way? 
Possibly. . 

790. Now, do you know anything· about the question of coal on the Zeehan field? Yes; coal 
is becoming· a necessity on the Zeehan field at the present time. 

791. Do the companies use coal and timber for their engines? Some of the mines have to 
use both coal and firewood now. 

792. Is the firewood plentiful on the coast? It is not nearly so plentiful as it was: that is, 
within a reasonable radius. 

793. Is it becoming- scarcer every day? As a matter of course. 
794. And the price increasing? In some cases the price has very much increased. 
795. If coal could be delivered on the fields from 18s. to £ I a ton, ,vonld that be advantageous 

to the companies? Yes,· you could sell a very large amount, both to the mines and for household 
purposes, if you could deliver it at that price. · 

796. Do yon know what the price of Newcastle coal is there now? I think from about 28s. 
to 32s. a ton. 

797. Is there any building· timber to be got 01~ the West Coast? Yes. 
798. Where? Dundas-there is a mill running at Dundas. 
799. Is it good quality timber? It is not a fast-class article. It is not as good as we g·et 

from the Huon. 
800. How is most of the building timber got on the field? Most of it comes from Strahan­

comes either from the Huon district or the North West Coast. 
801. Then there would be a demand for building timber on the coast? There always is a 

demand for it; not only for building, but for mining purposes, ~or sinking shafts, and so 
forth. . 

802. If the freight on timber was reduced-building· timber and mining timber-would that 
be advantageous to the field? Certainly; it must be. 

803. Reverting to these lqw-grnde ores-do they require machinery to work them? It all 
depends on the system they are treated on. If you concentrate you must have an expensive plant 
to concentrate with. 

80-1. Al'e there any deposits which machinery would help to open up? Yes. 
805. Are they unworked for the want of machinery? Yes; several of the mmes a1·e lying· 

. tdle in t4e djstrict :we are alluding· to. ' 
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806. Would the building of this rail way enable machinery to be taken to many of these low­
grade mines? Certainly. 

807, Do you know the Slll'veyea route of the railway? From Lyell-west, not east. 
808. Does it go through timbered country? Tlmmgh timber country and mineral country all 

the way to Zeehan. 
809. In the' event of this line being built, would there be any work for it? That would all 

depend on which way you sent your ore. 
· 810. Well, either way-both to Zeehan and Strahan, or to Hobart-from the mines round 
about? If you sent your ore Zeehan way, I think think there would be a considernble amount of 
work for the line. But I would like to make it clear that I do not consider that low-grade ore will 
stand any length of carriage. To work a large formation with low-grade ore, you must study 
economy to every extent, and every mile of extra carriage is a handicap. 

81 l. Is there also high-grade ore on the Coast that cannot be worked for want of communication? 
Yes. 

812. Are there large bodies of such ore there ? I cannot tell. There- is not machinery to 
compete with the water at JJJ'esent. 

b 13. vVhat is your opinion of the field, Mr. Harrison ? What-as to the permanency of it? 
814. Yes-as to the permanency of it? I don't think we know much about the West Coast 

at present. Every day seems to be opening up fresh fields. 'rhere is no doubt in my mind as to 
permanency of it. 

815. Is there a large tract of mineral country there ? Yes. 
816. Very big? Yes. 
817. Do you think it has been sufficiently prospected? No. 
818. Has it been prospected at all ? Certain! y. 
819. All over? No. 
820. Do the deposits found prove it to be a very valuable field ? vVithout a doubt, in my 

opinion. I believe the field is only in its infancy. 
821. Do you think it is a wonderful field, this West Coast field? Well, I am a West Coast­

man. You nught think I was blowing my own trumpet if I answered that question. I can only· 
say that I have every confidence in the permanency of the field. 

822. Have you bean in other places as a mine!'? For the past 30 years. 
823. In your experience g·ained elsewhere, how does this field compare with the others ? Very 

favourably. 
824. Are there many minerals there? Nearly every mineral you can mention, rig·ht within a 

radius of ~ight or nine miles from Zeehan. 
825. Do you know of any larg·er mineral field? Well, not in the colonies. 
826. By the Glwirman.-You were saying that the line would be valuable, sir, as it might 

possibly lead to discoveries-what known mines are there that it would help? . On the west side 
of Lyell we have numerous shows that are all standing idle at presf:nt. Then we have the Red 
Hills. I suppose we have nearly a <lozen mines in that direction; ouly one or two working·. 

827. 'l'hey are known to be valuable ? They are known to be valuable. On the south side of 
the Red Hills section we have got an enormous cliff of low-grade ore, some three or four hundred 
feet high. That would be a concentrating· problem. I might mention now, sir, that a concentrating 
plant is going up on the South l'harsis for treating copper ores, and will be starting in a day or 
two; and the mining community are watching that very closely, and with great interest. If that 
prove a success, it will create a very considerable impetus in copper-mining. 

828. By Mr. Hall.-You stated, Mr. Harrison, that you had been mining for 30 years. Will 
you name the colonies where you gained your mining experience? Principally in Victoria. I 
have been in your employ ,SOme 17 year!', I think. 

829. How many years have you held the position of Inspector of Mines on the vVest Coast? 
About eig·ht. · 

t,30. And during that period you have had evr:iry opportunity of visiting the known mineral 
deposits? Yes, sir; I have been through this country we are alluding· to repeatedly. 

831. Do you know anything of South Australia'? I know something about the copper 
deposits. 

832. Have you ever visited the Broken Hill districts? Never. 
833. I suppose you know, from reports, that they are treating low-grade ores? Yes. 
834. Do you know the length uf the railway from Port Fairy to the Broken Hill mines? No. 
835. Have you ever heard the length'? No, I think nc,t; I may have heard it. 
836. 285 miles is the length. Do you know the charge for the conveyance of ere from the 

mines to the sea-board? I know it is very low, but I cannot tell yuu what it is. 
837. l 2s. 6d. a ton is the rate. Well, you have said, in rAply to Mr. Butler, that it would be 

impossible to convey the low-grade ores for treatment from the \•Vest Coast to any spot they 
choose to name, or even to the port of Hobart by rail ? Yes ; that is my opinon. 

838. vVell, can you recoucile that statement with the facts that, in South Australia, they 
convey low-grade ores by rail: that, as a mater of fact, the Smelting Company of Australia pays 
15s. a ton for the ore on the grouIJd, and that it is then conveyed 285 llliles by rail to the sea-board, 
and from there to the smelting works? Yes. 

839. Now, speaking of low-grade ores, Mr. Harrison. Of course, you have had eight years' 
experience on the West Coast, and I know that you possess (from various reports I have heard 
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and read of you) wide knowledge. You are a keen-sig·hted man, and one who takes a lot of interest 
in the mineral deposits of Australia. vVell, then, I mrnt you to state what you mean by the term 
" low-grade ores." Give us the approximate value of what you consider low-grade ore. VVould 
it be worth £2 or £3 a ton? I would consicl01· ore that held minerals to the value of £2 or £3 a 
ton in its crude statP. to be low-g·ra.cle ore, if it had to be concentrated. 

840. I will mention one mine to yon,-the Mount Black Proprietary. You know that mine 
very well ? I know it. 

841. Very well. That ore is worth £5 per toP, as taken out of the mine. That, you would· 
consider a low-grade ore? Well, yes; I think it would be a low-grade ore. 

84:l. Well, then, this proposed line is to have a total length of 110, or say 120 miles. vVe 
can take that as the extreme limit. Now, Mr. Harrison, as a man of practical experience, do you 
not think it just as likely that that ore could be carried a distance of 120 miles, and worked at a 
profit, as that ore in South Australia can be carried 285 miles, and worked at a profit? Yon must 
take into co11sideration the difference in the count1·y that. you have got to negotiate, as compared 
with S_outh Australia. We have very rough country on the West Coast, with stiff g-racles on your 
line that would make it very much harder for carriage than on the line you are referring to in 
South Australia. Your outlay per mile, you will find, will be very much greater than the outlay 
was in South Australia for the fo·st cost of construction ; and the heavier the cost of constrnction, 
the greater, naturally, would be the charg·es for carriage: you must look for some retnrn for your 
outlay. 

843. Vi' ell, you know something of railway construction. I presume you have fair knowledge 
of the power of an engine to draw a load of trucks. Now the General :Manager of Railways, who 
has been examined, explains this : that in South Australia they are able to carry the ore this long 
distance at the rate I have named, owing· to the grades being· much easier than the grades in 
Tasmania can be; and he also makes the same statement with reference to the lines in New South 
\Vales, and he also refers in the same way to the lines in New Zealand. Do you know New 
Zealand at all? I know New Zealand; but, when I was clown there, there were very few railways. 

844. But you know that New Zealand generally is a particularly rough country ? Yes. 
845. The ,Vest Coast and the North Island of New Zealand ; I think, Mr. Harrison, that if 

you have ever visited the :\ orth Island, you will agree with me when I say that some of the 
existing railways there pass over country quite as rough as any that this proposed line will cover? 
[No answer.] ' 

846. Now, according to your argument, the cost of the construction of this railway will militate 
against the Company being· able to carry the ore at a reasonable rate. Mr. Back's argument is 
they will not be able to carry the same quantity, owing· to the steepness of the grades. What do 
you say? · I think that that was my argument too, not only the first cost of construction, but the 
heavy grades. 

8-1-7. But when I explain that it is proposed, itccording to the evidence submitted to the 
Committee, that the Company will put down ti4 lb. rails-when I tell you that they will ballast 
with at least 22 yards to the chain-are you still of the same mind ; will that be, in your opinion, 
a substantial line? Well, it ought to be; 

848. ,v ell, in view of that fact, will that line be able to carry an engine of sufficient power to 
draw a load equal to the loads they draw in New Zealand? I cannot say; I don't know what 
loads they do draw in New Zealand. 

849. I will quote from Mr. Back: "In Australia and New Zealand they take from 60 to 80 
trucks. 1 have taken a load of 106 trucks in New Zealand. There is a great difference in the 
ways of working. When you take 50 or 60 or 70 trucks behind a train, it is nearly as g-reat 
an expense raking· 12." His statement is that in this colony you can only take 12 trncks behind 
an engine. ls that clue to the lightness of the eng·ine and the lightness of the permanent way-or 
it is due simply to the curves and grades? LNo answer.] 

850. Now, it is proposed by this Company that the steepest grade shall be l in 40, and the 
curves 4 chains radius. Now, 1 ask you, ar; a practical man, Mr. Harrison, if it will be possible 
for the Company having· that substantial permanent way (.64lb. rails, and properly ballasted )-is that 
line sufficiently substantial to allow of the placing· of an engine on it with power to carry 30 or 40 
trucks instead of 1 Z? Yes; if all these figures are accurate about the curves and grades. I do 
not see that there is any difficulty about building an engine to cany that load. 

851. I will take you now to a line that you are well acquainted with-the line from Zeehan to 
Strnhau,-what would be the steepest g·racle 011 that line? I cannot say; I should say about 
1 in 40. 

852. Do you know the weight of the rails of it? No. 
853. 'l'hey are not 64-lb. rails? No. 
854. I do not think they are more than 451b.; do you'? Yes, 45-lb., I should thi11k; about 

that. 
855. Do you know the largest number of trucks drawn by an engine the1;e? V{e draw about 

10 trncks and 2 carriages. . · 
856. And suppose that they were to increase the weight of the rails and ballast and get more 

powerful eng-iues-woulcl that enable them to donble their number of trucks? I cannot say it 
would enable them to double it; it might enable them to draw very much more, according to the 
weight of the engines they put on .. 'l'hey have very decent engines there now. 
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~ 857. ,v ell, then, such being· the case, I want to lead up to this, Mr. Harrison : in the first 
place you consider that no ore or no ore body containing· a mineral in such proportion as to b3 
worth £3 a ton, which I think you said you considered low-gl'ade? Yes. 

858. Well, suppose we double the charge now on that of South Australia-they carry at 
12s. 6d. ; suppose we say 25s. a ton-would it not, in your opinion, prove a remunerative under­
taking for this Company if it could convey that ore, say, 120 miles at a rate of £1 a ton, with 
unlimited traffic-do you not think that that would prove remunerative to the Railway Company? 
It might; but I do not know how the mining company would come out. 

859. Well, 25s. a ton. Of course I do not know about the smelting charges ; I am simply 
putting this problem to you. As you admitted, in examination by Mr. Butler, there are enormous 
deposits of ore on the West Coast. You further assert-and I think you are within the mark 
when you say so-that the West Coast is still in its infancy. And you also admit, I think, that irr 
addition to low-gTade, there are large quantities of high-grade ore? Yes. 

860. ,vell, now, putting· all these things together, would it in your opinion prove remunerative, 
both to the shareholders of the companies who bold the various mineral blocks there, and also to 
the railway company if the railway company charged 25s. a ton? No, sir; I do not think it 
would. I say it would land the company in debt. 

861. The railway company ? No, the mining· company. You take £ 1 off £3. That leaves 
the metals in your ore worth £2 a 'ton. Then you have to bear concentration, and quite possibly 
you may have 20 per cent. or 30 per cent. of loss. After that you have to meet smelting charges; 
and you have got to run your stuff over a Government line when you get it to Glenora. 

862. But I think you have hardly followed me-I put the question to you in this way: looking 
at low-grade ore, would you consider anv ore worth £3 a ton a low-g·rade ore? Yes, if it is a 
complex ore. We have low-grade ores on· the coast that the smelters are anxious to get hold of in 
its crude state, because it acts as a flux as well as an 01·e. But an ore with a percentage of zinc and 
other objectionable minerals in it has to be kindly treated in concentration. I do not think it 
would pay to take that ore to Hobart, even if you had the ore given to you. There would be 
nothing in it. . 

863. But following your own statement ; and I think we agreed to put the bulk of the low­
grade ore at £~-you admitted to Mr. Butler that in addition to the low-grade ore, there were large 
qt~antities of high-grade ore in the same deposits-now if you get, we will say, 50 tons or 10~ tons 
.of low-grade ore at £3, aml you get then aqthird as much high-grade ore, w.orth £10, you stnke an 
average and the high-grade ore brings your average up to £5 or £6 a ton? No; you oannot 
expect a man to mix high and low-grade ore, on purpose to strike an average, 

864. You know the Lvell District well ? Yes. 
865. In operating with that ore, do they separate high and low, or smelt all together? That 

is a smelting ore; it is all put together. It is not a complex ore. 
866. Well, there may be something· in that. But I will put it to you in another way, Mr. 

Harrison. The Mount Lyell .Company, as you are aware, convey their coke first (I think) from 
New South Wales to Devonport; then from Devon port to Strahan, from Strahan to Teepookana, 
and from Teepookana to the mines; and with a low-grade ore, by smelting it, they are making 
a profit every month? Yes. . 

867. And, as I have also pointed out, they are treating the whole of the stuff; they do not 
separate the high-grade and the low-grade ; all goes through the smelters together ? Yes. 

868. Well, suppose smelting works were established on the banks of the Derwent_:,_is it not 
possible that coke would be landed at the smelting works at the ~inimum cost? Oh, yes} but 
you would al~o have to suppose that yon were sending to these smeltmg works, the s~me quahty of 
ore as that berng· treated at Mount Lyell. But it is not the same. Mount Lyell ore 1s not only an 
ore, but a fuel. 

869. Will the some argument apply to the Zeehan Smelting Works? No, 
870. They are treating· that class of ore, are they not? Yes; but it gets various treatment 

before it gets there. 
871. And the expense of landing ore from Mount Read is very great 7 Yes. I do not 

understand; but I am told that there is an understanding between Mr. Black and the Smelting 
Company. 

872. Your argument is that it would land the Company in a loss if this low-grade ore was 
conveyed to the sea-board; and yet it is a well-known fact that they convey the ore from Broken 

· Hill to Lake Illawarra, and also to works down at Port Fairy, although the ore is worth less than 
£2 a ton-still the companies mine, and put it in the trucks at 15s. per ton-now, I will put 
this question to you : Do you know any deposits on the vV est Coast (and you know every one of 
them) that would pay to mine if the companies could get 10s. per ton clear ? Yes. 

873. And yet you think it would not leave that maro·in of profit if they had it right alongside 
a splendid harbour where coal and all fuel could be landed on the spot? No, sir; that is my 
opinion. I think myself that the ores from the district we are speaking about should go to the 
nearest seaport. 

874. That would be Strahan? That would be Strahan in that case, yes. 
875. And I suppose you are aware, Mr. Harrison, than when the ores are conveyed from any 

of the mines to Strahan they are handled two or three times, in view of the fact that they have to 
be reshipped to their destination, wherever that may be? No ; your ore would only have to be 
µ~ndled once ; that wo1~ld be into th,e trucks at rour mines and at the St:rahan w~arf1 
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876. Bnt you hardly follow me-what I mean is that from '3trahan the freight wonld be 6s. 
per ton to Dapto 01· any of these smelting corn panies. Then th ~i·e would be a fo1thcr clrnrg·e of 
6s. to 8s. per to11 to the mai·kets of the world. \V hei·eas, after ore coulcl be <:011 veyed to a sit<! 
near Hobart, where the ocean-going steamers are tradiug· all th,1 year round, you would only have 
the one gTcat charge and t.he one handling·. Now, there is another question I would like to p11t to 
yon-The timber round about Lyell is becoming exhaust.eel, is it not? Yes. 

877. And also about Zeehau? Yes; it is going to become a very serious question where some 
of the Lyell mines are g·oing· to g·et their timber from, especially miuing timber. 

878. Then the const.rnct.ion of this line, a large portion of which passes through heavily­
timbered country, should, I suppose, help the mines. Do yon lielieve the railway company would 
thus have a source of profit'? I think that the lines now coustrnct.ing· from Kelly's Basin would 
have the advantage over yours. · 

879. Yes, that may be so, for a time, bnt if this line were constrncted, the conveyance of 
timber would still be a source of profit, I suppose? If you could get it in, yes. 

880. ,vhat is the approximate population of the West Coast, Mr. Harrison? Over 20,000, 
I should think. 

881 .. Still increasing ? Increasing eve1·y day. · 
882. And this increase, I presume, is not merely due to· the development of the knowu mines, 

but also to the g-..eat discoveries being made? Yes; but, I think principally to the development of 
the known mines. · 

883. The construction of that Strnhan-Zeel,an line; has that, in your opinion, been the cause 
ef' developing the Zeehan field to a very gTeat extent? Certaiuly. The cost of getting· ore away 
previously was very heavy; in fact, it was so heavy that ore was only really sent out as samples. 

884. You spoke, Mr. HarrLmn, of the difficulty of treating· cou1plex ores; am I right in 
saying that these ores are confined to that belt of country between Mount Black and l\'Iount Read, 
and that the ores further south are less complex, containing a larger percentag·e of coppe1·? No, 
they are less complex in this way : they contain, in many instances, a ve1·y considerably less pro­
portion of copper: but in the Mount Lyell ores there is an almost total absence of zinc, and the 
sulphur and pyrites make a: natural field. · · 

885. Now, you spoke incidentally of the fact that there are deposits there of such a nature tlrnt 
the matrix of the deposit serves to a very great extent as a flux-well, are other discoveries being 
made of a similar character-for instance, ·i·ound about Mount Farrell? The prospecting has, up 
to present, been of·a ve1·y limited character. The reports from the~e new fields are always made 
just a little higher than they are absolutely justified in doing· ; hut I firmly believe that tlie field 
in the vicinity of the Tyndal Rang·e and Read an<l Dundas justifies the construction of a line. 
· 886. Then, you agree, Mr. HaJTison--? I beg your pardon. I did not say to justify you in 

bounding into expenditure on a line 1hrough a lot of hilly country ; but it should be opene<l up, 
anyhow. · 

. 887. That is from the Derwent Valley to the West Coast? From the district I am speaking 
of, Zeehan would be the port, I think. 'l'hat is the easiest way 0L1t, and the easiest way is always 
the best wa.y for all low-g-rade ore. That is my opinion. · 

888. N:o~, to sum up-will this line, in your opinion, be (or will it not· be) a benefit to the 
,vest Uoast, if constrnctecl? I believe that if it is constructed it must be a benefit. 

889. That it will open up a lot of dormant mines ? Yes . 
. 890. Do you think the constructinn of the line will furnish any inducement to capitalists to 

find the necessary capital to develop the large deposits you speak of? Yes; I am snre of it. 
891. B.71 Mr. lVoollnougli.-Have you a knowledge of g·eologicaJ disturbance in relation to 

inining? More, in a practical light, than in the other. 
892. vYithin your own experience, is there more or less geological disturbance, and interruption 

to mining· from that cause, in Tasmania than on the Mainland ? Yes, Sir; much more, The 
,vest Coast is a very brnken and disturbed country. 

893. 'l'hen, in your opinion, mining is nl:ore uncertain in Tasmania than is the case over the · 
water ? Yes; that' applies to all mining-coal and everything else. . · 

894. There are, I believe, no scientific means of ascertaining at present-that is, beforehand­
to what extent such greater disturbances here may affect this or that mine or district ;-it is entirely 
a chance? No; thern has not been sufficient work done on these mines to allow us to form any 
opinion .. 

895. You work here in more uncertaintv than o.ver the water? With very much more 
uncertainty. · 

896. By Jrlr. flall.-You say you had a large experience in Victoria? Yes. 
897. And you are aware that, in.the early days of your mining experience, it was a g·eneral 

thing for g·eologists to predict that certain reefs and formations over there would shortly be 
exhausted? Yes. 

Yes. 
898. Then, you kuow, in vari ms parts of Victoria, the country is considerably disturbed? 

899. Yet the reefs cut in those p,aces have lived down? Yes. 
900. Do you know the Mathinna district at all? Yes. 
901. Has the New Golden Gate 1 ,ow attained a depth of over 1200 feet? Yes. 
902. Are you aware that at that depth the reef sl)ows every sig·n permanency? O_h, yes ; l 

was clown it about l8 months a~·o, 
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903. ,vell then, Mr. Hanison, such bring· the-case, why should it be assumed that there is a 
certain doubt that mines in this colony will become exhamed more rapidly than on the mainlanci? 

. 904. ,v el!, is that shown in the Tasmanian mine at Beaconsfield? No; I expect that to go 
to any reasonable depth. 

905. Is there any indications of the leads exhausting themselves at the Western· and the 
Montana? They have not improved. · ' · 

906. Now have they depreciated-is that so? In the Western they have depreciated-yes. 
I may say that I would not like this conversation to be printed if I could possibly help it. 

907. Well, you see, Mr. W oollnough put a ve1·y awkward question to you, and. one which 
was of a naturn likely to damage the colony. Of course I, as a Tasmanian, and one who takes a 
great interest in our mineral resources, mnst do all I possibly can to prevent erroneous impressions 
going about. That is the reason why I put these questions. I mention the particular mines, and, 
as you say, the vVestern does not show any signs of improvement; still I suppose that you are 
aware that from the opinions g·iven by geologists it will be necessary to go through a second 
stratum before they can come to rich ore again? Yes; I think that several of our mines in Zeehau 
are at present passing0 through a poor zone, which they will probably get below. 

908. And I believe I am correct in saying that the vV estern and the Montana, although they 
intend to go to a certain depth, have not yet got through tha_t banen zone? They have never been 
in a barren zone; but the ,v estern, unfortuuately, is in much poorer country than was looked for. 
although ]Jy no means barren. · 

909. Have you ever visited Charters Towers? No. 
910. Have you ever read any reports from there ? Yes. 
911. Are you aware that in the early days of that field the gold ran out at what they· called 

water-level ? Yes ; in some cases I know it did. 
912. In nearly every case; and then they passed through about 100 feet of poor country, and 

struck the gold richer than at the top? Yes. 
913. Well, such peing the case, and as yon must have a good knowledge of mineral formations, 

do you not think, with regard to the West Coast, that a similar state m·ay occur there Oh, yes; 
it i, quite possible in some case. But what I unde1·stood from Mr. Woollnough's question was 
that he was asking information as to the general appearance of the country-as to meeting with 
faults and slides, and so on. We meet them oftener on the coast than in any other field I have 
been in. · 

914. More broken than the Gippsland district? More broken-I spent two years in the 
Gippsland district. 

915. Do yon know what was foamerly known as Stockyard Creek? Yes. 
9 I 6. You know that thern they strnck exceedingly rich gold on the surface? Yes. · 
917. And it disappeared at a certain depth? Yes. 
918. Are you aware that the reefs there are showing· marv_ellous signs of permanency? [No 

reply .. ] · 
919. You know, of course, that the Gippsland presents similar featul'es to the West Coast­

rnountaineous and vel"y much broken and disturbed? My experience is that the hills of Gippsland 
are very much more nriiform than those of the West. Coast; it is an easier country to get about; 
and it is not so much broken as the West Coast of Tasmania. The West Coast of Tasmania is the 
roughest country-I was ever in. · 

920. I am not defending it,; roug·hness; the only thing is, I wanted to follow up the .question 
Mr. Woollnough put. The question seemed to me to be a question of a perplexing nature. In 
your reply, you said that so far mining enterprise has not carried a shaft to a sufficient depth to 
warrant any man in s_aying that the deposits run out when you reach 520 or 1000 or 2000 feet. ls 
that not so ? I think he would be a very bold man and a very foolish man who made any such 
assertion. 

921. You cannot name any mine in 'l'asmania where they have gone dowu like they have in 
other parts of the world, to prove a mine at a depth. Of course you hnow that in Germany old 
fields once abandoned, have afterwards turned out remarkably profitable by going· down a consid­
erable depth. L think I may make the same as5ertion with refe1·ence to America. Has it not been 
the same there-but at a certain depth these deposits were exhaust.ed only to reappear at loweL" 
levels? Yes; quite right. 

!)22. So that you consider the statement that you made to Mr. \V oollnough would be an 
erroneous one-the statement that o\ying· to the disturbance on the West Coast there is a p1•obability 
of the deposits becoming· exhausted at a lesser depth than in the other parts of the colonies? I 
cuul<l not take it in that light. I ·did not say that there was a greater p(·obability of the minerals 
going· out. 'l'hey may be more difficult to trace, owing to the rough and disturbed state, but I 
don't see why they should go out. 

92:~. By Mr. B,it/er,~In reference to the caniage of ores, if the ores are conveyed from 
Zeehan to Hobart, an j so on to the ship, at 10s. per ton, would not that be advantageous to the 
field, and would not tlte mines use the railway? · Will you repeat that question. 

924. If the ores are conveyed from Zeeban to Hobart, and 011 to tbe ship, :tt lUs. per ton, 
would not that be very advanta.g·eous to the field, and would not the mines of Zeehan avail them­
selves of the opportunity to nse the line? Yes ; that would be at the rate of less than one-half 
what it takes to 8trahan. I understand that the freight from Zeeban to Strahan is 5d. per ton per 
mile for high~g1·ade ore. I have not heard of that rate being altered; but it ma;7. · 
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ROBERT TIUVESS MOORE, called and examined 

Mr. :Moore took the statutory declaration .. 
925. By Mr. Butler.-What is your name? Robert Trivess Moore. 
926. Ami what are yon? Chiefly connected with mines. 
927. Where? In Melbourne, Tasmania, and London. 
928. Have you recently been in London? I have just rnturned. 
929. During what time were you in London? For the last two )'ears. To be exact, I 

arrived there on the 16th November, 1897. 
930. And you have only just returned? Well, back about a week or ten days. 
9;:H. ,vhat was your business in London ? I went home in reference to the ·flotation of a 

big thing at LyeII. 
932. Were you successful? I was-ultimately. 
933. What was the capital of this Company that you formed? £300,000 nominal. 
934. How long did it take you to get_ that matter off? I left as soon as) got it finished. I 

I was there two years. · 
835. Did the rumour of the Fashoda affair interfere with the flotation of your scheme? I met 

with many difficulties; that was one of them. 
936. While in London, did you come acress Mr. Harcourt Palmer? I did. 
937. Did you come across any of the people connnected with the Great vVestern Railway? 

Many. 
938. vVhen Mr. Palmer states, in his evideuce to this Committee, that the Fashoda affair blocked 

his flotation, do you think that would be correct? I should say that it was. 
939. Do you know whether this Great Western Railway Company was actually floated at any 

time? ,v ell, only by being iu company with some of the people connected with it. 
940. vVho were they? Mr. Brunlees, Mr. f::lloper, and the solicitor of the Company. 
941. And from that <late you understood that the Company had been floated-the money 

subscribed? I heard that the matter had been taken up-yes. . 
942. Do you know what stopped it-do you know why it went off? ,Vell, I heard from the 

financiers that it was on account of some trouble at this end. 
943. Did you know what the trouble was? ,,v ell, some misunderstanding· in the Cabinet when 

Sir Philip Fysh had to withdraw from a seat on the Board. In fact, it all appeared in the British 
papers. 

944. What did Sir Philip have to do with it? Well, it was put to me that Sir Philip Fysh bad 
a seat on the Board, and had to withdraw . 

. 945. vVas anything said as to the reason-as to whether he withdr~w on his own free will? 
It was conveyed to me that he had to resign. 

946. vVas it in The Time.~ newspaper? Yes, I saw it in The 1imes myself; but I had heard 
of it previously from Mr. Brunlees, Mr. Sloper, and the solicitor. 

9.J.7. And what was tbeil' opinion 9f that matter. ,v as the1·e an opinion p!'evalent that the!'e 
was a risk attached to it? vVell, certainly the tronble did not assist flotation. The least breath 
of difference in any matter-whether mining, or railway, or anything else-and the British public 
are off before you can say, " Knife! " I can say that it certainly did not do the thing any good, 
anyway. 

9-18. Diel you hear Mr. Sloper Ol' Mr. Brunlees say that it was on acc11unt of the Premier's 
telegrams that this thing failed-that the flotation of this Company was stopped? [No reply]. 

949. Did Mr. Bmnlees say to you that the action of the Premier had baulked the whole 
thing? I would not like to say that he said that the thing had absolutely baulked it. }:.'rom the 
g·enel'al discussion I could see it had; but you must remember that I was not so intel'este<l in the 
affair as to ask him whether it had the effect of absolutely stopping· it. Had I known that I was 
going to be cross-questioned on it I should have made myself more conversant with it. From con­
versation I should say that that was the feeling. 

950. Do you know that a strong board of directors was formed 011 this Company? I do. 
951. ,vere they men of repute iu the financial world of London-in the railway world? 

They were all men of hig·h standing, those that I heard of. I tell you candidly, that I did not go 
very deeply into this matter. I had nothing at stake in it. 

952. I did not expect that you did ; but from your coming· and going· about London, in the 
conduct of your own busi~1ess and the flotation of your own mine, what would you say? They 
were all men ot undoubted standing, of coul'se ; that I can say unhesitatingly. 

953. Do you know Barclay and Co.? I <lo. · , 
954. And do you know Pauling & Co. by repute? I do. 
955. Are they good ? Unquestionably g·ood, 
965. Large contractors? Yes; amongst the best men in Engfand. 
957. Do you know Sir vVheatman Pearson? I do; not personally. 
958. But do you know his position in the financial world'? I know that he is spoken of and 

quoted as enormously strong and influential. 
959. !Jo you know that the contract fol' the constl'Ur,tion of the railway was signed? I heard 

of it ; I did not see it. 
960. Did Sir Philip Fysh render any assistance to the flotation of this Compauy ? That is a 

Jnatter I do not know that J can speak about. 
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961. Was he referred to by the directors in any way? I should imagine that he was. 
962. Did Sir Philip Fysh write a letter in reference to the coal deposits? Yes, I know all 

about this; it is a matter that concerns me. 
963. Will you glance at that and tell us if that is the letter [Appendix EE.] ? Yes, that is 

the one. I used this letter myself. 
964. You used it in the flotation of your company? Yes. 
965. It is a letter from Sir Philip Fysh to Mr. Harcourt Palmer? Yes ; I had the original 

from Mr. Palmer,- and I used it in the forming of ·my prospectus. I may say that this is an 
exact copy of the letter that I had ; I left the original among my documents with my own solicitol's 
in London It is in reference to the question of fuel, and it very seriously affected my matter. 

966. Do you know Messrs. Coates & Co.? I do. 
967. What sort of people are they? \!Ve!I, when once they give you their name on a pr,:>s­

pectus you need not bother any more about it, that is, when you have got them; it is an open sesame. 
968. Are they connected with the Great Western Railwav? •1 understood that they were in 

connection with it. 
969. Do you know Mr. Sloper? Yes, intimately. 
970. What is he? An ex-bank manager, and a man occupying a vel'y good position m 

London. · 
971. You know Mr. Brunlees? .Yes. 
972. Who is he? The head of a large engineering· firm, connected with railway contracts. 
973. Is he connected with the :flotation of this matter? I believe he is. 
97 4. Do you think he is one of the principal men in this matter? He took a very deep 

interest in it. I cannot tell you what his exact interest is. 
975. Do you know Warner and Co.? I do. 
976. What are they? They are the solicitors who got the underwriting done for the grEat 

Cotton "Combine." 
977. What was that? \Vell, I happened to be in their office frequently, but I am not 

precise was the matter. But I know it was an immense :flotation-about £3,000,000 capital. 
978. And did they get it ()ff? Yes. 
979. Did you see the prospectus of that? I qid. 
9-3\\. Do you know Mr. Buckley, the barrister, in" London, the recog·nised authority with 

reference to opinions and company law? Yes, I know of him; I had an opinion from him, 
through my solicitors, during my stay in London. 

9Hl. Is he one of the leading men on company law in London_? Well, my solicitor said so, 
and recommended me to get counsel's opinion from him. I take it that he is one of the shining 
lights. Of conrse I was ,only in London two years ; I did not know the ramifications of the whole 
world ; but 1 should say that he is one of the most prominent men in England. 

982. Did you know the reason of Mr. Palmer's coming out to Tasmania? I had an. idea. 
983. Did he come out to get guarantees from the Government? I understood that he came 

out to get the thing· fixed up again somehow. . . 
984. Did you understand· from Mr. Brunlees that if the g·uarantee was given the Company 

would be formed? I understood that. 
985. Did you hear the matter of a guarantee mentioned? I did. 
986. Did you hear that if that eould be obtained flotation would be a~ured? From what I 

could gather from them it would be certain. . 
987. Now would you mind, Mr. Moore-you have a letter from Mr. Sloper, I think? Yes. 
988. Would you mind reading an extract from it relating to this? This letter is dated Wth 

September, 1899. Part of it rnns " I had a letter from Palmer. He still writes in a vel'y hopeful 
strain, and I trust that by the time that you reach Tasmania lie may hav:e succeeded in effecting· 

. his purpose in Hobart.'' That was sent to me inasmuch as I was in touch, so much as an 
outsider could be, with Mr. Palmer's business. I was in the Lyell scheme, an<l he was connected 
with a scheme to build up the Lyell field by consti·11cting the Great Western Railway. 

989. Do you hold any shares in the Great Western Hailway? I have not a penny in the 
Great Western Railway. 

990. You went to England to float the Great Mount Lyell Copper Company? Yes. 

mile. 

991. Are you the Manager of that? I am. 
992. Can you give me any particulars of that; what is the extent of the mine? A squara 

993. What is the capital ? £300,000 nominal. 
994. You have been at Lyell? I have. 
995. You k11ow the place'( I do. 
996. Are you aware that the question of fuel there is a serious one? lt was on that 

very matter that I got the use of Sir Philip Fysh's letter to assist me in :floating my company. It 
was rnmoured that there was difficulty in getting fuel at Lyell. 1 had to appease the solicitor then, 
becausP I had made free use of a ,itatement that fuel Wfts easily prncurable, understanding from 
the financiers of the Great Western Railway that the li1rn would be constrnctPd. In order to supply 
evidence I had to get l'eliable information, and so I got Sir Philip Fysh's letter, which Mr. Palmer 
pe1•mitted me to use in my prospectus . 

. 997. Will your company require coal and coke for smelting ? Undoubtedly they will 
require it. 
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998. \Vould you be glad to get that from the Great Western Railway? Glad to get it 
any where ; it all depends on where we can get it the cheapest. 

99~. If you can get it cheaper than at present? \!Veil, I hope I am not going to commit 
my company to any contract. Of course we would be pleased to get it, all things being equal. We 
would take it from anywhere we could get it cheapest. 

1000. If the coal was delivered to you at 16s. per ton, would that meet your views? I should 
think that that is pretty cheap. · 

I 00 I. Oo you know if there is any building timber round about Lyell ? I have just had 
some buildings erected on the claim, and we have imported all the timber from other parts of 
Tasmania. There was none on the field. 

1002. Do you know Mr. Digby Coleraan? I do. He went home on pretty much the same 
mission as myself. We met in London, exchanged confidences-commiserated with each other 
over the flotation troubles we had had in England. 

1003. Did you hear from him that there were belts of timber on the Great Western 
Railway? Yes; he seems to know a good deal about it; he says there are belts of timber. 

1004. Are there large bodies of low-grade ore at Lyell? Uudoubtedly. 
1005. Can it be worked profitably without railway C<•nrnnmication, under present conditions? 

vr ell, the greater the facilities afforded, of course the more economically you can work it. 
1006. Can it be worked at all until you get railway communication? l would not like to say 

that. it cannot. I know, of course, that it will be very much better when you do get the railway 
through, as without the railway, unless the ore is moderately rich, it cannot be profitably worked. 

I 007. What price do you call low-grade ore? Well, we have a formation on our claim 
which we call low-grade ore-from 2 to 4 per cent. 

l008. ·what price per ton would you call that? I am not prepared to say what it 1s 
worth. 

1009. Would you call ore at £3 a ton low-grade-do you mean after paying the cost of 
getting the stuff out and paying the cost of treatment? I do not want to do the district any 
injury. If we could get £3 to £5 on the claim, I should consider that handsome. 

1010. I think, Mr. Moore, that you have scarcely caught my meauing-you see, it has been 
given us, in evidence, that low-grade ore values rnn from £5 to £3 and down from that-l wanted 
to know what you consider a low-grade ore in its crude state, approximately, of course? Ah, 
that is a very different matter ; in that sense I would call an ore worth £3 a ton in the crnde 
state low-grade. -

1011. Did Warner and Company have anything to do with the flotation of a copper company 
for Mr. Digby Coleman ? Yes. 

1012. Did they g·et it through? I do not know, but the Company was floated. 
1013. Do you happen to know this about the Directors of this Great ·western Railway 

Company-are there any ornamental directors 011 the Boiird, to ybur knowledge, any "guinea 
pigs"? To my knowledge, no; but I do not suppose they are going to work for nothing. 

I 014. Are they business men ? Undoubtedly they are busin•ess men. 
1015. vVas Mr. Palmer the person who floated the Great vVestern Railway Scheme in 

Loud on ? Yes. 
1016. You know that Bakewell and Horne had it in band first? Yes; I gathered that from 

Mr. Palmer himself. 
1017. And Bakewell and Horne? 1 did n.ot speak to Horne at all, but learnt it from Mr. 

Bakewell. 
1018. Then you unde1·st.ood that Mr. Palmer was the person who floated this scheme in 

London? · Yes. 
1019 .. By tlie Cliairman. -You said that in your opinion the actiou of the Premier frustrated, 

to a great extent, the floating· of this Company- '\-Vil! you tell us what action you allude to_ 
especially? Yes; the very fact of an announcement appearing in such an organ as The Times, 
an announcement such as that referring· to -Sir Phillip Fysh, and made in such circumstances, 
would, 1 think, if I were an investor, give me cause for suspicion, and lead me to believe that some­
thing was wrong· in the matter. The thing would frighten any investor. The fact of the Ag·ent­
Geueral, who is really in London to expedite matters concerning the commerce and industries 
of the Colony, having to resign from the directorship of a larg·e company operating· in the 
Colony under directions from the Premier would cause suspicion. 

J 020. Then it was the order fro Ill the Premier to the Ageut-General to withdraw from the 
Board that frustrated this scheme? Yes, I think. so ; obviously. 

1021. By Mr. Hall.-Mr. lVIoore, have you had rrny experience of the South Australian 
miues-the Broken Hill mines, for instance? Only as a shareholder. 

l022. You have visited that district.? Oh, of course I have been in Broken Hill. 
1023. Can you g-ive us any idea of what they consider low-grade ore in Broken Hill? I 

would much prefer uot to say anything· about the value of ore. The_ facilities that they get at 
Broken Hill are such that it is likely to be long before we can take adnintage of the same expedi­
tious and economical system. They have been working· for years and years under special con­
ditions, some of which are remarkably advantageous. 

1024. But taking tlie distance from Broken Hill to Port Pirie, and on the other hand, the 
distance from Mount Lyell to Hobart and Zeehau, do you not consider it possible that the same 
ad vantag·es will obt11in in Tasmania as soon as this line is throug·h? Yes. 
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1025. You think that this line will be of enormous benefit to the mmmg industry, and will 

also be a means of bringing in further capital? Yes; yoL1 have a sample of the same thing in 
Broken Hill itself, bnt I may say that it is a very moot point, what is low g·rncle ore. It is 
altogether very htrg·,~ly, a matter of convenience and facility. · 

1026. But admitting that, it'is unquestionable, I presume, tlrnt thrnugn the low rate of frei_;!;ht 
obtaining' on the South Australian Railways, they arn now able to work at a profit deposits that 
were practically wo1~thless a few years ago? Yes. 

1027. By Mr. Butler.-Following· a question of Mr. Hall'~, can low-grade ore be concen­
trnted to high-grade'? Undoubtedly, if you g·et the facilities for taking· all the necessary machinery 
and appliances up there. 

1028. Can you concentrate ore that would not pay for carriage in its crnde state, so as to make 
it payable? Undoubtedly again, that is the object of conl'entration. 

1029. In answer tu the Chairman just now, you said that one of the reasons that stopped the 
flotation was the action of the Premier in C'ausing the Agent-General tu resign from the Board of 
Directors of the Great ,v-estern Railway. Now, was there not also another reason, viz., the for­
feiture of the blocks? Yes, but that did not appear in The Times. It did appeal' in one of the 
other London dailies, the Daily Chronicle or the Daily Trdegmph. I think the· Chronicle. 

Mr. Moore withdrew. 
Mr. Butler.-Mr. Chainnan, I wish to put in an extract [Appendix Dn] from the ,Journals 

of the House of Assembly ( 1871 ; Papers No. 29, p. '20), which contains the schedule t_o the 
contl'act of the Main Line Railway. I merely desire on tha'.t to point out that the Company 
had the pown to put in curves of not less than fon1· chains radius. In answer to one of my 
questions in examination, Mr. Back stated that he thought cul'ves on the Main Line Railway 
were 5-chain curves only; but, on the other hand, Mr. M'Connick stated that he knew of one 
curve on the Main Line which was under a 5-chaiu curve. The extract I put in shows that the 
Main Line c0nld use 4-chain curves 011 occasion. I wish to point out now that. it is against the 
interests of this Company to put in sharp curves ; on the Main Line the authorities only put in one, 
and that only when they ~;ere driven to it. Mr. Back stated in his evidence that. Mr. Palmer 
undertook to give the count1·y a railway equal to the Government railways, costing £10,000 per 
mile. A reference to Mr. Palmer's evidence given in 1896, question 518, shows that he stateci. it 
was difficult to form an opinion of the cost. What I wish to point out and make clear is that if 
the promoters have the power to put in 5-chain curves as frequently as they may find necessary, 
they will look to it, if only in their own interests, that they put them in as rarely as possible, · 

'!'he Committee adjourned. 
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APPENDICES. 

To the Honourable the Speaher and J.Vlemhrw.~ "f the House of As.~emb(y of Tasmania, 
in Parliament assembled. 

The humble Petition of the Tasmanian Great Westem Railway and Electric Power Company, Limited, 

SHOWETH: 

That by an Act of the Parl iawent of Tasmania, intituled " The Great Western Rail way and Electric 
Ore-Reduction Company Act," certain ricrhts, powers, authorities, and privileges were vested in certain 
perwns in the said Act, called "the Pro;oters," for the construction, maintenance, and working of a line of 
Railway from a point on the Derwent Valley Railway to be approved by the Minister to some point within 
the Western Mining Di vision to be apprnved by the Minister, and for the cous:tmction of certain works, 
and for other pmposes in the said Act mentioned. · And by the said Act the Gove1·no1· was authorised, 
subject to the provisions of the said Act, to issue to the Promoters leases of certain blocks of land in the 
said Act mentioned. 

That by virtue of certain deeds and assurances the whole of the rio-hts, powers, authorities, privileges, 
and concessions granted to the Promoters became vested in and· are no: possessed by your Petitioners. 

That your Petitioners desire to introduce a Bill into your Honoumble House to amend the said Ac:t; · 
but the Agents for your Petitioners in Tasmania were not instructed as to the proposed amendments m 
St~fficient time to ena~le yo1ir J?etitioners to comply with the Standing Order~ o_f your H onour~ble H ou;;;e 
with reference to the mtroduct10n of Private Bills and it would be most detnmental to the mterests of 
your Petitioners if the reception of the said Bill si10uld be. postponed until the next Session of Parliament. 

That notice of the intention of vour Petitioners to applv for le!-tve to introduce such Private Bill has 
been published i~ the !fohart Gazette? in the 1}Im·cury, and· in the 1'asmnnian Nerv.~, being tw~ public 
new~papers published i~ Hobart, and m the Mount Lyell Standa·rd an~ the Zeehan Heral~!, bemg two 
pubhc n_ew~papers pubhshed at Queens town and Zeehan respectively, be~ng t:vo of the ~laces m 01: u_earest 
to the d1s~nct affected by the said Bill ; and the publication of s1wh notice will be contmued until 1t hr:s 
been published four times in the said Gazette and in each of the said newspapers. 

That the general objects of the said Bill are :-

1. To amend Part I I., Section 4, of the said Act, bv striking out, in line 4, the words "date of 
this Art,'' and inserting in place thereof the w01'.ds " 1st day of January, 1900." 

2. To amend Section 5, Sub-section 4, of the said Act, by striking out th~ w~rds 
1
" for

1 
a fofrthher 

term not exceeding 21 years," in the first and second lines, and insertmg m p ace t iereo t e 
following words :-" for further successive terms of 21 years each." 

3, To amend Section 5, Sub-section 5, by striking out the ~hole of Clause (b.), and inserting 
the following in lieu thereof:- · 

'' (b.) If the constJ'uction of the railway is not commenced in a buna fide manner on or 
before the 1st dav of Auo-ust 1900 and such constl'llctiun continued to the satisfaction of 
the Governor in ·council!' ' ' 

4.- To amend Part V,, Section 15, by inserting in line 4, after the words '' three feet six inches," 
tire words "and iu the discretion of the Promoters." 

5. To _ar_nend Part VI., Section 33, by inserting at the end of the Section a provis? pro~ 
vidmg that the terms and conditions therein mentioned shall be agreed upon by the M1mster 
and tl~e Promoters; and in the event of any difference arising, such difference shall be referred 
to arbitration. · 

6. 1'o amend Part VIII. Section 42 bv strikino- out the words" date of this Act," in line 3, and 
inserting in place th;reof the w~rd; " the l;t day of ,January, 1900." 

7. To amend Part VIII., Section 42, by inserti11g in line 6, after the words "permanent way," 
the word " plant." · 

8. 1.'o :1mend Pa1-t VIII., ~ection 42, by strik~ng o?t the whole of par:igraph 2, ,,commencing 
with the words '' Provided that," and enclmg· with the words "the said railway. 

9, To amend Part XIII., Section 83, by striking out the words " in manner hereinafter pre­
scribed," in line 4, and inserting in place thereof the words " on a plan or plans that have 
been deposited or may be deposited from time to time with the Minister." 

10. To add the following words·uncler the heading of" Description," at the_ end of the 2nd Clause 
of Schedule 1 of the i;aid Act:-" but the minimum curves and maximum grades may be 
us~d a~ often as is deemed necessary by the engineer of the said Pro1;10ters, subject to the 
said rail way being constmcted in accordance with Section i6 of the said Act." 

11. To authorise the said Promoters to cut, use, sell, or otherwise dispose of any timber growing 
on the seven blocks of land mentioned in Section 83 of the said Act, or any-of them, 

• ' ' ' t< .f '. \ ' , j I 

-✓ 
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12. To provide that persons prospecting on any of t.he seven blocks of land to be leased to the 
said Promoters under agreements with them shall, in the event of the fo1·feiture of the said 
seven blocks of land by the said Promoters, be entitled to a lease in priority to other 
applicant:;: for such land prospected by them, as tltey may, within 30 days of the forfeiture 
being proclaimed, mark off under the provisions of the .i\'Iining Act, 181>3. 

13. 'l'o authorise the said Promoters to constrn<.:t, maiutaiu, and- work iu term,; of the Ra.id Act 
any branch line 01· lines, exteusi<?ns or_ deviations from the said railway to the coal-fields near 
Hamilton and at or near Lake St. Clair, and to a point at or 11ear Gormansto11 aud Queens­
town, and for that purpose to acquire leases of any Crown lands. 

1-1. To amend the said Act in such manner and form as Parliameut may enact for the purposes or 
carryiug out the above objects or any of them, or an.,• of the pnrposes of the said Act. The 
said Bill will also contain all Clauses usual in B.ills of a like nature, and necessary for 
enabling the Promoters to carry out the gern·ral objects of the said Act. 

Your Petitioners therefore pray for leave to introduce the said Bill. 

And your Petitioners will ever pray . 

.Dated this nineteenth day of September, 1899. 

THE 'l'ASMA~IAN GRK-\.T WESTERN RAILWAY AND 
ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY, LIMI'l'ED, 

By their aut!tor'ised A.fJents and Solicitoi·s-DonsoN, M1·1·cnEi,L, & AUPORT, 

(A.) 
Cavendish Oltanibe1'S, Greitfell-.~treet, . 

Adelaide 8th August, 1899. 
DEAR Srn, . . . . . . . . 

. I A111 at1thc:,risii'd by the Boai·d cir' Director~ t0 state tl1at Messrs. Ifoi·n &- Bl1kinveli li~ve botl; written 
to say that you have been ·of the greatest assistance to. them in Lqndon, and ha_ve bee_n mainly instrumental 
in ob'.aining t1nderwriters for the-shares.and debenture~. They have_ also stated that the success of the 
flotation was actually assured, nild would have been completed in a few days had n~t Sir Edward Braddon 
shown his determined hostility by. sen'ding telPgrams containing, in_te1· alia,. t~vo a_ssertions-the orie, "That 
the rights of promoters had lapsed," whicp _l_eadiug Counsel _iu Englarid have declared to be unfoumled in 
law, the other, "That the Ministry could oblige the contractors ro put in such curves and grade:- as they 
thought fit," which is manifestly unjust. . . . . 

Of course no contractor would undertake to make aiiy railway which is subject to Govrrnment 
supei·vision. if thifre is even a well~fotihded suspil'ion of antagonism on_ the part of the Government, and 
as the contract between Messrs. Pauling & Co. and the English .Compuuy contai1~ed a clause authorising 
them so to do. and, as they were finding the greater portion of the inoney, they then hesitated and declined 
to proceed, 

W, 1-IARCQURT p 4LMER, Es_q., 
Hadley's Hotel, Hoba1•t, 

Sm, 

(B.) 

" . 1'·' • 

Yoni·s faithfully; .·, 
W, E. DALTON, Secre/ftry, 

London, 20th A7n·il, 1899. 

I HAVE every reason to continue to write hopefully of the urtimate success of this venture, and as I 
have so far not been waited upon by the contmct.i11g firm of Sir Wheatman Pearson for further information, 
as _I was informed would be the case, but on the contrary am addressed by Messrs. Pauling and Co., the 
firm which first undertook to find the Prefereut J)ehenture Capital, it is.confirmatory of the fact t.hat the 
latter ~nn !~as waived its objection to provide the 6016. rails sprnified for by the engineers of the 
concess10nna1res. 

I hope their local expenditi.1re i~ c,q~tiriiied to your satisfaction, tlnls keepiug alive their rights under 
the Acr, a~d that you have given to the_ cabled enquiry advised to-clay under separate despatch such a 
satisfactory reply as tu have convinced the contractors that the Government will rely strictly upon a liberal 
interpretation of Clause 15, and not seek to impose any O'reater obliO'ations as to grades and cmves. 

I have considered it to be my duty in. interviews to ~tale that !l~e _chrnse ueeded no interpretation, that 
the Government could not embarrasf? co.utra_ctors ult.ra-vires sliJlulations, but, on the contrary, there is 
evidence in the sub-paragraph of Cl~~1se 15 to ,show that the purpose of Parliament is always expressed to 
"modify " in the matter of grades and minor details, if necessar,•. 

The clause in my opinion, a11d I have __ expi·essed it to ti;ose concerned, cannot possibly bear the 
construction that the Government may intei·fere to prevent any 5-chain ctfrve 01· l in 40 grade which the 
engineers of the_ concessionnaires and of the constructing contractvrs may agree upon. 

At the moment of my writing· I find it desirable to accelerate your reply to my cable of the 19th 
in:'ltant, and have t!1is day asked by the same medium for prompt reply, because the constructiou contract 
would be at once signed, as I am informed, if a liberal interpretation of Clatise 15 be cabled. 

P: 0~ FYSH, Agent-General, 
' . '.fo tite Hon. Premier, lloba1·t, Tasmania, 

V • ' l 

.., 
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(C.) 
Copy of cablegram from Agent-General, London, dated 19th April, to Tasmania, Hobart. 

Cont1·actor Great Western Rail way asking whether Interpretation Clause Fifteen allows limit grades 
and curves to be used as often as may be required by contractor in order t.o enable earthworks_ and masoury 
be taken as light natL1re may be possible compatible with efficient working railway in accordance with Act 
of Parliament Telegraph at once · 

(D.) 
HoN. ATTORNEY-GENERAL'S remarks in reply to desp~tch from Agent-General, dated 20th April, 1899. 

· There is no doubt the modification in Section 15 was meant for the benefit of the Promoters, where 
and when it might happen that the hard and fast lines laid down· as to "grades and of minoi· details" would 
not altogether be practicable, but the· Government should be extremely careful to impress upon tlie 
Promoters that each case of required modification must rest upon its merits, and that ncf general promise 
can be given to comply with all or any requisition that may be made for alteratio_n of the conditions set 
forth under the said Section. · · · · 

(E.) 

D. C. URQUHART. 
26. 5. 99. 

Minute by Premier to HoN. ALFRED DOBSON,-20th April, 1899. 
For opinion Clause 15, as I understand it permits of the use of 5-chain cnrves and 1 in 40 grades as 

frequently as they may be required. _The only restriction imposed is that l'adius of curves shall not be less 
than 5 chains, or grades steeper than 1 in 40. 

[NoTE.-Appendix E. was produced to the Committee as the opinion of the Hon. Alfred Dobson, by Mr. Palmer; for 
the Promoters' explanation, see their Counsel's statement preceding Question 392, p. 19, and ]\fr. Palmer's evidence, see 
Questions 501, &c.] ' 

(F.) 

London, 21/4/99. 
From Agent-General. 

Received Hobart, 22/4/99. 
_Signature of contract awaiting reply to telegram 19th. April 

(G.) 
Hobart, 22/4/99. 

To "'l'ASMAN," London. 
From. Premier to Agent_-General. 

,Sections 15, 16, 17 should_ be read together Li~its, grades, and cu~·ves not to be. uoe_d as often as may 
be required by Contrnctors matter partly at discretion of Ministers who desire and wi_]l endeavour to afford 
every assistance to CompanJ· compatible with Act ,of Parl_iament but it is against law for them make 
binding engagement as to any particular questions until same arise and after full consideration of 
Government officials 

(H.) 
-From Agent-General to ·Premier. 

Translation of telegram forwarded Premier, 24th April, 1899. 
Contracting parties refuse to sign unless Government promise will not interfere to limi.t numbel' 

maximum grades and curves provided under Clause No. 15 if comply with othe1; con,di_tions imposed. My 
opipion is modified means less, not more onerous conditions. · · 

(I.) 
From Premier to Agent-General. 

Reply. 
Referring to my telegram of 22nd April, Act of Parliament shows ,<;annot a_lter. my reply. 

(J.) 
London, J.liay.5th, 1899. 

Srn, 
GREAT WESTERN RAILWAY. 

I HAVE the honouur to state for your information that farther developments rega1·ding the above 
matter appear, so far as I can trace them, to be very sati~factory, and point to an early migration of staff 
for construction purposes. 

Your latest cable message, dated the 2nd May, pledging Ministers to intrnduce a Bill extending the 
time for taking up the concession has,.I hope, been satisfactory, yet when a million sterling is invvlved you 
will not be surprised to le_arn that the opinion o.f Sir Edward Clarke, Q.C., M.P., has been taken. It is 
unreservedly- favourable to the concessionaires' claim that they have fulfilled all the conditions. Your Bill 
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will, however, remove all doubts, and should be passed. It may help to remove a burning fear in some 
quarters that the Tasmanian Govemment does not lend any encouragement to the promoters. 

Yonr instmctions to me to withdraw from the Directorate came at a critical moment, ancl I sincerely 
hope that my prompt action in withdrawing has not in any way ma!'l'ed the project, although it is argued 
that such a step is a condemnation of the work by the Govemment, and consequently may preju<lice 
un<lerwriters. I had accepted the same after _some consideration, the Government and Colony has such 
mutual interest in the success of this project that the most complete cordiality and co-operation should 
exist, and therefore it seemed to me that while interests could not clash I might be of service on the Board 
both to the Government and Company, especially as not less than three quarters ofa million sterling must 
find its way to 'l'asmauia, and might by my co-operation on the Directorate be through cliannels ad van-
tageous alike to Government and the Colony. -

Fortunately the prospectus was not published and the withdrawal of my name was therefore known 
only to a _few. I have not asked you to reconsider that decision although those chiefly concemed very 
much desired me to do so. 

'Pu Hon. P-reinier, Hobart. 
P. 0. FYSH, ,igent-Genernl. 

(K.) 
London, 19th illay, 1899. 

Srn, 
GREAT 11/ESTERN RAILWAY. 

I HA VE the honour to inform you that the Whitsuntide. holidays will delay any definite message 
regarding this matter until the early part of June, but my latest interviews with Mr_ Hansen, of Messrs. 
Coates and Hansen, warrant this interim report, that he is "sympathetic." 

That firm contemplates raising the £600,000 Debenture money, and I found much satisfaction iu 
learning that it was conversant with all the points which may make or mar the investment. 

The co11tents of the prospectus had no allurements ; the fii·m was well posted np with the natural 
difficulties, probable competition with Emu Bay, Government, and Mt. Lyell Company's Railway>', sparcit,r 
of population, JJresent non-connection with the Chiltern coal deposits, pos:;ible cheapeni11g of flnx by opening­
of l"1acquarie Harbour Bar, and present want of value of the Land Coucessioris, and speculative character 
of the mineral output; upon all of which subjects I was pleased, in cornpariug notes, to find that their 
clients will not be able at any time to say they were ill-informed. 

Beeau~e of the very limited nature of the responsibility I should have borne in accepting a seat on the 
Great Westem Railway Board, the Government, by my actions, could not have been reflected upon at any 
time by failure of the promoters to realise their published anticipations. I have regretted that it has been 
in the mouths of concessionaires that the Government showed a hostile front at all points, but my actions 
here have been simple disproof. 

Your message by cable offering support to necessary amendment of the Act in favour of the con­
cessionaires, and the assistance which I have rendernd here, and which has -many times been acknowledged 
to have been important, have gone far as antidotes to the mischievous message cabled from l\'.felboume to 
the Times, on the l6t.!1 instant, that the Tasmanian Govemment had d_eclined to sanction my joining the 
Board. That I had been asked to do so was not publicly known, and that I had withdrawn my consent 
17 days previously made that cablegram as unnecessary a~ it might have been mischievous. 

'l'he prospectus for the contents of whieh, as a Director, I might have been responsible, is not being 
· _published for the purpose of obtaining subscriptions for share capital. Before I was asked to join, all the 

share capital, preforent and ordinary had been underwritte11 ; as to which, therefore, I have absolutely no 
responsibility. Therefore, as Mr. Hansen ag·reed with me that responsibility ,ms to be measured by the 
trnst imposed by investors in the £600,000 Debenture Capital. . 

As to that, it is as a mortgage over the constmction, a first charge upon it and upon its eamings, aud 
assuming that the line will cost one millio11 sterling and realise a nett annual earning of only£30,000, the 
interest of 5 per cent is covered. 

These facts cannot have been known to you and you must have presumed that your officer in my 
person was fathering a prospectus put fo!'th to raise share capital of £1,400,000 on very speculative data. 

Under such a statement of the case I venture to suggest that the practice adopted by myself when 
your and my present positions were exactly reversed would have been beneficial, viz., to repose some 
confidence in the judgment of your Age11t-General, and at least wait for his justification of his act before 
repudiating it. _ 

I may not be able to enclose with this the prospectus, as the draft has yet to undergo at my suggestion 
certain modification. '!'his gives me the oppol'tunity to say 1 have found all conce!'ned to be stemly 
critical of all statements, claiming documentary support before accepting them and that urn names of all 
the firms associated in the prospectus are exceptionally reliable. 

Messrs Bircham & Co., Solicitors to the Trustees of Debe11ture hol<le1s, is the same firm which had 
charge of the Government case ·v. The Tasmanian Main Line Railway Company, and with them, and 
everyoue associated, I have had the fullest intercoL1rse, and from them been able to gather all the details 
of the neg·otiations. 

Of the contract, also, I hope to cover a copy. 'l'he price of the contrnct is £1,057,000, but the 
original company is to fi11d wharfage accommodation and purchase all land, for which an allowance is made 
between that snm and the £1,019,500, which is to he paid for by original shares, .£100,000; cash, 
£857,500; p!'eforence shares, £362,000-Total, £1,019,500. 

The capital found by preference shares and debentures is a fil'st charge on net earni11gs, and any further 
profit as a dividend on the original share capital 

All risk, tlierefore, lies with the holders of share capital, who, if the venture be a success get paid, if a 
failure, nothing. 

To Hon, Premier, Hobart, 
P. 0. FYSI-I, Agent-Geneml. 
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"For opinion whether in regard to the Surveyor-General's minute sections 83 and 17 of the Great Western 
Hailway Company's Act can be read together, so as to give the Promoters an extension of time 
beyond two years for selection of their blocks along the line." -

The following is the opinion of the Solicitor-General, Mr. A. Dobson :-
Great Western Railway Company.-Marking off land (Sect. 80, 60 Viet,) 

Having re!lard to the construction of the Great Western Railway Company's Act, I think it plainly 
appears that no extension of time can be given beyond two years from the passing of the Act (26th 
November, 1896), for the purpose of marking off lands under Section 83 of the Act. -

Section 17 provides that before the Promoters shall commence to construct the railway they shall 
deposit with the Minister a copy of the working plans and sections of such railway, showing the route 
and the private and ·Crown lands and mineral leases to be traversed by the railway, or which shall he 
contiguous thereto ; provision is also made by this section that the Promoters may submit the plans and 
sections above referred to from time to time for portions of the line instead of the whole line, and before 
commencing construction of such portion. 

Section 83 provides that upon the deposit of the plans and specifications and sections as thereinbefore 
provided, and within tmo years after the passing of the Act, the Promoters shall acquire the right to mark 
off any unoccupied Crown Lands, not exceeding seven blocks, as in the said section mentioned. 

[t no doubt appears that, under section 17, plans and sections may be submitted of portions oft h:l 
line from time to time, but that provision is for the convenience of construction of such portions. 

As regaJ"ds the right to mark off, section 83 implies that all the plans, &c., must be deposited, and 
this evidently is a necessary provision to enable the lands to be properly marked off, but in any event 
sec:tion 83 provides that the lands must be marked off within two yeaJ"s after the passing of the Act. 

The question is further detel'mined by a reference to section 170, ·which provides that the Minister may 
withdraw from selection undet" "The Crown Lands Act, 18g0," and from the operation of." The Mining 
Act, 1893," for a period of tn,o years from the passing of this Act, so much land as to the Minister may 
seem fit. 

This power of 1·e,;ervation by the Minister is evidently given in order that lands may be reserved for 
the purpose of being marked off by the Promoters under section 8:3, and I therefore regard the provisions 
of section 170 as a further indication of the intention of the Legislature that the Promoters must mark off 
within two years after the passing of the Act. 

ALFRED DOBSON, Solicitor-Geneml's Gltarnbers. 
10th Decernber,.1898. 

(M.) 
Survey Departrnent, Der;eniber 30th, 1898. 

Sm, 
Re Selection of blocks on the route of the Great Western Rail way. 

I HAVE the honour to inform you that, under the Great Western Railway and Electric Ore Reductior. 
Company Act, I, as Minister of Lands, have elected to retain the most eastern block north of the pro­
posed Great ·western Railway, and westerly alternate blocks coloured blue on the plan attached to the 
Company's application deposited in the office of the Surveyor--Gcneral, leaving the alternate blocks coloured 
red on the said pJ:rn available to be acquired by the Great Westem Railway Company in pursuance of any 
Act authorising such acquisition. 

I have the honour to be, 
Sir, 

Your obedient Servant, 
W. MOORE, for J.11iniste·1· of La1id.~. 

W. J. McWrLLIAMS, !?sq., 11£.I-I.A., Agent G1·eat 1-Ve.~tern Railmay Company. 

MY DEAR PALMER, 

(N.) 
12, Victoria-st1·eet, Westminster, S. W ., 

8th June, 1899. 
GREAT WES'l'ERN RAILWAY OF TASMANIA. 

THE action of the Tasmanian Government in telegraphing to the Agent-General here on the eve of the 
flotation of this Company that the powers to mark out land under Clauses 83 and 170 of this Act had 
elapsed, and following this by another telegram declining to allow the A-gent-General to take a seat on our 
Board, has done an incalculable amount of harm as regards the financial anangements of this Company. 

I have in my possession a prospectus of the Great Northern Railway (Emu Bay) of Tasmania, upon 
which the Premier of Tasmania, Sir Edward Braddon, appears as a Director at- a time he was Premier. 
I am at a loss to understand why the Premier of the Colouy should be allowed to take a seat on oue 
Railway Board and not allow· the Agent-General to take a seat on another, and particularly in this case, 
where all well-wishers for the prospel'ity of the Colony must see the enormous importance in aiding the 
rapid developme'!1t of Tasmania by getting the Great Western Rail way completed at the earliest possible 
date. 'l'he telegrams senfhave in any case delayed the construction of the railway for 6 months, and, 
unless the Government are prepared to come forw!lrd and assist the Coml-'any to repair the damage which 
has been done, it will be still longer delayed. 

The best and cheapest way to do this would be for the Government to offer a guarantee on the 
debentures, which, in my opinion, would be merely nominal, as I believe there is such a big future before the 
Great Western Railway that even from the beginning the Government would not be called upon under 
their guarantee. . 
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I vel'y much sympathise with you in the awkward position the Government has placed you, anci 
cannot help thinking that the Government has some information of which you al'e not cog-nisant of, OJ' such 
action on theil' part woulrl never have been taken as if the powers unde!' Clauses 83 and 170 have lapsed, 
which I cannot admit; they lapsed in N ovembel' last, and it was then for the Government to ha\'e pointed 
it out to us. 

Wishing you a very pleasant and successful. voyage, 

Believe nm, 
Youl's very truly, 

JOHN BRUNLEES. 

(0.) 
EXTRACT from the PROSPECTUS of the GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY OF 

'l'ASMANIA, LIMITED. 

L Private and Confidential.] 

T!te .List of Applications mill be closed on 01· bqfore t!te day of , 1897, for botli 
. ToJVn and Country. 

THE GREAT NORTHERN RAILWAY OF TASMANIA, LIMITED. 

Inc01"]_1orated unde1· the Companies' Acts, 1862 to 1893. 

ISSUE OF 
£450,000 5 per cent. FIRST MORTGAGE DEBENTURE STOCK, 

A1' PAR. 

Secul'ed by Trust Deed, and constituting a first charge upon the undertaking and assets of the Company, 
and Jiiterest will be paid half-yearly on 1st day of July, and 1st day of J anua!'y-the first amount being 

payable on 1st January, 1898. 
Piiyable as follows :-10 per cent. on application; 15 per cent. on allotment; 2b pel' cent. 

50 per cent. . 
Subscribers may .Pay up in full ir1 advance, and inte!'est will be paid from the date of payment. 
If no allotment is made the application money will be returned in full, and if pal'tial allotment is made 

any surplus will be applied towards the payment to be made on allotment . 
. Failure to pay any of the instalments on the due· dates will render the instalments previously paid 

liable to forfeiture. 
The Company has power to redeem the whole or part of the Debenture Stock at any time after the 

1st Janual'y, 1910; at·£110 pel' cent., on giving· six month's notice of its intention to do so. 
The Trnst Deed will provide that not less than 20 per cent. of the net profits of the Company (after 

providing· for Debenture Interest) in each year shall be set aside by the Company and applied in forming 
a Reserve Fund for the redemption or purchase of the Debenture Stock. 

Tru.~tees fur the Debenture IIolders. 
The EARL OF KINTORE, G.C.M.G., late Governor South Australia. 

The Hon, HENRY LLOYD Grnns (Messrs. Antony Gibbs & Co.) 

Dirncton. 

Lord CLAUD J .. HAMILTON, (Chairman of the Great Eastern Railway Company), Chainnan. 
J.·H. SMITH, Esq., late Chairman of the Railway Commissioners of South Australia. 
Major-General C. S. HUTCHINSON, C.B., late Government Inspector of Railways to the Board of Tiacle. 
Sir EDWARD BRADDON, K.C.M.G., Premier of Tasmania. i 
C._.GrnsoN M.ILLAR, 'Esq., Director, Silverton Tramway Company, Limited, New Local Bom·d. 

South W:ales. 
JA11rns S11II'l'H REID, Esq., Director, Sulphide Corporation, Limited, Melbourne. 

Banhe1·s. 
1'HE. CITY. BANK,· LillIITED, Threadneedle street, E.C. 

THH BANK OF Au.sTRALASIA, Tasmania. 

Brolw1·s. 

Solidtors (fur the Company.) 

England: INGLE, HOLMES & SoNs, Threadneeclle street, E.C. 
Australia.: BLAKE & RrnoA LL, Melbourne. 

A1tditors. 

Con.mltin_q Ji)11_qinee1·. 
H. C. MAIS, M.I.C.E., Melbourne, late Engineer in Chief, South Australia. 

Secret ar.lJ and O.ffi cer.~ ( pro fem..) 

J. W. CLARK, 15 and 16, George street, Mausion House, E.C. 
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(P.) 
Norton, Rose, No1·ton J' Co., 

DEAR SIR, 
57½, Old Broacl-st1·eet, E.O., ,lune 5th, 1899. 

G1tEA'l' W.ES'J'l~RN RAILWAY OF 'l'AS!VlANIA. 

THE circnmstltnce_s that have happened· with regard to the above undertaking- have been most n::1fo1·­
tunate, and have resulted in preventing the funds necessary for the completion of the line being raised in 
London at the present moment, a result which, bnt for the rwtion of the Govel'llme11t of Tasmania, would, 
in onr opinion, long ere thi:;:, have been attained. 

Yon will appreciate that the confidence of the pnblic in nndertaking·s supported by the A nstralian 
Govermnents is ve1-y mnch shaken by the events that have happened, both "·ith regard to the Midland 
Hailway in Western Australia, and the Midland Railway in New Zealand. . . 

Whatever the rights or wrong,; of those questions may be, they ·1iave brot1ght the English public to 
the frame of mind of thinking that the colonial govemments are iuclined to take advantage of any 
technical hitch that may arise, and in no sense ready to ovel'look technil·al omissious, and that, instead of 
acting liberally and generousl_,, towards the public in connection with their guara11tees as a mercantile 
house anxious to st1pport its credit would do, even if it went a little or considerably beyond· the s;;rict 
let_ter of its obligations, the colonial governments are inclined to take advant~ge of any little techr:.ical 
point to create difficulties. -- This feeling has been very much added to by the course that has been adoptfd 
by the Government of Tasmania in reference to the Great Westem Railway. . 

Taking the principal points that occur to us in order, it must·be borne iu mind that when a doubt was 
raised by the propc•sed contractors as to. the real construction of Section 15 of the Act, the Govemment 
insisted upon the construction le·ast liberal to the company, and claimed that the maximum g1;ade and 
minimum curves specially authorised by the Act should not be used as a matter of rig·ht, but must _be in 
each case at the discl'etio"n of the Govefri1pent engineer. If this construction ";ere to be maintained as. a 
general p1;ineiple in such contracts, it would render calculations by contractors imp'ossible, _because, instiiad 
of being able to make their.own calcnlations upon the basis of the limits authorised, they would have to 
make allowan.ce for the pos;iible or probable peculiar opinions of the Govem01ent engineers-in other 
woi·ds, they would be entirely in the hands of the Govemment._ enginee1·s; and, as the natural 1esult, iµ 
uccordance with the practice of eimtractors, who are' naturally obliged to protect themselves agaib.st all 
dangers of the kind, they assume a more tha11 i'e'as·o11able stl'ingency on the part of the Govemment 
engineers, and add a very large margin to the co,ntract price. This actually arose in the present case. 
The_ contractors required terms which necessitated providing for the creation of another £200,00.0 of 
debentures, and inderrtnifying··tlre conti·acto1·s against any special demamls by the Government engineers in 
respect of curves and graµes. 

Then, although the Agent-General for Tasmania was perfectly willing to join the Board and. ;to g:vo 
his name to the undertaking, that was refused; a11d it was also suddenly suggested that:the La\\; Officers of 
the Crown considered the rig·ht to the land concession had lapsed. . · · · . . : · 

Now, whether that opinion is right or wron~ is wholly immaterial, but if the Ta_smari,ian Goverp.rnent 
wish to obtain credi;:; wi1h the English public they must act in a very different spirit to this. If there were 
any idea that the rig-ht to the land concession had lapsed, it should have been notified to the company lo::ig 
before; instead of at th~ last moment, on the eve of flotation. 

The course adopted by the Tasmanian Government has. created the inevitable fee.ling tha_t l,ut-for the 
telegrams as to the Agent-General joining the Board, the Goverument would have been perfectly willing 
to keep quiet, let the money be raised from the public, then, when it was raised and part of the money 
spent upon construction,, t_urn rol!nd and say that the land was forfeited. 

This has createtl a very great feeling of distrust, which can only be removed if an entire change of 
niethod is adopted by the- Government in future, and makes it the more essential that a gua1;antee upon vei'Y 
clear and definite terms should be given by the Government, and that the right of the company to the 
land should also be put in language which is. beyond all question. 

. Now:, as to the.latter of the_se, a clause has been settled by counsel in England which is.satisfactory :o 
the1n, and, we believe, will be 5atisfactory to the public; but.if any fot·m is addpied which; upon critical 
f'Xamination hei·e sliO\VS the slightest loophole by .which the Government can escape from its obliga,tion· to 
give the land, it can be taken as a matier of certainty that it will be impossible to raise the. required funds 
here. · 

AgHin, with regard to the girnraritee, that must be a guarantee in the plainest possible language, and 
such guarantee must be. endorsed upon each of the bonds, signed by a duly authorised agent of the Goverr.­
ment, to the effect that the Government undertakes as an absolute and unalterable obligation, entirely incle­
peudent of all questions that have arisen or that may arise between it and the company that it will make a 
cenain an_nual payment, snch anuuity to be applied, so far as required, in paying interest upou the bonds 
for the time being outstanding, and the surplus in redeeming bonds; and that it must be expressly pro­
vided that the Government is not to have any claim on the company for repayment of moneys which it 
may disb_urse. i?- this respect, except out of the smplus profits of the company after providing for tha 
preferential d1v1dend on the preference shares. · 

Yours faithfully, 

NORTON, ROSE, & CO. 
J. W. BAKEWELL, EsQ., .Junior Carlton Club, Pall Mall, S. f,Jl, 
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(Q.) 
Da.~hn•ood House, 9, Ne,v Broad-st1·eet, 

London, E.G., 9th .June, 1899. 

'l'ASUANIAN GREA'l' \VES'l'EllN RAILWAY. 

IN view of the clear opinion given by Sir Edward Cla,·ke, that the Adelaide Company had per­
fo1 merl all that was required of them in the Act to entitle them to the benefits of that Act, and in view 
also of the Government of Tasmania having cabled that one of the benefits, viz., the Land Concession had 
lapsed, I regret to say that I cnnnot see my way to advising my friends to sign for the underwriting· which 
they had agreed to do. I am glad to leam that the Tasmanian Government have now passed n fort.her 
Act which. will give the Company the henefit of the Land Concessi .. n; proviclerl that certain work is done 
within a certain period, bnt I regl'et to say that donhts arise whet.hel' farther difficnlties might not be 
placecl in the way of the Company, a8 wa~ done in the case of the New Zealand Midland Railway h.,· 
the New Zealand Government., whern both Debenture and ShaJ"eholders lost the whole of their· investment.•. 
Thi,, action has ea.used great feeling iu the Lowlon market against Colonial concessions, aud as I have stated 
the action of the Tasmanian Government with reference to thP L·rnd Concession attached to the railwav 
does not tend to allav that fea1·. · 

In the Aet the17e are a number of clauses which conld be, it appear~ to me, very readily stmined to 
mean various thing·s, and ,·cqnire a further Act to set thing·s ~traight in the same way as the Laud Con­
ce~,,ion. Furthermore the pnblicatiun in the Time.~ of the fact that tire Tasmaninu Govemment wonld not 
allow Sir Philip Fysh to act as a Director on the railway, has ereated tire impression that the Government 
is in some way opposed to the Company. 

I see no prospect of getting the Compauy through unless some guarantee is given by the Govemrµent 
that the Company will never find itself in snch a position as the New Zealand Midland does at the present 
t!me, 

I consider that the rail way rates chargeable by the Govemment should be fixed at once, 01· else the 
Govemment shonld give the Company the option ·of purchasing or renting the line already existing from 
Hobart to Glenora. 

Yours tmly, 

,v. HARCOUll'l' PALMER, Esq., 12, Uera.ld Roa.d, Eaton· Squa1'e, 8, W, 
EDWIN SLOPER. 

DEAR Srn, 

(R.) 

2, Slw1·te1·s Coul't, 1'h1·ogmrwton-street, London, E. C., 
l6tlt June, 1899. 

WE cannot advise our friends to put money into the Great .Westem of Tasmania until matters in 
dispute between the Government and your syndicate have been cleared up. 

There must be no ambiguity as to the me,rning of the Acts of Parliament. 

Yours sincerely, 
WALFORD BROTHERS & CO, 

W. J, BAI~EWELL, Esq,, .Junio1· Cm·lton Club. 

H. PALMER, Esq. 
DEAR SIR, 

(8.) 
2, Royal Exchange Buildings, 

London, 23i·d .iliarclt, 189D. 

GREAT WESTERN TASMANIA RAILWAY, 

Provided the final p,·ospeetus is approved of by Barclay and Co. they are willing to take the account 
and to be responsible for the underwriting of £150,000 of the ;1 per cent. debentures on the terms mentioned 
by yon. As to the remaining £50,000, we will let you have a final answer tu-morrow or Saturday. 

It is understood, however, in any case, that Barclay ancl Co. will not appear on the prospectus as 
"inviting applications,'' although of course subscr·iptions will go to them. We shall be glad to have final 
prospectus as :,00n as possible, also underwriting letters_ for signature. 

We are, 
Yours faitl1fully, 

ELLIS & Co. 

It is clearly understood by Barclay and Co. that the whole of the debenture issue is underwritten. 

(T.) 

110, Cannon-strnet, London, E. C., 19th .June, 1899. 
DEAH. Srn, 

GREAT WESTERN RAILWAY OF TASMANIA. 

WITH regard to the present position of the affairs of this railway, I understand from you that on 
several occasions when flotation was about to be effected, difficulties have been raised by the Governmen1 
of Tasmania: fir,,tly, in regard to the grades and curves authorised by the Act, and second!,}', in regard 
to an alleged loss of the la~d concessio~. ' 
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It is most unfortunate that these difficulties have arisen at a critical moment, and I am mo~t 
disappointed at the .pos1ponement of flotation on these groun<le, and especially as my financial friends ar~ 
likely to be uneasy as to the future, should they advance the money 1;eqni:red. · 

Considering the uncertain state of affairs, and the apparent hostile attitude of the Tasmanian Govern­
ment, I am of course unable to advise them to put their money in this investment until all difficulties are 
settled, and it becomes evident that the Government is disposed to facilitate the object of the Act. 

The uneasiness of the financiers· is, rightly or wrongly, accentuated by the action of the New Zealand 
Government to the debenture-holders who advanced money for the construction of the Midland Railway 

· of New Zealand.· In this particular instance the New Zealand Government were at. first friendly, and it 
was only'aft'er the railway was constructed, that-what practically amounted to a forfeiture of the railway, 
took place. In this instance the Tasmanian Government are showing signs of hdstility before even the 
work is commenced. 

I-am,' 
Yours faithfully, 

J. vV. BAKEWELL, Esq., . J. W. STUBBINS. 
Junior Ca1·lton Club, 30 to 35, Pall J.Wall, S. TV. 

(U.) 

DEAR SIR, 
10, Finsbur,y Circus, London, 7th June, 1899. 

GREAT WESTERN RAILWAY OF 'fAS:\IANIA. 

WE have your letter of the 5th instant with reference to the position of this matte~·, and note that you 
have come to the conclusion that the land grants were not in.order, a '.!natter which we have already heard 
of from other sources and which we had mentioned to Mr. Palmer,, and we do not for one moment suppo3e 
that you can do anything with regard to issuing the Company until the Act formally ratifying the grants 
and making the title good reaches this country. · . . ·. 

We do not understand your reference to our attitude, because we had always told you exactly what we 
thought could be done, and we introduced Mr. Palmer to :Messrs. Lumsden and Myers, who were prepared 
to do a c,onsiderable amount.of the underwriting. 

We would remind you that the reason why the matter could not be proceeded with was because of the 
difficulty with the contractors. We pointed out that· nobody would underwrite until there was a firm 
arrangement with a responsible contractor to do the work on lines whfch could be covered by the issue, and 
it was only comparatively recently that you or Mr. Palmer were able to make that arrnng'ement with 
Messrs. Pauling, and we would remind you that the business stood over for a long time to enable this 
arrangement to be completed. vVhen arrangements were completed time had gone on to such an extent 
that Mr. Myers was about to leave England, and we told Mr. Palmer that while Mr. Myers was away the 
underwriting·could not make much progress, as Mr. Myers is the member of the firm of Messrs. Lumsden 
and Myers, who personally attends to the underwriting matters. 

Mr. Myers is due to return to this country the first week in July, and we do not suppose you will :ie 
in a position to make any progress at.all before that date at t:µe least because we do not anticipate that you 
will have the papers and documents showing that the land grants are now in order in this country before 
that time. . 

If at the date of Mr. Myers' return the business is really in order, both as to the contractors and as to 
the title, then we have little cloubt that Mr. Myers could and would underwrite a very large portion of the 
capital, but we are quite sure, from what we have heard in the City, that it would be-impossible to under­
write the capital until we have actual evidence in this country as to the title being in order. 

We sent you the bundle of papers which we had, but we will look and see if we have any more. 

W. G. BAKEWELL, Esq., ,Junior Carlton Club, Pall JJ,Jall. 

(V.) 

MY DEAR S1R, 

Yours truly, 
H. E. WARNER & Co. 

Holgate Hill House, York, 
June 22nd, 1-899. 

I AM glad to hear that you have returned to Tasmania, respecting the proposed- Great Western Rail­
way. It is the wisest course, seeing that so much requires to be done. You were good enough to propose 
that I should be Chairman -of the Company, and although I told you more than once that I was too old to 
take- up the scheme with the hope of seeing it fairlv through, I have nevertheless taken some interest in it, 
and have looked at some of the papers. I have, however,. never .had an opportunity of examining fully 
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the Act of the Tasmanian Parframent, passed in 1896. There art! some points in it which require amend­
ment, and some new pl'ovisions are needed. The Tasmanian Government must, I think, give some 
guarantee-that is, if the,v want the unde1:taking carried out. What I mean is, that the debenture ca_pital 
·which it will be necessar>' to create (say to the extent of £650,000 or £700,000), should have a guarantee 
of interest by the Government, &nd such guarantee should not be hampered by restrictive conditions -or 
stipulations. In Clause 4 the 30 years mentioned should run from the present time, or rather from the 
passing of the amending Act. Clause 7 makes no provision giving perpetuity to the lease; it must do so. 
Investors must be made perfectly secure in the possession of their property until it is purchased. A'l 
regards Clause 5, the conditio11s a11d stipulations with their consequences are far too stringent, and must be 
reduced to a condition of harmony with the views just expressed-viz., 'that the parties who find the money 
shall not be placed in any danger of losing it. Clauses 33 and 34, if in at all; should provide for ·,nutual 
running· powers ; at present they are one-sided. . 

I now come to a very important, nay a crncial point in the whole business, viz., the power of pnrchase 
given in part 8 of the Act. No sensible capitalist would think of investing his money in any undertaking 
which might be dealt with in such .fashion. If the Government wish to have power to take the 1·ail way, it 
must be provided that they shall take it on the basis of constrnction and equipment, plus a certain arlt!ition; 
No man with common sense would agrr.e to sell his property without knowing what he was to get for it as 
is p1·ovided he ~hould do in the Act as it now stand,,;. 'l'he idea that the Government should be authorised to 
take the railway, leaving the promoters with the rolling-stock and machinery for working the railway on 
their hands, is.quite inadmissiblP. The only admissible stipulation would be one providing against milful 
nf!gligence in repairs and maintenance as the period of purchase approaches. The 20 per cent. mentioned 
in the clause is a delusion, and no directors could honestly issue a prospectus which held out to share-
holders that the;, would get their capiral back in case of purchase plus 20 per cent. • 

Part 13 of the Act is a little complicated. Under it one finds a difficulty in settling in one's own 
mind what the railway is going to get. One thing strikes me forcibly: at the end of Clause 83 the 
Minister has .power to fix the "most eastem of such blocks;" consequently, the Minister may really settle 
what land the Company shall have. This is nut right. 'l'he Company must have the power to choose 
the land. 

As regards Part 17 of the Act, yon have used this as a reason why people should join the scheme, 
because of the probable profit the Company would derive from the supply of electric power. Now, here 
again, the provisos put it in the power of the authorities in Tasmania to destroy the advantages. ~o one 
can tell from the Act where the water may be taken from nor what the Company will have to pay for it; 
such uncertainties appe_ar nearly fatal. . 

I cannot go auy further into the provisions of the Act at present. It needs great attention. My 
general feeling about it is that it has been drawn up as if the Government were dealing with speculators 
and not bona fi,de investo.rs, and that they, the Govemment, should have most of the power over the under­
taking. If the Government want the railway made by English capital they must bring the Act into 
harmony with English ideas. . 

You have a great task "'before you. lfsou want Englishmen to take the matter np in earnest you 
must obtain security and see that ·uncertainty is removed, aUtl that the control of the imdertaking shall· be 
placed in thE;i liand~ of those who find the money, and don't fo1·get that in the case of a colonial scheme aH 
the points I have llamed or hinted at, besides others, are all the more necessary -to be provided for, on 
account of the want of confidence which to a certain e_xtent prevails in relatio11 to colonial matters. 

I am yot_u·s -very trnly, 

H. TENNANT •. 
w._ H. PALMER, E.w1uire. 

(W.) 

E.~'l'~,\C'r from lett~r of Agent-General to Premier., dated 17th March, 1899 :-
6. I yet feeJ,_it to be advisaJ,:ile to adcj, s_ucl1 important pr_ojepts so o.f~en fail. at the last moment hy some 

insuperable and possibly unforeseen djfliculty 3crising, that were there __ m_1y oc,casjon for aclio_n on your part, 
such action would be wisely deferred 11n1il s1ibsequent advice b:v me. 

(X.) 

64, Uannon St1·eet, London, E.G., 27th .i11ay, 1899. 
DEAR Srn, 

GREA'l' WESTERN RAILWAY OF TASMANIA. 

Referring to our interview with you and Mr. Bmnlees on this matter on Thursday last, we beg to 
inform you, that we have seen om client:,;, the Clydesdale Bank, and also Messrs. Coates and Son. We 
may say at once that the Clydesdale Bank would not entertain the Debentures under any cil'cumswnces, 
except under the advice of Messr;;. Coates and Son, and the latter inform us that they have stated positively 
that they cannot entertain the matter until the promoters have obtained a guarantee from the Tasmanian 
Government. 

Until, therefore, this guarantee is obtained, we can do nothing further in the matter. 

Yours faithfully, 

;TA,CKSON S;;_ )?RINCE, P.C.J.S. 

W. HARCOURT P,\LMER,.Esq,, Dasltmood Hou,~e, Nen• lJroad Street, E.C,; 



. 
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(Y.) 

O.Jfice of the Agent-General.fur Tr.rnmania. TVestminster OJ,,,,..,,.be1·s, 
5, Victoria-.~treet, Lo.ndun, S. W., Angust 11, 1801). 

-DEAR Mc'N1Lr.1A:Ms, 
. COPIES of amending- Act duly received, but as Mr. Bakewell had gone to India ere they arrived, :t 

have handed them to co11tractors a1id engineers of the projected Compan.v. _ 
Palmer ere this w_ill have told yon of all the difficulties which beset him. I have suggested that there-­

is a wa,v for Government to help which would-bring the sure flotation off here. 
'Let the people or Government take a pi1rt of the risk, if onl,v £150,000 or £200,000, and the thing can 

be done. ls the construct10n worth £6000 a year to the Colony ?-1'hat is 3 per cent._ on £200,000 .. 
Such a subscription to the debenture capital, for which a first mortgage can be obtained over' all the works, .. 
would ensure success here. · · 

Yours &c.; 
P. 0. FYSH. -

(Z.) 

COP')' OF TELEGRAllI FR0llf FITZGERALD, HOBART, Tu AGENT-GENERAL. 
"An~· chance of floating Great ·western how much capital wanted in terms of prospectus." 

Re:>ly .. 
'' Eleven hunJrecl thousand underwritten on ·terms which app~ar likely of acceptance few days­

nmst decide." 

(AA.) 
London, 14th April, 1899. 

81R, 
' 1. lN contiuuation of my despatch dated the 17th ultimo, having reference to the Great Western 
Railway of Tasma11ia, I have the honour to inform you that I am not less hopeful now than then of success 
attending this concession. . 

2. 1'he contractors, Messrs. Pauling & Co., Limited, which I have good reason to believe are well 
capable of carrying on the work, and are amply guaranteed, did for a time hesitate with a view to ·having­
substituted the weight of iron rail provided by the Act, viz. 43 lb. for 60 lb. rails, for which the pro--
moters stipulate. -

3. That firm has,'I know now, proffered to construct upon 60 lb. rail and specification, and, in 1he 
interim of the negotiations, another firm, Sir Wheatman Pearson & Co., have expressed their willingness to. 

undertake the work. 
4. I believe the capital will be formed by £600,000 underwritten as a cash guarantee to contractors, 

and that the contractors paid £500,000 in debentures to 1·ank as, present capital. Bankers, too, have been 
named as guarantors of contractors, to whom no exception can be taken. 

5. Yet, as stated in m_y former communication, too much reliance should not be p'laced-upm1 the com--­
pletion uutil I am able to report tha:t the contracts have been s.igned, w'hich s'hould be in a few days. 

·To.Hon. Premie1·, Hobart, TawwnirJ. 

(BB.) 

1899. 

(Signed) P. 0. 'FYSH, Lfgent-Genel'lll .. 

THE GREAT WESTERN. RAILWAY COMPANY (TASMANIA) ACT, 1896. 

OPINION ,of S,m EnwARD CLARKE, Q.C., M.P., (late SolicitOJ'.-General). · 

I UNDERST.AND that the character of the land is such that while the general plan of the line sliowing­
·.the route and the contour line has been lodged before the commencement of work, the detailed plans and 
sections showing the private and Crown lands and mineral leases to be traversed by the. railway would 
naturally be lodged in portions, as permitted by Section 17, and that before the, expiration of· the two­
years dptailed plans were deposited for 10 miles, starting from Glenora, and that sinile the expiration of tl1e 
two years further plans and sections have been lodged and approved. It appears that on the 31st 
December, 1898, two -proclamations of the Governor, under the Mini!}g Act and the Crown Lands Act, 
described and reserved the blocks specified in snch proclamations. 1 am of opinion that there has been no­
forfeiture of the lease, nor any breach of the reg uirement. of the Act. It is now here said that all the­
detailed planS and sections must be lodged within two years (indeed, the contrary is clearly implied by the. 
terms of Section 17), JJOr is it provided that the w.ho.le line must be laid out in detailed plans and t,actions 
before the blocks are delimited. I am of opinion that the proclamation was a valid exercise of power on 
the part,of th.e Governor, who ther(:lby made the ele.ction referre.d_to in Section 83, -and that· such election.· 
and approval give the Company a clear titl0 to receive leases of these- :blocks as and when provided by 

·the Act. · 
EDWARD CLARKE. 

lst May, 1899. 
. ~~ .- --- ._.,. 
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(Cc.) 

THE GREA.T WESTERN RAILWAY OF TASMANIA. 

INSTRUCTIONS TO COUNSEL. 

There are sent herewith : 

a Act of the Tasmanian Legislative authorising the constmction of the Western Tasmanian· 
Railways. · _ · · -

b Cases and Memorandum submitted to Counsel, with his draft suggested alterations, altering 
Section 83 of the Act. ' 

c Prospectus. 

d Memorandum_ as to proposed guarantee. 

Having regard to telegrams received from the Government as to the land, as also io other matters, it 
nas been found impossible to float this Company under the arrangements as at present existing, and it is 
-considered highly desirable that a Government guarantee should be applied for, and it is understood that 
the Government will see its way to giving a guarantee. \ · 

Counsel is requested to read through Act of Parliament, and to consider same, and to settle the 
the guarantee clause. 

Qounsel is also requested to adjust Act of Parliament in any particular Section or Sections he may 
desire to do so. 

The matter is urgent, as one of the Promoters is leaving for Australia in a day or two, and he is 
canxious to take out a settled draft with him. .In addition, it is desirable that the Promoters should have a 
meeting and consider Counsel's a!'terations prior to same going to Australia. Counsel therefore will 
,greatly oblige by giving the same his best attention. 

OPINION. 

With regard to the accompanying Memorandum dealing with the proposed guarantee, I have no 
,.amendments to suggest. In canying the matter out, it will be desirable that both bond and coupon 
. should in some form bear a certificate of the· guamntee. . . 

I have gone through the special Act with the view of ascertaining upon what points amendments 
'Would be desirable, having regard to the questions lately raised. 
_ Section 5 of the Act.-An attempt should be made to extend the time for completion, by say, 3 years • 
.I understand that the railway has been commenced, so that the date for commencement need not be 
-extended. 

The time allowed by Sub-section (g), of Section 5, for the expenditure of £500 upon each block of 
Jand seems also to requil'e extension_. 

The lea~e of the line is to be for 30 years from 1896. It seems reasonable if the time for completion 
.is extended that the term of the lease should, be ·extended in the same manner. 

The same may. apply to the term of 25 years under S-ection 42. There is proviso to that Section 
which it seems would enable the Government to reject even fixed electrical p(ant of every kind: this might 

:work great hardship, and I suggest that a modification of the proviso might be aslfod for, so that the 
proviso should only apply to movable plant and to plant erected for the purpose of supplying electricity 
-otherwise than ·for the railway and its telegraph system. · · 
_ With regard to Section 8_3, upon which the re<:ent difficulty arose, I suggest that the new amending Act 

should contain in the Preamble a. statement to the effect that the plans and specifications, mentioned in 
,Section 83 of the principal Act, have been lodged, and that the Government has approved the selection of 
the most eastern of the blocks mentioned in the 83rd Section, and that it has been determinell to extend the 
period of two years there mentioned ; and then the operative part of the Act should· enact that ; that the 
said 83rd Section be amended by substituting the word " eight" for the word." two," and by substituting 
·th~ words "on a plan or plans to be deposited from time to time with the Minister" for the words "in 
manner hereinafter prescribed." · 
_ Having regard to the contentions of the Government of New Zealand as to the effect of a clause 
-somewhat similar to .Section 92 of the special Act, it would be very desirable if any new Act which may 
be obtained coulrl modify that Section, by saving the rights of holders of debentures issued under the later 
'Provisions-at any rate, within some limit as to amount-and fui'ther that the forfeiture should not extend to 
"blocks of land on either side· of the railway, so far as completed at the time of forfeiture,· it seems to me 
:almost impossible, after the publicity which has been given to the contention of the New Zealand Govern­
ment, to issue any prospectus for de9entures ,vithout calling attention to that Section. . 

A. R. KIRBY, 
. 10, Uld Squm·e, 2nd June, 1899. 

(Dn.)_ 

. EXTRACT from Schedule attached to the Contract given in the correspondence relating to the Main 
:Line Railway (Paper No. 29, 187-1, Page 21.) . . · 

No curve o'n the said Railway shall -have a less radius than four chains, and no gradient shall be 
.steeper than 1 in 40. -. 

----------
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(E_E.) 

O.ffice of Agent-General for Tasmania, 
TVestminster G!wmber.~, 5, Victoria-stred, L01ulon, S. JV., 

13th April, 18~)9. 
To W. HARCOURT PALMER, Esq., 

12, Victoria-street, S. W. 
DEAR SIR, 

.Re Great Western Railway of Tasmania. 

Referring to our conversation especially respecting the foel supply for mines of the Western Mi:ii.ng 
Divisiorc of Tasmania, I am from personal observation able to supply the following information:-

The timber supply of the district accessible for fuel purposes is utterly inadequate, and alth'ough 
timber reserves have been proclaimed by the Government, the smelting operations are carried on with 
importec. coke and coal by thousands of tons. The agitation for deepening the Strahan Bar is consequent 
upon thtc great demand for coal and coke, for which provision should be made for cargo boats of not less 
than 3000 tons each. 

The Great Western Railway can by branch of 16 miles, ,vhich has already been surveyed by the 
Government, tap a valuable bed of coal, highly bituminous, of first-class quality and easily hewn. I hwe 
visited tbe locality and tested the qharacter of the coal, and know it to be of ready and almost surface 
access to the prqjected line of Railw'ly, and that if carried at a penny per ton per mile it can be placed in 
the Western mineral fields at about one half of the present cost there. A penny per· mile in 'l'asmania is 
a paying rate for coal. 

Yours faithfully, 

P. 0. FYSH, Agent-General . 

. (FF.) 

COMPARATIVE TABLE OF RATES FOR 38 MILES. 
Distance-Hobart to Glenora. 

Tasmania. Victoria. N.S. Wales. 

s. d. s. d. .'-:. 

Rails and fastenings, per ton ................................. _ ... 14 6 11 7 14 
Sleepers,' per truck (6 tons) .............................. · ....... 19 0 20 6 2:3 
Cement, per ton.· ................................................... 6 4 9 2 6 
Bricks, in truck loads, per ton ............... , ................. 3 2 3 5 3 
Tim her, per truck of 6 tons .................................... 19 u 20 6 38 
Galvanised iron (packed), per ton .................. , ......... 14 6 17 8 14 
Contractors' plant and material, in truck load, per ton ... 14 6 8 3 14 

-----
91 0 91 1 115 

L<,ading or unloading by Railway Department or owners, as may be arranged for. 
Packages weighing more than. two tons, fourth-class rates. 

rl. 
7 
0 

l(J 

10 
5 
7 
7 

10 

Queensland. 

s. d. 
16 8 
3fj 0 
10 0 
3 7 

36 0 
16 8 
10 0 

128 11 
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Short title. 

Interpretation. 
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Great Western Railway· Company. [63 VrcT.] 

As amended by the Select Committee. 

\ 

A 

I L L 
TO 

Further a1ne~cl " T~e · Great_ vV estern Raih,vay 
and Electric Ore-reduction Company Act.'' 

WHEREAS it is expedient to1 further amend "The Gre·at Western 
Railway and Electric Ore-reduction Company Act" in the manner 
hereinafter appearing : 

And whereas (portions of the) plans, specifications, and sections, as 
mentioned in Sections Seventeen and Eighty-three of the said " Great 5 
\iVef!tern Railway am! Electric Ore-reduction Company Act," have 
be'en lodged wir.h the Minister, who has approved of the selection by 
the Promoters of the most eastern of the blocks mentioned in the said 
Section Eighty-three': 

And -whereas the Promoters have made th,e deposits mentio1wd in 10 
Section One hundred and seventv-one of the said Act, and have 
commenced the construction of the Railway in a bona .fide manner, 
[and have continued such construction to the satisfaction of the Governor 
in Council,] as provided in Section Five, Sub-section v., Clause ( b) : 

Be it therefore enacted by His Excellency the Governor of Tasmania, 15 
by and with the advice and consent of the Legislative Council and 
House of Assembly, in Parliament assembled, as follows:-

1 This Act may be cited as " The Great Westem Railway and 
Electric OTe-reduction Company Act, No. 3." 

2 In this Act-
The expression ." the said Act" shall mean " The Great 

Western Railway and Electric Ore-reduction Company 
Act " : 

f Private.] 

"*"' 'l'he words proposed to be struck out ar~ enclo~ed in bra.ckets [ J ; those to be 
· inserta.d, in parentheses ( ). 

I 

20 
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[63 VICT.J · Great Western Railway Company . . 

The expression " the. said Company" shall mean " The Tas- A.D. 1899~ 
rnanian Great Western Hailway and Electric Po,ver 
Company, Limited" : 

The expression "the said railwav" shall mean the railway 
. 5 which the Promoters are authorised by the said kct to 

construct and maintain : 
The expression " the primary lease" shall mean the primary 

lease which the Minister is by Section Four of the said 
Act authorised to grant to the Promoters. 

1 O 3 Th0 following amendments are hereby made in the several 
Sections of '' The Great Western Railway and Electric Ore Reduction 
Company Act'' in this Section referred to:-

Sectio:1 4-ln pll'lce of the words " date of this Act " in the fourth 
line, the words " First day of 'January, One. thousand nine hundred" 

15 are hereby substitgted. . 
Section 5, Sub-section rv.-,--In ·place of the words "f~r a further 

term n0t exceeding" in the fast and second lines. the words " for 
further successive terms of" are hereby substituted, [and the whole of] 

(Section 5, Sub-section v.-The whole of) Clause (b) i.s hereby 
20 expunged, and . the words " lf the construction 'of the railway is nut 

commenced in a bond fide manner on or before the First day of 
August, One thousand nine hundrC"d, and such construction continued 
to the satisfaction of the Governor in Council" are hereby substituted. 

[Section 15--After the words "Three feet Six inches" in the fourth 
25. line, the words " and in the discretion of the Promoters " are hereby 

inserted.] 
Secri,m 33-The following Clause is hereby inserted at the end 

o of the Section, viz : -

"'In the event of any difference ~rising between the Minister and 
30 the Promoters under this Section such dispute shall be referred to 

arbitration in the manner described in Part VIII. of this Act." 
Section 4~-ln place of the words '· date of this Act" in the third 

line, the words "the First day of January, One thousand nine 
hundred" are herebv substituted, and after the word "wav" iu the 

, 35 sixth line, the word·" plant" is' hereby inserted, [anc\ the whole of the 
last Clause, beginning with the words " Provided that" and endiifg B, 
with the words "the said railway," are hereby expunged.] 

Section 83-1 n place of the . words " in manner herninafter 
prescribed" in the fourth line, the words "on a plan or plans that 

40 have been deposited or may be depoc,iled from time to time with the 
Minister." are hereby substituted, (and after the word ''west'.' 'in t.be 
fourteenth line of the said Section, the w_ords. "_and the bounda_ries of B: 
such blocks shall be marked along the railway hne by the erect10n of 
such posts with notices thereon a.s may be approved by the Minister" 

45 are· hereby inserted.) 
• I 

[4 The following amendment is hereby ~ade in the Schedule to the 
said Act :- · . ' · 

Under the heading "Description'.' at the end of the second Clause, 
the words "but the minimum curves and. maximum grades may be B: , 

.50 used as often as is deemed necessary _by the Engineer of the said 
Promoters subject to the said rnilway being construc.ted in accordance 
with Section Sixteen of this Act" are hereby1 inserted.] 

\ 
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3 Oreat ·W(stern. Railway Company. 
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[63,VICT.] 

5 (Subject to such Regulations and restrictions as are and may be 
from time to time made by the Minister in re~pect of timber-growing 
upon Crown lands,) it shall be lawful for the Promoters, and they are 
hereby empowered, to cut, use, sell, or otherwise dispose of any timber 
growing or being on the Seven blocks of land mentioned in Section 5 
Eight.y-thl'f~e of the said Act or any of them. 

6 All persons [who shall at any time under agreement with the said 
Promoters be engaged in prospecting or searching for minerals or 
metals on any of the Seven blocks of land mentioned in Section 
Eighty-three ~f the said Act] (shall at any time have the right to 10 
prospect or search for minerals 01: metals on any of the Seven blocks 
of land mentioned in Section Eighty-three of the said Act, and acquire 
lands from the. Promoters on the same terms as mineral lands are from 

· time to time acquired from the Crown, but su.bject always to the 
additional payment to the Promoters of the royalty provided in the 15 
said Act, and) shall, in the event of the land on which they are 

· prospecting being forfeited as in Section Eighty-eight of .the said Act 
mentioned, be entitled to a lease in priority to other applications for 
such land prospected by them as they may mark off under the pro­
visions of "The Mining Act, ] 893," within Thirty days of the 20 
forfeiture being proclaimed by the Minister. 

['.1-( I.) It shall he lawful for the Minister, with the consent of the 
Governor in Council, notwithstanding anything contained in '' The 
Mining Act, 1893," or any other Act, to grant to the Promoters, for the 
unexpired residue of the term of the primary lease, a lease of any piece 25 
of Crown Land, not exc<"eding One ehain in width, for the construction 
thel'l·on of such branch lines of railw;iy, extensions or deviations from 
the said railway to any coalfield or mine, or any other mine nea\ 
Hamilton and near .Lake St. Clair, and to a point at or near 
Gormanston and Queenstuwn as may be determined upon by the 30 
Promoters and approved by the Governor in Council ; and also such · 
area of Crown land for all stations, sidings, crossings, side-cuttings, 
cuttings, embankments, and conveniences in connection with the said 
branch lines of railway, exteusions, and deviations as may be necessa1·y 
or proper, aud for all other purposes in counection with the said Act. 35 

(2.) Any such lease as last afore~aid shall be subject to all the 
provisions of the said Act, so far as 1.he ,.:arne may be. applicable, 9-ncl 
shall contain such of the provisions and stipulatio1.s required to be 
contained in the primary lease as the Governor in Council may think 
necessary or applicable to such branch line, extension, or deviatiJn or 40 
otherwise, and shall be renewable in like manner with the primary 
lease.] 

8 This Act and" The Great \-Vestern Hailwav and Electric Ore­
reduction Act" and "The Great vVestern Railwa·y and Electric Ore-

. reduction Company Act Extension Act,'' shall be read aud construed 45 
together as one and the same Act. 

JOHN V,1.IL, 
GOYBRN·MENT ·PRINTER, ~"ASMANIA, 


